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ANNUAL REPORT
PERFORMANCE REPORT

1.1 CHAIR's FOREWORD

In miy irsl year as Chair of VisitScotland | have baen imprassed by the sheer volume of activity that lakes placa
across the organisation. As the rola of tourism as a major driver of econamic growth gains greater recogrition,
VigitSeotland is increasingly locked upon a6 an agency which can deliver against the four strategic pillars of the
Scottish Government's Economic Strategy — Investment, Innovation, inclusive growth and Internationalisation.
While marketing and events ramain at the core of what we do, we Tacognise that VisitScotland has a valuable
contribution to make across a range of issues, including inward invesiment, skills and training, productivity
barriars and innovation not to menticn guality and sarvice.

My goal for VisitSeotland is to grow the value of the visitor ecanomy and ensuring that the wealth generated by
visitors iz spread right across tha country. In the past 12 months much has already bean achieved and this is
dacumented in =ome detail throughout this Raport. Looking ahead tu the nexl 12 manths, | look forward to
working alongside the various teams at VisitScotland and engaging with destinations across the country 1o halp
themn grow capacity and improve access to market. A big parl of that will include devaloping the digital capacity
of tha industry but also ensuring that we hava a robust evidence base lor all of Scotland’s tourism activity. The
research currently carried out by VisitScotland is instrumental in terms of driving aclivity but we want 1o build on
thiz bringing in other impertant data sources from both the public and privata scctors.

Helping businesses to inlernatignalisa will be at the heart of cur support for SMEs which make up the vast
majarity. Qur marketing platforms continue te provida an invaluable tool to those businesses wanting 1o recach
beyond the UK and we will build on aur existing relationships with |eading tour operalor and aviation partnars to
enzure that Scotland is top of mind with prospective visiters. Following on from our successful Spirit of Seotland
campaign we are working with partnars across the public sector to develop @ national brand which will promote
Scaotland as a place to visit, live, work, study and invest, This collaborative effort, aimed at reinvigorating
Seotland’s presance in international markels with a wiew to stimulating ecenomic growth and building Scotland’s
international reputation, is a great example of how the public sactor agencies can work in partnership Lo ehsure
thc whale iz greater than the sum of its parts. Investment in digital activity will be cantral to this activity, a5 will
the centinuation of our advocacy strategy.

Investrent in digital will also be at the centre of our infarmation strategy as well as transforming the way in
which visitars access information on what to see and 90 while in the country. Sitting alongside a core network af
regional iCentre hubs in high impact locations, YisitSvotland, working with a mix of industry partners, is
ingreasing its investment in the number ¢f channals providing content on places 16 visit and #tay, outreach
aclivity through our Coo Vans, and digital products. This new approach, which we will delivar over Lhe next two
years, will allow us 10 daliver information in the right way at tha right tima to the 15 million visitors Scotland
WlCOmes ever Year.

This is certainly an exciting time 0 Seottish tourism and it will continue to be 5o for some time to come. As we
reflect on 20167, maasuring the impact of our work ig an important part of what we do at YVisitSeotland. | am
delighted that the resultz outlinad in this year's Annual Repoit and Financial Statements demonstrale the
important contribution that we make to the continuing success of Scotland’s visitor acancmy.

The Rt. Hon. the Viscount Thurso
Chair

1.2 OVERVIEW

STATUTCRY BACKGROUND

VisitSootland was initially establizhed as the S¢ottish Tourist Ecard under the Development of Tourism Act 1968,
The Tourist Boards {Scotland] Act 2006 formally changed the name of tha Scottish Tourist Board to YisitSeotland.

Under the 1969 Act, the principal function of YisitScotland was 1o encourage British people to visit and to take
holidays in Scotland, and to advise Governmant and public bodies on matters relating to tourism in Scotland.
The Tourigm [(Owvorseas Promotion) {Scatland] Act 1984 provides the authority for VisitScotland ta market
Scotland overseas,

VisitScotland's main office is in Edinburgh, and there are alse 69 VisitScotland Information Centres and [ocal
offices throughout the country,

FRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

Tha principal activities of VisitScotland involve the marketing of Scotland to all parts of the warld {including
Scatland, and the rest of the United Kingdom to attract visitors by providing information and inspiration to meww
and repeat visitors so that thay derive the best experience out of a visit to Scotland. VisitScotland provides
quality assurance to visitors and quality advice to industry and works clasely with partners to assist the tourism
industry in not enly meeling but exgeeding visitars' expectations. VisiScotland, through the VisitScotland Evenis
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Directorate, is alzo respansible for the devalopment of a partfolio of events that deliver economic and social
impact and international profile for Scotland by establishing Scotland as the perfect stage for events.

VigitScotland has been tasked by Scottish Ministers to position itseH across the public sector agencies as both a
marketing specialist, and as a key economic development agency, driving growth in the visitor aconomy
alongside Scottish Development International [*SDI°}, Highland and lslands Emerprigve {"HIE™), and Scottish
Enterpriga [“SE™],

The grganisation is clearly seen as the lead body for the visitor seonemy and as Scotland’s destination marketing
organisation, our rols is focused on the delivery of not only evidence-based activity but alsa in making a major
contribution to the Scottish Government's drive towards the internationalisation of Scottish businesses.

In fulfilling this rale in economic development the prganisation has pushed beyond its previous boundaries and
has taken a more proactive role in areas such as air cannectivity, akills, national and local planning {including the
Mational Tourism Developmant Framewark far Seotland}, increasing competitivaness, tackling inequality, and as
the holder of the vigion for the Scottish visitor economy suppans the vision af the Scottish Government to be a
world class digital country by 2020,

1.3 CORPCORATE OBJECTIVE AND STRATEGIES FOR 2018/17

VisitGcotland's core business priority is to grow and develop Scotland‘s visltor economy sustalnably through our
care actlvity of marketing and evantz and by working 'n partnershilp with busina=zsas znd communitias.

[n 50 doing, VisitScotland will provide support and contribute to the industry-led stratagy, baing tha Tourism
Scotland 2020 ambiticn of growing 1ouriam revenues by £1 billion by 2020 from a baseline of £a.50n",

In this respact, VisitScotland plays a crucial role in helping to delivar tha govarnmeant’s purpose which is set out
in tha Frogrammes for Government, One Scotfand, and Scatland's Economic Stralegy {"SES™), and Scotland's
International Framewark,

In partieular, through our activitias to increase com petitiveness and tackle inaguality, VisitScatland has sought to
do this by continuing to deliver its principal role of marketing Scotland to the world as a visitor destingtion by
adopting the foliowing strategies for 2018M17:

+  Marksting: Ye will market Scotland and it= cutstanding assets 1o vigitars from all parts of the world,
inzluging the promotion of Scotland to peopla living in Scotland, and to different parts of the cauntry,

«  Events: Ye will support the national avants strategy and its delivery and sustain, develop and promota
Seotland’s international profila as gne of the woarld’s foremaost events destinatians.

« Imtarnatlonalisation and Intemational Engagement: YWe will utilise all our platfarms io anabla Scottish
based tourism businasses to better understand international opportunities and markat to a global
audience and we will work within One Scotland Fartnerships to aptimise the potential afforded by
Scotland’s Diaspora and our strategic partnarships at regional, European and global levels.

« Customer exparlence: ¥e will provida information and inspiration 10 visitors both lecally and globally
wig their preferred choice of medium.

« QOuality & Sustainability: Wa will provida support and advice to businesses, with the goal of impraoving
the guality and sustainability of the tourism sector in Scotland. We will provide assurance to visitars
through our Quality Schemes,

¢ Inclusiva Tourism: We will strive to make tourism in Scotland inclusive, and available to all, through our
Social tourism projects, Mational Events Programme, local engagement, angd Community Planning
Fartnarship (“CPP") invalvement.

=  Werking In Partnership: We will listen to, and wark with, the industry, partners and communities to
ghape our offering and support.

During the year therafora wa focused qur efforts on the four pillars as 1aid aut in the SES, namely:

I Deioinie 913 Repont: The peonromic contadbution of the founem senaomiy in the LR — Artpedine daloftts.com
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Im pursuit of our objectives and stratagiss our achievements and performance for the year arc set out below,

1.4 THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S VIEW ON THE YEAR'S FERFORMANCE

Last year's performance demonstratad the organisation’s ability to delivar tangible sconomic benefit to Scotland
and, thereby, contribute significantly 1o the Scottish Government's Mational Performance Frarmework.

VisitScotland's primary purpose is 1o maximisa sustainable economic growlh by detivering tha bast possible
return on investment.

Our Consumer Markeling activity gencrated £1.85 billon of Gross Econamic Activity creating and/or supporting
1,216 Full Time jobs.

Qur investmant in and support for Evenls have contributed towards the generation of £177 million of Gross
Economic Activity supporting and/or crealing 1,797 Full Time jobs. Equally impressive results werg genarated by
our investment in Busipess Evams, Route Development and qur support for SME's through EXPO, Quality
Assurance and Advice and our iCentre Natwork.

Tourism continues to flourish and contributes approximately £11 billion of econamic activity in the wider
Soottish supply chain, supporting 217.000 jobs, an increaze of 11% on previous year, and cver 20,000 diverse
businesses of whith the majority are SME's (Saurce: Tourism Gore Erief - BUEA Scolish Governrrent), and many ara in
fragila rural communities. 2016 withessed continued growth from International visitors with trips up 6% year on
year and value by 8 1% caontributing £1.85 billion in avernight expenditure.

The UK market ramainzs soft but is foracasl to reach £2 billion overnight expenditure which, when added to
international overnight expanditure, gives an estimated £4.8 billign of ovarnight expenditure for the period.

It is encouraging to see many mera paople living in Scotland getting out and about the country and enjoying our
natural, historical and cultural assets with day visits increasing by 14.5% year on year genarating a spend of
almost £56 billion, itsalf an increase of 23.5% year on yaar.

Our commilment 1o working collaboratively with industry pariners to continue momentum, increase
competitivensss and provide a platform to global oppertunities is undarpinned by ocur Trade stralegy and
businass advice through our Cualily Assurance scheme and digital workshops,

Whilst prograss has been made in terms of valus for money, customer experience and information provision
through analeg and digital channels, we must do mora to embrace and exploit the opportunities afforded in this
digital ege. Investment in product and infrastructure continued with almast £15 billion of project-related activity
recorded scross the eountry within the National Tourism Development Framework demonstrating the underlying
strangth of the industry and its importance to the overall econormy, representing approximataty 5% of total
Scottish Gross Domestic Product (“GOF” ).
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Momentum is crucial to success; confidence inspires investment; and continuous investment in our peocple,
product, and marketing will enhance future performance and increase this arganisation’s contribution to the
industry target as laid out in the 2020 Strategy.

1.5 OVERALL DELIVERY OF CORPORATE OBJECTIVES AND PERFORMANCE FOR THE YEAR
MARKETING.

February 2017 marked the one year anniversary of the launch of Spirit of Scotfand, VisitScotland’s first ever
global brand. Underpinned by developments in our digital offering, customer experience and partnerships, 16/17
saw our highest ever level of visitor engagement and industry referrals to date.

New website

Our relaunched responsive website, with a slimmed down hierarchy, delivered mare qualified search engine
traffic than ever before. With 19.1 million visits, data shows we are engaging our audience more effectively with
a higher conversion rate. We achieved 1.4 miltion industry referrals {a 16% year on year increase) and the cost of
acquiring these referrals is down 20%. In terms of the value to which this equates, visitscotland.com content
marketing generated £660 millicn of potential new business, and our cnline listings generated £560 million of
potential new business.

Product

Along with the redesign and upgrade of visitscotland.com, we launched a number of new tools to enable online
personalisation. Qver 6,000 people created their own bespoke itineraries using the VisitScotland Trip Planner,
and the VisitScotland online community welcamed 5,000 members. In addition, working alongside Scotland’s
academia, we also launched cur first ever virtual reality {*VR”} app, Scotland VR, in celebration of the Year of
Innovation, Architecture & Design 2016, which received more than 30,000 installs in its first month of release.

Social branding

With 1,000 uses every day, #5cotSpirit has been our most successful social campaign to date, helping us deliver
a significant increase in our soctal following - Facebook +52% {over 1 million followers), Twitter +42% {nearly
250k followers} and Instagram +123% {nearly 310k followers). More important than our fallowing is the
engagement rates we have achieved on our social channels, which see VisitScotland’s engagement ranked 1st
by Instagram, and 2nd by Facebook, relative to our five biggest competitors.

Visitor communications

The past year has seen our customer database grow to 2.8 million (a 7% year on year increase), and organic e-
news sign ups grow by 81%. To ensure that we maintain loyalty and regular engagement amongst our
community of potential visitors, we have created increasing amounts of content. Between April 2016 and March
2017, we delivered 85 email campaigns (8 million emails read), with an average email open rate of 18%.

Campaigns

Over 66 millicn potentiai visitors viewed our broadcast films and mini documentaries, with research showing
that ad recall and intent considerably increased post viewing - 45-54 year olds exposed to Spirit of Scotiand
videos were 48% more likely to consider Scotland for their next holiday. Campaign partners helped us extend
our reach and reputation, highlights including our *1%' Look’ programme with NBC and Alan Cumming, winner of
Best Lifestyle Program at the 2017 New York Emmy Awards.

We delivered more than 13 regional campaigns in partnership with Local Authorities and Destination
Management Organisations, creating inspirational content including e-books and videos. In addition, with the
generous support of the Scottish tourism industry, our parthership with the Family Holiday Association provided
2560 vulnerable and disadvantaged families in Scotland with a holiday in their own country.

Public Relations

201617 saw VisitScotland secure cver 1,000 pieces of coverage across six key markets through publications and
broadcasters such as National Geographic, France 2, Bild and Condé Nast Traveler, achieving 98% positive tone,
with a gquality media reach of more than 465 millian.

Beyond more traditional PR, we generated aur own stories through activity such as cur BBC Three “YouTuber’
travel programme (debuted #1 for non-fiction on UK iTunes), recruiting Scotland’s first ever ‘Ambassadog’,
supporting the launch of the NC500 {generating over 60 pieces of global coverage) and our ‘Where's Andrew?
activity, which achieved an internationat reach of over 3.25 millian.

Route & trade development

VisitScotland's route development and marketing activity supported 22 airlines, and helped secure 12 new target
routes into Scotland which have been associated with £46.3 million direct economic impact, as measured by the
Treasury Green Bock, resulting in £28.6 million Gross Value Added {(“GVA*} and 748 Full Time Equivalent
(“FTE") jobs. These new route developments have been particularly exciting as they include long targeted
international hub connections such as the new Delta service from JFK into Edinburgh, as well as Air France from
Paris Charles de Gaulle into Glasgow, but alsc, and critically, direct international connections from the major
Amsterdam Schiphol hub with KLM and Flybe into Inverness.
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The VisitScotland 2018 Expo held in Edinburgh in April 2016 saw 584 buyers {UK & foreign} come to visit 286
exhibitors. In addition, we created 40 Business-to-Business {"B2B"] platfarms to support the internationalisation
of Scottish businesses which we estimate will generate £15.7 million of Scottish product sales globally.

EVENTS

Following another successful year of events in 2016/17 the VisitScotland Events Directorate has continued to
work with its partners to sustain, develop and promote Scotland's international profile as the Perfect Stage for
Events.

Across the Directorate, and in line with our International Engagement strategy, the EventScotland team attends a
number of major events and conferences, most notably SpoertAccord, to position Scotland as the ‘Perfect Stage’
for Events and to develop relationships with international events rights holders. 2018 SportAccord was held in
Lausanne in April and provided a number of new event leads. A number of Memoranda of Understanding
{(*MOU"} have continued to have been reached and widened with other destinations, most notably Visit
Flanders.

Through the EventScotland team a number of prestigious events were waon and hosted throughout the year,
such as the Homeless World Cup that tock place in Glasgow's George Square in July 2016. Over 500 players
from across the world competed in the tournament, which highlights the work of Homeless World Cup
Foundation to use football to inspire homeless people to change their own lives. In total 80,000 spectatars
enjoyed the action in the arena built for the event in Geerge Square, and a record 4 miliion viewers watched the
tournament online. The team managed additional Scottish Government funding provided to VisitScotland for the
event to allow Glasgow and Scotland to stage the event successfully. The event attracted 35% of attendees from
Glasgow, 43% from rest of Scotland, 6% from the rest of the UK and 16% from overseas. {Source: Homeless World
Cup Spectator Survey)

Investment in events

During 2016/17 through the Internaticnal, National and Beacen Funding Programmes, a total of £2.5 million was
invested in 73 events across 23 Locai Authorities. These events generated £73.3 millicn net additional spend and
1,168 full time equivalent jobs. Qver 72% of events supported were held outwith Glasgow and Edinburgh, and
72% took place outside of the summer window.

Major events supported were the Davis Cup tie between Great Britain and Argentina, the British Swimming
Championships, the European Curling Championships, and the Guinness Pro 12 Final and MOBO Awards.

Scotland’s reputation as The Home of Golf, and as the host of world class golf events, was further underpinned
by our staging of nine key events supported across the men’s, ladies’ and seniors’ tours including the Aberdeen
Asset Management Men's, and Ladies, Scottish Open and the Senicr Open Championship. These events are
central to our golf activation strategy, which includes strategic partnerships with Sky Sports and NBC.

Another huge success was the 145th Open held at Royal Troon in Ayrshire, which delivered a net economic
benefit of £88 million {including the direct multiplier effect} to Scotiand. Watched by over 173,134 spectators,
almost 46% came from outwith Scotland. (Source: The Open 2016 Royal Troon: Economic Impact Assessment/

Demcnstrating the strength of Scotland’s appeal as the ‘Perfect Stage’ for events, following the recent hosting of
the World Badminten Championships 2017, we can lock forward to the hesting of Glasgow 2018 European
Championships, the 147th Open, and the opening of the V&A Museum of Design in 2018; the European Athletics
Indoor Championships, the World Wheelchair Curling Championships and the 2018 Solheim Cup; the LEN
Eurgpean Short Course Swimming Championships in 2019; followed by the World Men’s Curling Championships
and UEFA EURO 2020, in 2020.

Business Events

The Business Events team atfracts corporate mestings, incentive groups, association conventions and
exhibitions into Scotland from around the world. With staff in London, Toronto and key locations within
Scotland, the Business Events team waorks in partnership with the city convention bureau of Edinburgh, and of
Glasgow, Dundee and Aberdeen, plus key venues, hotels and academic centres of excellence, to attract business
events related to Scotland's key industry sectors.

Tha Narional Conference Bid Fund

« The £3 million Naticnal Conference Bid Fund completed its first four years in existence with a cumulative 192
conferences secured between 2013 and 2024, delivering an estimated total gross spend by delegates of £335
million, in return for £3.0 million of match-funding commitments from Local Authority/Destination
Management Organisation commitments. This represents a Gross Value Added {*GVA"} of £108m and Ful!
Time Equivalent jobs of 2,785.

» The most common industry sector for international conferences supported by the fund remains Life Sciences
& Medical, thereafter Creative Industries/ICT/Electronic Technologies.

s The fund continues to be used to ensure that the benefits of Business Events are felt throughout the country,
covering nearly 20 locations as diverse as Arran, Dornoch, Aviemore, Peebles, Kirkwall, Stirling, Kingussie, 5t
Andrews, Inverness, Stornoway and Shetland.
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In addition to year round sales & marksting activity to market Scotland as a Meetings, Incentives, Conferences,
Exhibitions {(“MICE") destination, the VisitScotland Business Events team also took part in major international
MICE trade shows, and delivered on-territory activity including: IMEX (Europe & America), IBTM World
Barcelona, Incentive Travel Exchange (Las Vegas), M&I Forums, and Scotland Week 2016 Activity. Year 3 of the
Toronteo-based VisitScotland Business Event presence saw us build on our North American strategic
partnership relationships, and engage with the International Live Events Assaciation to host the inaugural
Global Events Summit, in conjunction with IMEX 2016.

Verified and confirmed business into Scotland from previous business events activity has totalled £30.1 millian,
with a GVA of £11.8 millian, and an FTE of 310, excluding the National Conference Bid Fund.

Specific leads generated by business events activity for the full year 2016/17 reached £288 million.
Innovate The Nation

The national ambassador network of academics and influencers who can help to attract business events to
Scotland was rebooted and rebranded as a talk series called ‘Innovate The Nation’ (“ITN”). The talks attract
new ambassadors and engage with active members, and complements the programmes of Aberdeen, Dundee,
Edinburgh and Glasgow:.

INNOVATEMARINE, INNOVATETECH and INNOVATEROBOTICS took place in St Andrews University, Eden
Court, Inverness and Fairmont St Andrews respectively. Tc date, two new conferences have been confirmed
into Scotland due to connections made at ITN talks.

Developmaent - Events Industry

The Development team focuses on three key themes: Partnership and Collaboration; Education and Knowledge
Exchange; and Quality, Organisation and Delivery across a broad range of projects and programmes. These
include Scotland’s Themed Years, Scotland’s Winter Festivals, VisitScotland Expo, Scottish Thistle Awards, a
structured Events Industry seminar and engagement programme, and VisitScotland’s Growth Fund. Some of
the highlights wers:

» 2016 was the Year of Innovation, Architecture and Design. The programme exceeded promotional
targets, encouraged new projects, participation and partnerships and promoted Scottand’s Innovation,
Architecture and Design assets across the country and the world. In addition to reaching an estimated
142 million people via media and 132 million via marketing activity, every oppartunity was taken to
promote the year, including aligning the messaging with VisitScotland’s first ever global campaign,
‘Spirit of Scotland’. The 28 funded events alone attracted almost 1.6 million attendances, providing new
opportunities for Scots and visitors to take part in, and develop further understanding of, Scotland’s
great contributions, past and present, to Innovation, Architeciure and Design. Engagemeant across the
tourism sector resulted in a number of strong and exciting coflaborations and innovations that added
value to the tourism product and to the year overall, providing a legacy for future themed years’ work.

* An extensive industry consultation was undertaken early in March 2016 to determine the future
approach for Themed Years {post 2018). This revealed strong support for the continuation of the
programme and recommended a new delivery model to maximise engagement and opportunities.

=  The 1617 Wimer Feativals Programme supported 24 events across 15 local authorities, engaging an
estimated totat audience of 307,783 in celabrating St Andraws Day, Hegrmanay and Burng Might. The
events demonstrated strong angagamant fram local communities and visitors alike with around half of
event attendees travalling from outside the host regions to celebrate events across the three Mational
Days.

= VisitSeotland Expe 2016 delivared a racargl vear in Edinburgh’s Royal Highland Centre. 584 buyers and
286 exhibitors held mora than E,500 appointrnants and generated an estimated net economic impact of
£2.5 million.

»  Scattish Thistle Awards 1617 sew another record year, ganarating 1,064 naminations, 716 antrigs andg
calebrating swceess across 14 categories.

» Focus on best practice and collaboration continued with five event industry serminars delivered,
engaging 340 partnars in topics such as Event Safety and Security, Event Marketing, Fundraising Models
and Safaty Advisory Groups. Other important work included suppernt of the developing Events and
Festivals Induatry Group and Policing Events Sroupg.

VigitSoeatland s Growth Fund worked with 22 groups across 12 lagal authority arsas with a total available fund of
EADO,000 throughout 1817, Tha programme avaluation undertaken {2016) demonstraled that the Growth Fund
enhances the future sustainability of supported groups, providing opportunities for upskilling, ralationship
building, craation of legacy assets and increased confidenca.
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INFORMATION PROVISION

VisitScotland cperated a netwark of 69 iCentres in 2016/17, attracting over 3 millien visitors, and generating
£1.1 million pounds wuorth of revenue for the industry through accemmedation beaokings, and £3.5 million of
revenue through ticketing.

Towards the end of the year, significant improvements were commenced at key strategic centres including
Portree and Inverness. Free visitor Wi-Fi is now installed in 40 iCentres across Scotland, Along with free
information, ticketing and booking services the iCentre estate now offers, via our 'Shop Local® initiative, an
oppartunity for local artisans, craft makers and food & drink producers to promote and sell their products to
visitors.

During the year, VisitScotland worked in partnership with 1,200 businesses to provide a lacal information
service through the newly launched VisitScotland Information Partner (“VIP"} programme. The VIP programme
recognises the ambassadorial role and quality of local infermation provided to visitors by the tourism industry,
whether that be a visitor attraction, small serviced accommadation provider, hostel, and hotel or holiday park.

Recognising the need to evolve, VisitScotland now operates a face to face information model that is more
integrated with the local community, makes best use of technology, and engages more effectively with partners
and businesses to retain a strong human element much desired by international visitors. Regionally, plans for
face to face services are being developed and implemented with Local Authority partners along with key
strategic partners and industry/community groups.

The development of our plans around the provision of comprehensive information in the right way and at the
right time to the millions of visitors to Scotland will be further taken forward in October 2017 as we start the
next phase of our information strategy. The strategy will deliver more infarmation to more people through
maore channels, retaining a core network of 26 iCentre hubs in high impact locations, more face to face
engagement, increased outreach activity, a greater number of partnerships, and increased on-line provisien.
The costs associated with this strategy are estimated to be around £500k, for which the pay-back period will be
approximately two years depending upon the phasing of the programme.

Our main digital project in 2016/17 was the angoing optimisation of our website visitscotland.com. A key focus
of the re-development was ta ensure that we were reaching more visitors with great content and connecting
more visitors with businesses listed on the site. As such, increased focus was placed on improving the
preminence and user experience of the onsite product search. In Quarter 4 (2016/17), site optimisation work was
implemented to make product results more visible, leading to March being an increase of 17.8% year on year.
The other key digital deliverable was the VS App. Launched Feb-17, the app had over 30,000 installs within the
first month, great user engagement with an average of 3 minute per session, 57,000 video views & 26,000 360
degree photo views.

During 2016/17 over 1.42 million visitor referrals were passed to businesses listed, which is a 2.7% year on year
increase. Over 46% of accommodation businesses are now providing online availability as a result of
VisitScotland's work to integrate web bocking engines.

Social media engagement continues to grow, and at the end of March 2017 we had recorded the following
increases in fan bases since 1 April 2016:

=  Facebook
Reached 1,002,461 Facebook fans globally - up 52% from 661,000.

= Twitter
246,797 Twitter followers globally — up 42% from 173,000,

= |nstagram
308,361 Instagram foliowers globally - up 123% from 138,000.

In addition, infermation is distributed monthly to over 2.7 million visitors on VisitScotland's database, keeping
them up to date with events, seasonal highlights, industry and partner offers.

The new iKnow Community platform was launched successfully in 16-17, providing a rich resource for visitars
to get the inside track from peaple in Scotland on things te do and places to go in Scotland. Within the first
calendar year, the Community generated over 4,500 users, 4,800 comments and over 1 million page views.

QUALITY AND SUSTAINABILITY

VisitScotland’s Quality Assurance Schemes continued to receive significant support from the industry with
5,379 awards {annually renewable) issued to businesses during 2016/17.

However, overall there was a 6,.3% decline in participation. This decrease is broadly in line with the average fall
in participation in the five years leading up to the policy change in 2014 when businesses were allowed to
advertise without being quality assured.

With small serviced and self-catering participation continuing to decline, participation in the hestel scheme has
remained constant while participation in caravan and camping increased by 1.9%. The visitor attraction sector
continues to ‘buck the trend’ with a 0.2% increase. The scheme has grown 10% since 2007.
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Recognising these changes, and the parallel ‘explosion’ in the uss of digital technolegy and online user reviews
by consumers to make holiday decisions, VisitScotland has been leading three important quality related
initiatives: together with the AA, Visit-England, Visit-Wales and Tourism Northern Ireland a review of the
accommaodation standards schemes; werk with user review aggregator ‘Trust You‘; and a lock to the long term
future of guality set within the context of quality tourism destinations.

WORKING IN PARTNERSHIP

VisitScotland continues to support the work of the Scattish Tourism Alliance particularly around its role in co-
ordinating and encouraging delivery of the national tourism strategy TS2020. VisitScotland is represented on
the Tourism Leadership Group and leads on delivery of key strands linked to the quality, investment and digital
priority themes identified in the strategy refresh.

During the early part of 2016, brand new partnership opportunities were developed arcund the launch of the
Spirit of Scotland campaign. These included working with a range of our National Partners, including
accommeodation and transport providers as well as a range of attractions in order to deliver a successful Social
Tourism based pilot.

As our membership of Community Planning Partnerships {(*CPP") became a statutory requirement during the
year, we developed collateral that demonstrated the importance of the visitor economy and how VisitScotland
was supporting the relevant outcomes of the CPP plans. This has also been supported by the refresh and
integration of the National Tourism Development Framework, which is now an integral part of planning
regulations. The Plan will be enhanced further during 2017 through the provision and analysis of key data to
determine where future supply is required to meet the type of future demand that is expected.

Working in partnership has also delivered some key successes with the development of the Gaelic Language
Tourism Plan and the launch of our ‘Experiencing Gaelic’ scheme allowing visitors to identify businesses that
can provide insight and information on the Gaelic culture.

There has been further work with Team Scotland partners in developing and delivering suppert and
intervention to businesses through the Digital Tourism Scotland project, helping tourism businesses make the
most of the digital opportunity to enhance their business and respond to the changing needs of the visitor.

The range and nature of work with Scottish destination and sector organisations in 2016 ranged from
accessibility and digital workshaps to supporting Growth Fund campaign applications and sharing marketing
campaign information, trends and insights amongst many more, This work is likely to expand further in 2017.

MARKETING RESEARCH and INSIGHT

The Insight Dapartment suppoarts Visitbcotland's organigational purpose - 10 grow and develop the sustainable
aconamic benefit of tourism to Scotland's visitor economy - by informing and guiding the developmant of
robust, forward-looking and megsureable strategies. We create and communicate relevant and valuable
knuwledge and insights far colleagues, partners and stakaholdars.

The departmant comprises five distinct disciplines and areas of knowledge: Research, Economics, Trends
Analysis, Digital Analytics, and Consumer EAM. In addition to their apecialist area of work, all members of the
Ingight department have the respansibility to maintain and share an up-to-date awareness of the latest
developments and best practica in thair fields, and to pro-activaly engags with collaaguas and stakeholders so
they can benefit from our knowledge and expertize.

& great daal of work goes into ensuring that our decision—making is &vidence-based, generates bast valua for
monay, dalivers a compelling return on marketing investment and adds strategic value, as demonstratad by the
development of our Economic Baneftt Performance Measures (Sea balow - Page 11).

1.6 KEY PERFORMAMNCE INDICATORS

VisitSeotland’s success in delivering sustained banegfits to the Scottish ecenomy is supported by a large numbear
of performance measures that are developed and reviewed each year, and thesa ara datzilad in the Corporate
Plan. Achievernments against these measures are reported to the Board members and Directors regularfy
throughout the vear.

ECONCMIC PERFORMANCE

The basis of VisitSootland's principal Kay Economic Performance Indicators is derived from our Economic
Maeasurement Fremewark, which has four economic measurement indicators, as follows:

=  Gross economic activity - the monatary value of all economic activity relatad to ar assaciated with an
intervantion. In mast cases, some of the economic activity wauld have happened anyway — thus we
nead to calculate the net impact figure to understand the new money in the economy as a result of the
intarvantion,

» Nt sconomlc impact (diract) = new mongy in the econoemy that would not heve happened without the
Vigit3cotland  intervention {net impact takes account of what would have happened anyway
{deadweight), spend displaced from elsewhere in the economy, |eakage, and suhstitution),
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s [Gross Value Added [*GVYA") [direct, indirect, induced) - this is the economic value added in a business
when transforming inputs (things bought-inl inta outputs (sales). GYA measures profits and wages of
Zcotland-based busineszes and employess. By measuring our impaet on increasing GVA, we are
reporting our econormic contribution 1o Scotland’s wider economy.

= Full Time Equivalent [“FTE"} jobs supported [direct, indirect, induced) - full time equivalemt [obs
supported in Scotland's econamy. This indicater can include jobs created, safeguardad, extended haurs
andfar season, progressing from part-time to full-time, ste.

Underpinning our Economic Measurement Framework is a two-pronged approach reflecting our two levels of
influence. The framework allows us to undertake robust and rigorous assessment of the economic benefits
associated with the activities we support across Scotland adhering to both HM Treasury Green Book® standards
and Scottish Gavernment guidance. More information is available from our web-site, as follows:

http:/iwww.visitscotland.org/pdf/VS-Economic-Measurment-Framework. pdf

The last two years have been a transition in terms of performance measurement, as the new Economic
Measurement Framework was successfully embedded-in. The Framework will continue to be advanced and it is
anticipated a wider range of interventions will be reported under the Framework in future years. Cverall, the
advancement of economic measurement practices will be an iterative process, achieved through engagement,
both internally {across directorates, departments, management, etc.} and externally {with Scottish Government
and other stakeholders).

The table below presents a summary of the economic performance of a2 range of VisitScotland key activities
against the Framewark indicatars, over the course of 2016-17, and not only represents a snapshot of the return
on investment that the Scottish Government receives, but also the impact on the wider economy and
Scotland’'s economic strategy.

. GVA FTE Jobs
Gross Net Economic (Direct, Gl
Interventions 2016-17 ** Economic Impact {Direct) Indirect, SUPPOTE
e {Direct, Indirect,
Activity - £m -Em Induced ) -
£ Induced)
_ m
International Consumer Marketing —
Short Haul/Eurape [Jan — Dee 2016} 276 b . 255
International Consumer Marketing —
Long Haul (Jan - Dec 2018} - N % |
Rest of UK & Ireland Consumear
Marketing {Mar 2018 — Feb 2017} L b 26 Bl
Scatland Consumer Marketing {Mar 357 15 (4.9 76

A1 -Feb2M7?y
Consumer Marketing Total 1,652 76 47 1216

'EventScotland — Golf Programme

(includes The Gpen 2016} &= & & gls
EventScotland — Internaticnal 85 &9 a1 1,108
Frograrmme —__ - ] -
EventSecotland — Mational Programme 19 28 18 39
| EveniScotland — Special Beacon & 7 23 14 35
| Clan Programme - )
EventScotiand Total 177 112 &7 1,797
Expo 2076 -, 25 1.5 40 .
Mational Bid Fund (38 conferences in 47 27 73 240
16717} ol : e S e L
| Route Davelopment | 12 routes
| faunched Jan-Dec 2016, impacE within a9 48 29 748
.__-c-'rle_yearaffaunch) o witesy .3 e RGN e el T LA
| Quality Assurance Schoms &4 Rl T e s T 2T
! fCenitre Mehwork (dan — Dee 2016 (1.5 f 7 7

**In some cases the imtervention measurement penod does not align with the financial year — where this is
true the date ranges included have been highlighted.
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ORGANISATIONAL & CPERATIONAL EFFICIENCIES
a) Pubilic efficiency savings

Savings have continued to be made in line with the Scottish Government's commitment to Efficient
Government. In the current year these efficiency savings continue to be predominantly generated from threes
main areas: organisational change - the streamlining of functions; asset management - the continuing
realignment of the management of IT sarvers and communication lines; and benefits gained from shared
procurement contracts.

During the yvear new savings have been made totalling £1,673,000 within the fallowing areas:

® Procurement £670,000
. Organisational change {ineluding beneafits derived from voluntary redundancy, and nan-replacement of
senior staff), and shared services £1,003,000

The cumulative savings from 2008 to date under the efficiengy programme now exceed £18 870,000,

2016-17 2016-17
Achievaed Tarpset
e Deliver improved public sector efficiency savings p.a. - as £ Millin £ Millian
above Government targets
Single Year 1.67 12
Cumulative from 2008 18.87 86
(Sirvrea: Analfysis of expenditurg)
by Other
2016-17 2018-17
Achieved Target
. . o ) Million Millian
« Daliver Visitor Footfall to VisitScotland Information Centres 3.00 8 3,70
IWICE) (S Foordail countars in 190s)
Tonnes
Tonnes INotto
- Deliver sustainable efficiangias - level of CO2 Emissions Registerad exceed}
Operational Ofices & Vils
Energy 999 1,637
YWaste & VWater ] 68
Transport 316 360
TOTAL
(Source Ooerationa énaivees) 1,368 2085

## The drop in visitor footfall aver the past two years {2015 428 million) correlates to a reduction in the
number of iCentres ownedimanaged by VisitScotland as pant of cur information strategy, by opening up the ¥IP
pregramme, the iKnow community on-ling, and focusing on those centres where demand is greatest.

1.7 CORPORATE OBJECTIVE AND STRATEGIES FOR 2017118

VisitScotland’'s Corporate Plan is bullt upon sound strategic analysis, insight and direction from  the
VisitScotland Board, with valuable input from partrars and stakeholders,

This organigation’s vision of ecanomic growth for all of Scotland is aligned to the twe key pillars of Seatland’s
Economic Strategy. namely increasing competitiveness and tackling inequality,

COur Core Purpose is to accelerate sustainahle sconomic growth through the successful delivery of our key
strategies:

- Marketing: drive advocacy, work with Scotland to provide quality information, content and advics;
empower and enable our large SME base to seize the potential which the digital economy provides

—  Ewants: support the delivery of the national events strategy and sustain, develop and promote Scotland as
the perfect stage far events

- Quality & Sustainability: continue to promote and facilitate continuous improvement within the overall
customaer experience

12
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—  Inclusive Tourism: ensure that all of Seetland benefits from tourism growth and that Scotland is accessible
to all

- International Engagemant; work with stakeholders and partners to create and convert opportunities which
exist for Team Scotland

Underpinning the above are a number of key drivers ranging from Operational Excellence, Digital Leadership,
Developing our People, Facus on Customer Experience, Collaboratien to Lacal Engagement. With our sights set
firmly an our contribution to the 2020 Strategy we shall develop and share our view of Beyond 2020 and how
VisitScotland will meet the challenges and take the opportunities which lie ahead.

All of VisitScotland's work is directed towards growing and developing the sustainable and inclusive economic
benefit of tourism to Scotland’s visitor economy.

The Corporate Plan has been prepared in the wider context of the Scotland’s Economic Strategy (“SES”), and
to support and show our centribution to this, VisitScotland measures its performance through the National
Performance Framework.

Tha following diagram {overleaf) displays the manner of VisitScotland’s contribution:
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1.8 GENERAL BUSINESS QUTLOOK

Scotland’s Economic Strategy identifies the importance of teurism to the Scottish Economy, from supporting
fragile communities to promoting Scotland on a global stage. Whilst the industry continues to punch above its
weight these are uncertain economic and political times and decisions need, more than ever, 1o be based on
evidence to ensure maximum return on investment. By harnessing the power of data we will lock o provide
insights to our partners and stakeholders so that they too can make informed investment decisians.

Investment in People and Skills remains crucial if Scotland, and VisitScotland, are to become even mare
competitive on a global stage. Our People Strategy aims to nurture and develop all our staff providing them with
the skills required to flourish in today’s working environment.

Digital Skills and our ability, collectively, to convert business are key to our future success and VisitScotland will
continue to provide platforms for, and give advice to, our tourism community, with a focus on engaging the
digitally disengaged.

Our ambition to be the most sustainable tourism destination in Eurcpe remains and we will continue to
encourage sustainability through our Quality Assurance schemes whilst exploring what Quality means in this
digital age.

Our Insights team has a key role to play in ensuring that we have a common understanding of visitor trends,
their needs and expectations, in addition to their channel usage pre-arrival, on arrival and post-departure. This
will help shape how we provide information and services over the next 3-6 years. We will continue to sirive
towards best practice in the areas of Marketing Research, Economics, Trends and Statistical Analysis, Digital
Analytics and CRM.

This detailed knowledge of our customers and markets will support the Marketing strategy’s three key pillars:
inspiring portrayal of a modern Scotland; harnessing networks of influence and; empowering and enabling the
Scottish tourism industry with a particular emphasis on digital platforms.

The National Events Strategy guides our thinking in terms of creating a balanced portfolio of events in addition
to ensuring that we continue to support the events industry in its ambition to grow.

Our Business Events team will continue to drive forward the ‘Sectors Max" strategy, whereby all of our core
activity will focus on supporting and maximising the potential of Scotland’s key industry sectors particularly
through the Associations market in conjunction with Academic Ambassadors.

We will continue to ensure that tourism is for everyone through the work we are carrying out with partners in the
areas of accessibility and social tourism in additicn to the continued engagement with and support for our
panners within destination marketing organisations thereby spreading the econcmic benefit of the visitor
economy to all of Scotland.

VisitScotland will continue to develop its International Engagement at a corporate and functional fevel building
an the strategic relationships we have established in Europe, North Amarica and Asia-Pacific across the
disciplines of Marketing, Events and Quality, sharing best practice and growing Scotland’s reputation as a world
class destination.

There are certainly challenges ahead, and many opportunities, but the industry is resilient, growing in capacity,
capability and confidence and VisitScotland looks forward to seizing, together with its partners, those
opportunities which exist both at home and abroad to maximise our potential and grow the visiter ecenomy ina
sustainable and inclusive way.
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1.9 CURRENT ECONOMIC CLIMATE AND TOURIST TRENDS

ECONOMIC BACKGROUND"
United Kingdom

Cespite the UK being one of the strongest performing G7 economies since 2014, GDP growth has been
progressively slowing down on the back of slower consumer spending, and a softening of the services sector, as
well as the uncertainties surrounding the vote to leave the European Union {”Brexit”). Whilst the level of growth
of 1.8% in GDP during 2016 was driven by robust service sector growth of 2.8%, alongside growth of 2.4%, and
1.2% in the censtruction and production sectors respectively, a QTR 1 2017 result at 0.2%, following QTR 4 2016
at 0.7%, highlights the increasingly fragile nature of the UK economy. Conversely, the UK labour market has
remained buoyant throughout 2016 and into 2017 with the unempfoyment rate falling tc 4.6% in QTR 1 2017, and
levels of employment continuing te rise, with the current rate of 74.8% being the highest since comparative
records began in 1971.

Similarly, the Scottish economy has experienced a marked change from growth of 1.9% in 2015 down to 0.4% in
2016. Although the service sector grew by 1.6% in 2016, the construction and production sectors fell 3.3% and
4.4% respectively, and Q4 2016 was impacted by contractions in consumer focused subsectors, business services
and finance. However, most recent statistics showed that the Scottish economy grew by 0.8% in QTR 1 2017,
which is quadruple that of the UK, and an impressive rebound from a fall of 0.2% registered in QTR 4 2016.

The Scottish Labour market data has proved to be more resilient with QTR 1 2017 showing an unemployment
rate of 4.4% (down from a level of 6.1% at the start of 2016) which is now below that of the UK, Comparatively,
the employment rate of 74.0% {an increase from 73.1% in 2016) is now only 0.8% below that of the UK {74.8%),
with 2.62 million people in employment.

Global economy

Domestic demand in the Euro area continued to drive GDP growth in 2016 at an annual rate of 1.7%, and in QTR
1 2017 the Eurczone economy expanded at a rate of 0.6%, which was better than forecast, mainly boosted by
fixed investment and household consumption, and marked 16 successive quarters of positive growth. Most
recert seasonally adjusted unemployment figures indicate that in May 2017 year on year unemployment in the
Euro area registered 9.3%, reflecting a continuous fall from a figure of 10.2% in May 2016.

GDP growth in the United States increased in QTR 4 to 2.1%, however, current expectations for growth in 2017
are modest, with QTR 1 2017 displaying an annual rate of 1.4%, according to the "third" estimate released by the
United States Bureau of Economic Analysis. Figures for unemployment in the USA released in June 17 indicate
the unemployment rate to be at 4.4%, with the number of unemployed persons, at 7.0 million, being little
changed. Since January 2017, the unemployment rate and the number of unemployed are down by 0.4
percentage points and 658,000, respectively.

The IMF reported that Woerld economic growth strengthened through 2016 to 3.1%, reflective of more positive
outcomnes for global manufacturing, and trade, alongside increased business and consumer sentiment,

Looking forward

In the July 2017 update of its World Economic Outlook, the International Maonetary Fund {“IMF") forecast global
economic growth of 3.6% for 2017, and 3.6% for 2018, unchanged frem its April outlook, despite cutting its
cutlock for the United States, from 2.3% to 2.1% for 2017, and to 2.1% from 2.5% for 2018, together with
reducing its UK forecast for 2017 growth to 1.7% from 2.0%, while leaving 2018 at 1.5%. The downside of these
elements was offset with increased forecasts for many European countries, including Germany, France, Italy, and
Spain, and also with higher growth rates in China and Japan.

Far the Euro area, output is expected to grow at a rate of 1.7% - 1.8% in 2017, and between 1.6% - 1.7% in 2018
on the back of improving outcomes. Relative te the rest of the G7, quite strong growth is projected for the US
economy in 2017/18, as fiscal stimulus strengthens an already recovering economy.

Closer to home, the risks to growth for the UK and Scotland, in the short to medium term, are weighted down
due to the inereased political and ecenomic uncertainty surrounding Brexit. With the IMF cutting the UK’s growth
back, as indicated, to around 1.7% for 2017, forecasters are of the apinion that the likely GDP 2017 growth for
Scotland, following the improvement displayed by its QTR T 2017 result, is approximately 1.2%, with between
1.1% - 1.4% expected for 2018,

Brexit continues to present a significant risk to business and consumer sentiment in Scotland, with investment
sensitive to changing market signals. However, financial and business services in particular could benefit, with
tourist facing services — such as hotels, etc., — also potentially doing well both from increased overseas visitors
taking advantage of exchange rate factors, especially in the short-term, and a rise in “Staycations”.

The expectation beyond 2017 is one of increased uncertainty, with the economies of the UK and Scotland finely
balanced in the face of the many economic and palitical pressures impacting upon economic output,
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TOURISM PERFORMANCE IN SCOTLAND®

in Scolland, intarnational tourism apain performed strongly, with total spand by international visitors up 9.1%.
International vigits to Scotland in 2018, as againgt 2015, recorded an increase of 6%. North America performed
particularly well in 2018, with Canada having a 51% mcreasea in visits in 2016, The influx from Canada (rising to
dth plage] was principally due to tha exchange rate differential.

EU15E markels recordad a 4% decrease in visits from 2015 to 2016 and an 11% decreasc in expenditure, Ohar EU
countries experienced a 32% increase in visils betwean 2015 and 20186,

2014 2115 2016 % CHAMGE
Rank | Coumtry | Trips {000} {m’.:} Trips (000} 14-18 16-18
1 UsA 47 409 451 Up 8% Up 10%
2 Germany 343 323 3B5 Lip 3% Up 16%
3 France 181 196 152 Down 20% Down 22%
4 Canada 122 o8 149 Up 22% Up 51%
& Foland 138 B7 138 Mo Change Ip 59%

Source: (iFS, 2076/
Notably, Poland rose to fifth place with an increase arising mainly due to visiting friends and relatives {“VFR"}.

Other countries, outwith Europe and North America, had a 5% increase in visits, and a 6% increase in spend
between 2015 and 2016.

In 2016, 54% of international visitors to Scotland came for a holiday. VFR accounted for 28%, and business travel
for 15%. Holidays trips increased by 1%, while VFR increased by 29%

Total Qvernight Tourism Trips to Scotland 2011-2016

The number of overseas visitors to Scotland almost reached 2.75millicn in 2016 (the highest level reached since
2011). The number of domestic visits in 2016 registered 11.7 million, which was slightly down on 2015 figures.
The total of combined visits in 2016 reached 14.46 millian.

Total Overnight Tourism Trips to Scotland {2011-2018)

18,000
16,000
-~ 14,000 —— . i
= 12,000 — &
5 10,000
- £000
(=1
= 6,000
4,000
2,000 -’ 2
2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2015  Average
s Total U i tland Tri
ota KT"””:D';;‘;IS“’ andTrips 13208 13,006 12347 12,828 12,256 11714 12,658
- Tatal Overseas Tourism to Scotland
i 2,350 2,225 247 2,700 2,502 2,747 2,506
it Total (000's) 16,058 15321 14,768 15528 14,848 14,461 15164

Source: { GBTS, 2015, NISRA, 2018; IFS, 2016} {NISAA figures now included for complatenessf
Tatal Overnight Tauriam Expenditure to Scotland 2011-2016

In 2016 owerseas expenditure was £1.7bn, and domcstic expenditure reached a record £3.3bn. with owarall
Cwernight Tourism Expenditure in Scotland reaching £6.0bn. Domestic tourism expanditura has risen by 14% in
histaric prices from 2014, whilst ovarseas expenditure has declined by 8%, Owerall tourism expanditure has
growhn 8% sinca 2014, with a 10% growth from 2012 to 2075,

Dhverseas expenditure was £1.85bn in 2016, which was an increase of 9% an the figurc of £1.83bn for 215

Unfortunately, the figures in respect vf Domestic spand for 2016 {courlesy of Great Britain Tourism Survey
{"GETS") have nol been releascd by GETS, as yet [Saptamber 20171 The late publicatian of rasults for the 2018

17



VigitSeolland : Annual Report and Financial Slaterments for the Year Ended 31 March 2017

survey is due to a significant delay {as wa hava heen advised) in implemanting a new data processing
pragrammae by the research Agency.

Total Overnight Tourism Expenditureto Scotland (2011-2015)

B, 11
5,200
= 4,000
o
[T}
5 3 e _"/‘-‘ &
2 3,000
E=
[y
[
[w
5 2,000 .
- i S—— &
s =2 2y
1,000
2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 Average
st Toatal UK Tourtsm to Scotland
Expenditure (Em} 3,128 2,985 2,944 2,958 3,385 5,080
Total Cverseas Tourism ta
Scotlend Expenditure (£m} 1,434 1401 1,671 1,846 1,695 1,622
wares Tore [£m) 4,622 4,387 4,615 4,804 5,080 4,70%

Bource: ({GBTS, 2015 MESRA, 2076, IPS, 2018)
Firgt Quarter 2017 Tourism rasults

Figures announcead in the first quarter IPS publication ‘Chverseas Travel and Tourism: Quarter 1: 2017 7 show 3 1946
increase in overgeas visitors to Scotland. During this time, expenditure also increasad by almost 14% from a
leval of £167 million to £180 million. This was largely driven by EU15 markets, which were likely to benefit from
the favgurable exchange rates during this peried.

V0ialtScotand outcomes

VisitScotland continues 1o be proud of its succesgses in converting prospectiva tourists inte visitors to Scotland
and is working with the teurism industry morg clagely than ever befare. Investrnant in tourism and VisitSeotland
is an investment in scanomic, social and environmental sustainability, and the success of our activities
demonstrates that wa can stimulate economic growth in the shart and long term.,

In this respect, VisitScotland's role in being abla 1o stimulate economic growth is now firmly aetablished, and
this is borna out by results from cur marketing activity, and together with our partners we are all playing our part

in contributing 1o the aconomic recovery of Scotiang®,

Footnoles: Sounces

1 Delgitte 2013 Report: The ceomaemic conirfution of the toirism econamy in the LK - htto:/vmw, deloitte.com
2 HM Treasury Sreen Bock pravides guidance on how publicly funded bodies shuuld prapane and analyse proposed

poficies, proyrammes and projects to ofitain the bust public valve and Manage risks, [t afso covers (ke svalvation of
patipies programmos and prajscts after they fave Becnl implemarls fn 285628 SCanoMmic DETBIManse.

NMore fnfamnation can be found anling, ai:

hitps:/ivww.gov.ukigovernment/uplpads/system/uploads/attachment data/file/220541/areen book complete.pdf

3 Scorish Severnment (2018} -Seotand's Eppnemic Siratogy, Fok rons Infocmation go k)
hitp:www.gov.scot/Topics/EconomyEconomigStrategy
4. ONE — Offfce of Naticna! Staustics — Guartary Slatstios - O 2077,

Stata of the Seonomy - Dy Bany: Sillespie - The Scottish Governmurt — fune 2077
TIF 1A rled Bocancmric Outionk - Juf 2017

United States Econormic Stetisies - (Abgut.eom LIS ecorom )l oy 203 F

Undter Stater Boresw of Econertic Anafveis - (954} Juiv 2017

Uinited States Surasu of Lahor Sististics - (BLS) July 207 7

www. focus-economics.com/countries/united-states.
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University of Strathclyde and Fraser of Altander Economic Commientary — The Scottish Economy June 2017
PWEC UK economic outiook —July 2017

GBTS — Great Britain Tourism Survey

MISRA - Northern freland Siatistics and Research Agency

1P5 ~ Internationsal Passenger Survey

Tourism Visits and Expenditure — The Scottish Government
VisitScotiand insight Department - Monthly Trends & Siatistics.

Delivering for Seotiand - hitpvaww. visitscotland. ora/pdi’DeliveringForScotiand. pafl
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1.10 UTILISATION OF GOVERNMENT RESOURCE FUNDING
() GRANT-IN-AID RESOURCE (“GIA™)

The principal financial objective for VisitScotland is to ensure that the net financial cash outturn for the year is
within the Resource Budget allocated by the Scottish Ministers. The Resource Budget is provided to cover capital
{("CDEL") and revenue expenditure (on an accruals basis) {(“RDEL"}, and also ‘non-cash’ costs tncluding
depreciation, impairment, etc. The Resource Budget is supplemented by the generation of retail and commercial
income, local authority funding, European grants, and other income.

A further non-targetable budget allocation is made by the Scottish Government to cover valatile costs such as
pension, provisions and write-downs, which, by their nature, are not necessarily capable of being controlled to
the same extent as items charged to the Resource Budget. This non-cash budget allowance is designated
Annually Managed Expenditure (“AME").

[ RDEL | [ RDEL | [ CDEL | [ GIA |
EXPENDITURE INCOME CAPITAL CASH RESOURCE
£'000 £000 £1000 £'000

- - Tt G

=) . o
P
& & @ o Q ™~
o~ ~ o P~ 2 M
5 - >
T <
<t
e [ ] _— @ @——
2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016
2017 RDEL EXPENDITURE BY ACTIVITY 2017 RDEL INCOME BY SECTOR
g . Enterprise Agengies 1.19 % Cther Income
Partnerships 7.97 % upport Servicas 11.83% m\ - 7.95%

Local

Authority

Funds

14.18 %

Marketing 80.20%

Retail & Commarcial
Income 76.68%

£1000 R g |

! ALLOCATION £'000
NON-CAEH Lhilisation £000 SRS NON-CASH AME e
il Utilisation £'000 I
0 580 1,000 1500 2,000 2,500 0 1,000 2,000 3,000 4,000 5000

NON-CASH DEL utilisation includes depreciation, amortisation, and impairment

NON-CASH AME utilisation includes 1AS 19 pension adjustments - VS is NOT measured on this Qutturn
RDEL = Resource Departmental Expenditure Limit.

CDEL = Capital Departmental Expenditure Limit.
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{Il STATEMENT OF RESCURCE OUTTURN

For the vear anded 31 March 2017 VisitScotland was successful in achiaving its main financial objective for tha
year, which was te ensure that the financial cutturn for the year was within the Agsource Budpet allocated by tha
Scoitish Ministers

Tha Staternent of Resource Clutturn shown below [page 22} reflects VisitScotland's achisvemnaent against the
respective alaments of its overall Resource Budget allocation, in so far as the net ‘cash’ Revenue expanditure
outturn was underspant by £12.000 in relatian to a Revenue Budget allocation of £43,184,000. The Capital
gxpanditure budget allocation of £600,000 was underspant by £12,803.

The 'non-cash’ outturn was C2,214,000. Thiz was an under-utilisation of £368,000, as against an gllocated target
of £2.530,000.

In respect of VisitSootland's AME allocation for the year anded 31 March 2017, the outturn produced an under-
spand of £1,875,000 wilh regard to this non-core ‘non-cash’ budgat, against which YisitScotland is not measured.

A CASH OUTTURN
Core CASH Revenue Expenditure

The core revenue ‘cash budget’ is funded from the Grant-in-Aid provision by Scottish Ministers, through the
Scottish Government's Business Directorate for Culture, Tourism and Major Events. For 2016/17 this core
revenue grant amaunted to £43,184,000 (2016: £44,432,000), a decrease of £1,238,000.

The expenditure of £40,880,000 in respect of marketing activities represented 80% of the core revenue Gross
Expenditure for the vear, as reported in the Statement of Resource Outturn (2016: £45,799,000 {83%]).
Partnership and Support Services expenditure totalled £10,100,000 which was an increase of £685,000 year on
year.

Retail, commoercial, and other income

The supplementary income generated, comprising Retail, Commercial, and Other Income, fell back from
£10,859,000 to £7,870,000, & decrease of £2,989,000. The principal reason for the reduction in Other Income arises
from the fact that monies provided by the Scottish Government in 2016, towards the Scottish Open, and the
Solheim Cup 2019 { in total a sum of £2,715,000), were contributed via particular departments’ budgets, whereas,
in 2017 all monies have been provided direct via core GlA.

Further analysis of areas of income and expenditure can be found in Notes 3 to 6, on pages 62 to 63 of these
financial statements.

Cora CASH Capital Expenditure

The core capital expenditure ‘cash budget’ is also funded from Grant-in-Aid, and for 2016/17 this grant amounted
to £800,000 (2016: £500,000}. After in year adjustments, and capital disposals, expenditure amounted to £787,197,
a shortfall of £12,803.

The main additions have been £315,410 on the ongoing refurbishmant and improvements to the network of
VisitScotland Information Centres, and local offices, together with £471,787 on IT hardware and computer
equipment upgrades.

B NON-CASH OUTTLAN
MNon-Core Revanua Expanditure

Depreciation, amortisation and impairment charges, ete, amounted to £2,214,000 (2018; £2,580,000) and
reflected an under-utilisation of the resourca allocation by £368,000 against the non-cash allowance pravided of
£2,550,000 (2016 £2,580,000].

Mon-Core Annually Managed Expenditure (*AME®)

The under-utilisation of £1,875,0000 with regard to the non-cors AME budget of £5000,000, arose from the
charge for net pension service costs and return on agsets ansing in the year of £3,1256,000 {2018; [3,714,000}, as
determined by Actuaries, charged in accordance with the acceunting treattment under 1AS 18 "Employes
Banafits” [See Mote 21).

REDUCED CORE (1A

The averall amount of the Grant-in-Aid available to VisitScotland for 201617 was £43,954,000 {RDEL: £43,184.000
+ CDEL: £800,0001, which was a reduction on 2016 of £938,000.
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VISITSCOTLAND
STATEMENT OF RESOURCE OUTTURN

Visiticatland's Total Regource Outturn including core Aevenue and non-core Revenue Expenditura get
against its Grant In Aid from Scottish Government for the year ended 31 Marsh 2017 was as follaws:

'CASH' OUTTURN

CEORE REVENLIE EXPENCDITURE

QOPERATING COSTS

2017 2018

E'000 £'000
Marketing activities 40,880 45 79y
Partnership engagement 4,065 3,614
Suppaort sarvices 6,031 5.801
Gross expenditure (refer balow) 50,980 56,214
Met finance tosts & taxation 72 77
Gross expenditure aftar finance costs & taxation 51,052 55,241
Income
Retail and commercial [6.035) 16,939
Qlher income [1.8358) 4,82
Wet expendilure 43,182 44 432
CORE CAPITAL EXPENDITURE
Payments to acquire fixed agsets 787 AOD
Total net expenditure 43,969 44,932
FUNDED BY  Grant-in-Aid (43,994) (44,522
MET 'CASH' (UNDERSPEND / OVERSPEND 126

£'000 £'04a4

'MON - CASH' OUTTURN

NON-CORE REVENUE EXPENDITURE
Depreciation ! Amortisatian f Impairment ! surplus on de recognition 2,214 2580

2,114 2,580
FLINDED BY Grant-in-Aid 12 680} [2,580)
NON-COBE BEVENUE (UNDERSPEND) # OVERSPEND {36E]
NON-CORE Annuatiy Menaged Expenditure (AME}
Pension Costs - |AS 19 adjustments (Naote 211 3126 3,714
FUNDED BY Grant-in-Aid [B,000) 13,0001
NOM-CORE AME (UNDERSPEND) s ENVERSFEND {1,875] 714
Reconcilistion of Statement of Resource Outturn to the Staterment of Comprehensive Net
Expenditura {*SOCNE"]

£'000 £ 000
Gross expenditure on a rasource basis, as per Cash Qutturn 50,380 Bh,214
Add. Depreciation, amortisation and impairment, etc. { Non-Cash) 2,214 2 580

B3,194 57,794

Add: 145 19 adjustments | Mon-Cach - Mote 21 ) 3,125 3,714
Gross expendilure on an IFRS hasi, as reporled as per SOCNE (page 48) 56,319 [ 61,508]
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1.11 FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE ANALYSIS
(Il STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE NET EXPENDITURE

The statemant of comprehensive net axpenditure for the year, on page 48, shows nct operating expendilure aftar
taxalion of 48,521,000 {2016 £50,726,000, a dacrease of £2,206 000, This has arisen primarily as a result of the
combination af a reduction in resource expenditure of £4,600,000 and income of £2 983 000.

a}  Gross axpendlture {including staff & administration costs

. Markeling activity - a decrease uf £5,326,000
The reduction in expanditure has been impacted by tha decraase in ovarall Income [(See (¢
Ratail & Commercial Income, and Chher income, together with the raduced Grant in Aid

allowance.

- Partharsnip cngagement — an increasa of £483,000, as impacted by voluntary severance costs of
£275.000,

. Supporl services = an increase of £313,000, being that associated with voluntary severance
Ccosts,

. Pension Scheme costs — a dacrease of £588,000

h} Staff costs (Noto 3) and Administration overheads {Note &)

Staff and Administration costs

[ Ineludad within Grose Resourcs Expenditure |

Merl Inlarest - Ponsion Assets
Travel & Hospilalily
Cperating Lease Ranluls

Daprecialicon & Impairment
Property, IT & Offico
Pension Casts

Voluntary Redundancy
Prirmary salary costs

£33,468,000 £33,5218,000
2017 20146

These coste, as roported on page 62 are included within Gross Resource Expandiure, and the principal spand
variances compared to last yoar are as follows:-

. Total staff costs — an ovarall increase of C995,000 reflects a risa in payroll S voluntary severance
expenditurc of £1,471,000, offset by a dacrease in Pension Current Sarvice costs of E476,000.

Met interest cost — Fension azsets — a decrease of £26,000.

. Traval & hospitality — a redugtion of £114,0040,

. Property, | T and office axpenses — a decrease of £860,000. This reduction arises, principally, from a
rolcaze of leasehold propertics attributable dilapidations provisions that can materialise upon
termination of cstate |leases. During the year a number of leases came to an end, and together with a
review of the overall estate, the provisicns wera raduced by £657.000. In addition, |IT costs underwent a
decrease of £87,000,

. Operating |ease rontals — a decrease of £116,000.

- Trade bad deht writa dawns and provisions — an incraasa in the movement by {46,000,

' Amaortisation, depreciation, impairment, ete, — & deg¢rease of £368 000.
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cl Retail & Commercial Incame | Mote 5) and Cther Income | Nata 6)

Retall & Commercial Incoma {ther income

[ JRetail

.Miscella noanus
.Dthar Government Funding

DEntrapnse Agancies

Sundr','

DEumpean Funds

|:|Ctu ality Agsurance

[ Local Authority

D Businoss Fremotion

£6,035,000 £6,928,000 £1,835.000 £4,920,000
2m7 2016 2017 206

Retadl end Commerciaf fncome (Note 5) has shown an overall increase of £96,000, and comprisas:-

. Met Retail sales — a degrease of £77,.000
. Business Promotion & Advertising and Quality assurance — @ decrease of £280,000
. Miscellancous Incame - an increase of £4532,000

Cther fncorme (Note 6) displays a decrease year on year of £3,085, 000, being made up of:-

. Other Governmerl Department funding - a decrease of £2,715,000 - Monies providad by the 5G in
2016 towards the Scottish Open and the Solheim Cup 2019 were contributed via particular departonents
budgets, whereas, in 2017 all monies have been provided via cora GlA.

. Eurcpean Regional Development Fund [“ERDFT) - a dacreage of C265,000, Regulatory constraints
surrcunding access to ERDF monies reduced ingame fram this source to nil in the year.

. Local Authority ingome - a reduction of £401,000, reflective of increased budgetary restraints axergised
by Local Autharities.

. Entarprise Agenties & sundry incoma = an increase of £296,000,

{Other comprehansive expenditure / income {page 49)

As portrayed, this includes surpluses arising un the revaluation of praperties of [29,000 {2016 £332,000}, togethar
with the transfer of surpluses rorm Revaluation Raserve to General Reserve in respect of tha expiry of Finance
Leases amounting to £409,000 {2016: £51,000).

In additian, in acesrdance with the requirements to account for defined banafit pensions under Internationai
Accounting Standard 18 ‘Employse Benefils’ (A5 18), the movament in the combined pension schemes asset
valuation for the yaar, a surplus of £1,706,000 {2D16: Surplus of £8,418,000], is shown, which is recognised in the
Statement of Financial Position.
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il STATEMENT OF FINANMCIAL POSITION AT THE END OF THE YEAR

The VisitScotland statcment of financial position at 21 March 2017, on page 50, reflects a net liabililies position of
£34, 745,000 {2016; £31,353,000}. The increase of £3,322,000 ariges, pradominantly, as a result of the combined
pension schemey’ deficit having now incressed to 36,122,000 (2016: £34,110,000), which, dependent upon
markat fluctuations, and the assumptions takan in assessing the actuarial net pension liahility under 1AS 18, can
vary from yaar to yoar, accordingly.

{ll} BASIS OF FREFARATION AND GOING CONCERN

Tha financial statements have been prepared on a going concern hasis, which assumeas that VisitScotland will
¢ontinue in pperational existence for the foreseeahls future. To the extent that the net liakilibies are notto be mct
from YisitScotland's other sources of income, thess liahilities may anly be met by future grants or Grant-in-Aid
fram the Scottish Governmant. This is because, under the normal conventions applying to the parliamenlary
control ovar income and expenditure, such grants may not be issued in advance of need, and insofar as approval
for Grani-in-Aid for 2017418 has already been given, thare is no reason to believe that future approwvals will not ba
fortheoming.

(31 this basis, the Board considers it apprapriate to prepare the financial statermnents on a going concarn basis.
iy CASH BALANCES

VisitScotland does nat retain any cash reserves, other than monies required to meet authorised expenditurg
accrued at the year end.

v} PAYMENT TO CREDITORS

VisitScotland aobsarves the Scottish Goverhment's policy for prompt payment to ¢redilers, and is committed ta
paying suppliers within 10 days of receipt of 2 valid invoice. An analysis of invoices recewved between T April
2016 and 31 March 2017 shows that VisitScotland paid 89% of valid invoices recaived within 10 working days.
{2016: 83%.)

1.12 PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

VisitScotland has a risk management policy setting out a robust process for identifying and evaluating the risks
which it faces in trying to achieve its objectives. A Carporate Risk Register is maintained, which not only
identifies all the high level risks which impact on the whole organisation and are likely to affect the achievement
of objectives contained in the annual operating plan, but also it contains lower level risks which affect specific
areas of operation within VisitScotland.

In addition, there are specific sub-Risk Registers (linked to the Corporate Risk Register) which cover major
corporate projects, events, etc., in greater detail that are ongoing at any paint in time. In this way, risks are
identified and monitored at department level, and, individually, fer key projects, and managed accordingly.

VisitScotland categorise risk by four levels, which are, very high; high; medium; and low. All the risks evident in
VisitScotland’s registers are tracked throughout the year, and the table below highlights the management of the
six highest risks as at the end of last year through to March 2017, These risks remain the most significant to the
organisation as at 31 March 2017,

There have been no risks categorised as very high during the year.

Alzk Descriptlon Progress with Mitlgation n the year

There is a risk of tha impact of macro-economic | VisitScotland  continues  to  analyse  insight  and
factors such as austerity, exchanpe fluctuations, | recommendations an trends, focussing on high valug
consumear income and spending impacting in the | markets. Exchange rate fluctuaticns have madae the cost
Vigitor EConmgrmy. of marketing abroad maore expensive as well as making
Seotland a cheapar placo to visit,

There is a risk of hatural disastar, along the lines of | The organization, with others, monitors for horizon
foot and mouth / “bird flu”, or terrerism impacting | threats @nd  participates in tha Scoitish  Tourism
the Yisitor Economy. Emargancy Response Group, VisitGeotland has its own
Buginass Continuity plan which is tested each year.

Dieficit planning with ragard to the BTB pension | BETE schema

schame identifies a large ingreaga in amployer +  The underlying issus is the perceived value of

contributions.  Reducing membership of Local the amploysrs’ Guarantse. An integrated Risk

Gavernmeant Pengion Schemes brings the risk of Management Repart was propared to support

closing the schemes, significantly increasing in year this position, and & request has been made to

employer contributions, Govarnment for @ legally binding guarantaa
fram them.
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LGPE schemes
« A |egally binding guarantea hags haan provided
by Government and VisitScotland are working
with SPFA en ravised guidance when thare are
ng active employees in a scheme,

Thera iz 3 rigk that a reduced Scottish Government
budget allocatiors will mean that the spend hudgets
are reduced, negatively impacting the returns which
VisitScotland could produce for Scotland,

YisitSoolland will cantinue to seek to reinforce with tha
Scottish Government the contribution of the Visitar
Economy and VisitScotland to the wider Scottsh
Economy. In addition it looks, through its planning
processes, 10 prioritise funds to activities which produce
appropriate returns and will implament efficiency plans
which will reallocate fundg or absorb, in pert. any
raductians.

Thaera is a risk thal VisdScotland does not attract
and / or retain key skills across tha grganisation,
which will impact the delivarance of 15 ambitious
business plans.

A new  Talemt Management scheme iz being
implemented by the organisation in association with a
Learning Flam, which ingludes a Dhgital Development
elemant. We continue 10 look at our benefits packages
and grading structure,

There is 3 risk that nen-Government funding
income generation plans are insufficient to mest
tha long tarm objactives of the organisation.

Late in the financial year VisitScotland were advised by
the Managing Authority for the European Regional
Devalgprmeant Fund pregram that it had withdrawn its
approval for the orgeanisation’s program in the Small 10
Medium sized Business [(*SME”} argna, This late
withdrawal was well managed by the organisation,
however, it does place 3 strain on income which tha
proanisalion 1s now looking to replace.

Looking forward, other uncertaintios that VigitScotland, as an organisation, are faced with include:

= Ensuring effective support for, and parinership with, tourism businasses as the industry responds to the
requiramants of gtrengthening the Scottish, and United Kingdarm econamies,

*  Emnzuring the investrment in information digital technology is maximised for the benefit of the Taurism
industry in the deliverance of the wider agonemic and community benefit,

= The uncertainties arising fram the impending departure of the Unitad Kingdom from the European Union
Community, and resultant impact on VisitScotland's stratagic and aperational culcomes,

1.13 PUBLIC INTEREST REPORTING

Informatlon request procazging

&5 & publicly-funded organisation, VisitSeotland is committed to full compliance with the Freedom of Infarmation

{Scotland) Act 2002 {FOISA),

= In2018-17, VisitSeotland received 21 information enquirigs. {2016 29 )
»  Number of appeals 10 the Office of the Scottish Information Commissioner; 1 [2018: Mil §

Proactive disclosure of Information

The VisitScotland website contains details of our publication scheme and information which we routinely
publish: http:J//’www.visitscotland.orgfabout usfour policies/freedom of information.aspx

Under the Public Servicas Refarm {Scotland) Act 2010 we have, along with other public bodies in Scotland, a
duty to publigh annyal public statements relating 1o our expanditdre in the following areas:

«  Fublic relations

= Ovarseas travel

= Hospitality and enterainmant

s External consultancy

«  Payments with a value in axcess of £25,000

«  Employees/membears whg receive remuneration in excess of £150,000

VisitScotland’s Annual Raport and Financial Statements can be downloadad from tha VigitScotland website:
http://www.visitscotland.org/about us/our focus/annual report.aspx

1.14 LONG TERM EXPENDITLRE TRENDS

VisitBecotland’s expenditura is principally governed by the funding provided by the Scottish Government through
grant-in aid, and the raceipt of retail, commercial and other income.
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The respective amounts drawn down associated with these principal areas of funding over the last six years
together with the indicative budget for 2017/18 are set out in the bar chart below,

70
60
50
40
11 Cthar incomea
7 Aetail & Commerclal
30 Income
O SG Grent in Aid - Cepital
20 L SG Grant in Aid -
Rewvenue
10
D —_— _— — — - ———_— —
£rm £m £rm £m £m £rm £fm
2011-12 2012-13 2013-14 201415 2015-16 2016-17 2017-18
Budget
Notes:

i} Scottish Government Grant in Aid funding for 2017-18 is based on indicative figures as provided by
the Government.
i} The above figures exclude the Non-Cash allowance and AME allowance made each year,

1.1& CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY
Environmental performance and sustaingble economic development

The Sceltish Government has set ambitious climate change targets: to reduce Scotland's greenhouse das
icarbon emissions) by 80% by 2050, with an interim reduction of 42% by 2020, against a 200E/09 bascline,

VizitScotland, as the lead public body far touriem, is committed to achieving best practice in not only its own
performanca managament in relation 1o swstainability, and reduction of carbon emissions, but also to encourage
and assist the tourism industry to follow its lead in support of the Sowvernment’s targets. In so doing,
YisitScotland's management has aligned its operational aclivilies 1o meet its obligations under The Climats
Change (Scotlandt Act 2009, which requires all public bodies to exercise their functions in a way that bast
conlributes to tha Act's emission reduction targets and daelivery of climate change programmes thraugh
mitigation and adaptatian.

VisitScotland continues to wark through Sustainable Scotland Network in the angeing development of its Carbon
Managemant Plan ["CMP®). This has brought the benefit of significant cost savings and reductions in
greenhouse nas amissions for the arganisalion, n accordance with the aforementioned Act,

The table below tracks our progress to date:

CO2 Emissions {tn) 08-10 10-11 1112 12-13 13-14 14-15 16-16 16-17
Buildings- Energy | 2,512 | 2,143 | 1745 | 1841 | 1613 | 1398 | 1,177 | 1052
Transport 508 253 431 373 321 383 371 316
Emissions Total 3,020 | 2,586 | 2,176 | 2,014 | 1934 | 1777 | 1548 | 1,368

TARGET 3,073 2,839 2,669 2,535 2,408 2,288 2,174 2,085

bl il 7% 20% | 33% 8% | 40% | 46% | 62% 58%
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As at 31 March 2017, VisitScotland has achieved a 58% reduction in CO; emissions, which exceeds the 2020
target of 42%. This also exceeds the new more ambitious target of a 50% reduction by 2020 currently proposed
as part of the new Climate Bill, which is currently with Scottish gavernment for consultation.

In comparison with 2015-16 VisitScotland achieved a 12% reduction in CO2 emissions. The emission reduction
continues to be achieved through a programme of increasing efficiency, driving down rescurce use (e.g. energy
use in buildings, business travel and water use}, waste reduction, as well as changes within the VisitScotland
estate.

VisitScotland alsc supports the work of Zero Waste Scotland {(*ZWS”) to achieve the waste prevention and
recycling targets within the hospitality and tourism sector. We have pledged both to reduce waste arising from
the organisation’s internal operations, and increase waste recycling in line with the Scottish Government's

targets.Jr

During 2016/17 VisitScotland undertook a complete review of waste and recycling aperations at all sites to
enable us to enhance the accuracy of the outcomes. The result of this exercise has meant that whilst, hitherto,
we have declared that VisitScotland has reduced its overall waste by 45% from the baseline year 2012/13, the
updated recycling figure is 55%.

We have pledged to both reduce waste from the erganisaticn’s internal operations and increase waste recycling
in line with the Hospitality Food Services Agreement {HaFSA) targets supported by the Scottish Government. We
shall be exploring how we can support the overall targeted outcomes of this voluntary agreement, as weli as
giving consideration to the pramotion of ‘Courtauld 2025’ being relevant to the Industry. We also suppart the
Scottish Government target introduced in 2016 as part of ‘Making Things Last - A circular econamy strategy for
Scotland’ to reduce food waste by 33% by 2025, through providing advice and information to industry, as well as
our internal operations, where relevant,

In addition, VisitScotland improved its environmental performance across the business, for example, with an
increase to almost 30% of premises certified under Green Business Tourism Scheme at Geld standard level; an
ongoing increase in e-brochure availability; and implementation of Carrier Bag Charge (Scotland} Regulations
across our iCentre network. As a signatory to the Carrier Bag Commitment, in the year to 31 March 2017, the
iCentre network provided customers with 29,546 chargeable bags. This is approximately a 17% reduction in
carrier bag sales from the previous year, and an estimated reduction cf 88% from before the charge was
implemented. The net proceeds of £1,232 generated from carrier bags sales in 2016/17 will be donated to
environmental good causes, as agreed with ZwWS.

Social and community issues

A key action of VisitScotland strategic plans is to help enhance the quality of life for Scottish communities.
VisitScotland is doing this not anly through promoting local accommodation, events, attractions and products to
vigiters, but also continuing to work in partnership with a number of agencies to ensure that tourism improves
the quality of life for local communities and involves them in tourism planning and management. The
Partnerships team participates in local tourism partnerships across the country in order to support growing the
visitor economy throughout Scotland.

VisitScotland fully supports the link between these tourism partnerships and Community Planning in order to
ensure that the tourism sector, including VisitScotland, participate in the community planning pracess and the
on-going design, development and implementation of each Community Planning Partnership’s Local Outcome
Improvement Plan.

In addition, VisitScotland works closely with ZWS and Scottish Future Trust to further develop sustainable
procurement within our corporate culture, by taking proper account of sustainability in our procurement activity,
in accordance with the Sustainable Procurement Action Plan for Scotland 20089.

External Facing Sustainability Activity

We not only recognise our influence among tourism businesses in helping Scotland meet not only its climate
change targets, but alsc follow its Circular Economy strategy, and other relevant sustainable development
strategies. In so deing, we are encouraging and supporting businesses and destinations to become more
sustainable and we are committed to ensuring the industry continues to innavate.

During 2016/17 VisitScotland has continued to encourage and support a wide range of tourism businesses to
make some meaningful progress with regards to their sustainability. Since January 2015 we have incorporated
minimum sustainability requirements into our Quality Assurance scheme. For each of following years (2016 and
2017), we have increased the minimum requirements for all industry sectors in order to encourage continuous
improvement. Advice and support on becoming more sustainable and resource efficient is provided to
businesses through the Quality and Tourism Advisors, the Better Business Guides and Factsheets, as well as
working in partnership with Resource Efficient Scotland and Green Tourism.

The Year of Innovation, Architecture and Design in 2016, provided a great opportunity for businesses and
destinations across Scotland to showcase how they support sustainability through innovation and design, as

£ To reduce fpod and aseocistad Rackging wasts aneing by 5% by the end of 2015 frnm baseling year Z018733 and increase
e mveral ratg of food and packaging wasts being recyoled, sent i anasrodic digustion (AD) ur composiad to at least 70% by
e ond of 2015,
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well as highlighting some of the great examples of incorporating sustainability in architecture. For example, we
did a series of regional stories in our e-update with case studies on Green Tourism businesses, highlighting
innovative actions they implemented to make them more sustainable.

The Year of History Heritage and Archaeclogy In 2017 will sustain and build upon the momentum of the
preceding Themed Years to spotlight, celebrate and promote Scotland's rich and vibrant History, Heritage and
Archaeology in arder to engage and attract the people of Scotland and our visitors. This will also support one of
VisitScotland’s Sustainability Objectives to promote Scotland’s natural and cultural heritage to visitors and
suppert the activities of organisations responsible far its protection and enhancement.

The efforts to increase the sourcing and profile of Scottish Food and Drink, and thus supporting the Scottish
Food and Drink industry, have been reinforced by the increased number of businesses that have achieved
VisitScotland’s Taste Cur Best accreditation, which showcases businesses that provide and promote a quality
Scottish Foed and Drink experience. By the end of the 2016/17 financial year 1,199 businesses had achieved our
‘Taste QOur Best’ accreditation, which is an increase of 11% on the previous year.

Accessible Tourism

Increased engagement of businesses and partners on Accessible Tourism is ensuring a positive visitor journey
for all visitors to Scotland and highlights an excellent development oppartunity for many businesses, and with
over 900 registrations for our online accessible training, VisitScotland ig supporting tourism businesses to
increase awareness of equality issues and confidence in communicating with disabled people, and, in
conjunction with VisitEngland, we are working on a jeint project, which will improve and make it easier for
businesses to provide useful and practical information on access facilities and features within their business. A
number of regional business workshop events took place and we engaged with over 300 tourism businesses
promoting the business and customer benefits of accessible tourism.

In support of VisitScotland’s Corporate Plan and its cammitment to inclusive growth, as well as the Scottish
Government's Economic Strategy, VisitScotland has begun to explore how the tourism sector can contribute to
social inclusion, and how we work with partners to explore how social tourism can be developed at national
level.

This work has invelved two pilot projects in 2016, which tagether enabled vulnerable and disadvantaged families
in Scotland — many of them excluded from participating in tourism by poverty — to experience the magic of a
short break ar day out in their awn country. This was made possible through a VisitScotland partnership with a
registered charity - The Family Haliday Association, and the tourism industry. In tatal, 254 families were able to
enjoy a much-needed break or day cut, with significant benefits far their health and wellbeing. The project was
supported at Ministerial level and the resulting awareness of the importance - and potential — of inclusive
tourism generated a debate in the Scottish Parliament, at which inclusive tourism and initiatives of this kind were
given cross-party support.

VisitScotland’s involvement in this project is to be found at;

https:/fwww familyholidayassociation.org.uk/?s=visitScotland

Looking ahead, VisitScotland is committed to supporting sustainability and inclusive activities, both internal and
industry facing, commensurate with the Scottish Government’s aim as set out in its Budget for 2017/18 of
ensuring the sustainability of our public services and the deliverance of better cutcomes for those that use them.

VisitScotland now provides contributory figures to the annual publications on Climate Change produced by the
Charity “Keep Scatland Beautiful’ ("KSB”), which can be found on their website HERE

For further details and information see the VisitScotland Annual Sustainability Report that can be found at
hitp://www.visitscotland.ora/about us/our focus.aspx

A
%
Malcolm Roughead OBE

Chief Executive
VisitScotland
/X QOctober 2017.
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ACCOUNTABILITY REPORT
2.1 THE CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

21.1  DIRECTORS REPORT
THE BOARD

The Chair and Board Members are appeinted by the Scottish Ministers in accordance with the Code of Practice
for ministerial appointments to public bodiss issued by the Public Appointmants Commissioner for Scotland. The
Board operates two sub-committees, These are the Audit & Risk Committes, and the Remuneration Commitee,
which, during the year, was reconstituted to be a formal meeting of the Board, as required, and its woark is
considared in the Remuneration and Staff Report.

The Board Members whao held offica during the year, and their respactiva committee memberships, wera as
foflows:

The Rt. Hon. tha Viscount Thurso [Chairl + ¢ Appointed 1 &pril 2018
Professar Anne Anderson+

Rebacea Brooks+

Catherine Craig+

Gordon Dewars+ *

Stephan Dunlop+ *

=tephen Hagan+

Carolyn Jameson+*

Calum Ross+*

Caraline Raxburgh+* : Appointed 15 Movembar 2016

* Member of the Audit & Risk Committee during the year.
+ Member of the Board Remuneration Committer during tha yvear,

ZENIOR MANAGEMENT TEAM

The Execulive Senior Managament Team comprises the Chief Executive, and four Directors, They arg
responsible for tha day to day management of VisitScotland's activilies and operations,

Executive Senior Management Team members who held office during the year were as follows:

Malcolm Roughead QBE Chiaf ExacUtive

Riddell Grakham Directar of Partnerships

K.en Meilson Director of Corporats Services
Paul Bush OEE Director of Events

Charles Smith Diractor of Marketing

I addition, the Head of Human Resources attends Executive Senior Managernent Team meetings. Information
on the salary and pension antitlemenls of the Chief Executiva and Executive Senior Managemeant Team can be
found in the Remunaration and Staff Report on page 37.

VisitScotland racognises the gender imbalance on the Executive Senior Management Taam and is actively
supparting and developing talent for the futura across the organisatian to addrass the situation. In recegnition of
thig, as from 1 April 2017, we have reconfigured our operational sgnior management team under the banner of
the ‘Leadership Group’. This new group includes the existing Executive teem, together with senior mambers of
staff from across the organisation who have a diract infiuenee on the key challenges and opportunities which
YizitScotland will face in the future, and will ensure grester transparancy around the links between high level
strateqy and activity on tha ground.

REGISTER OF BOARD MEMBERS' INTERESTS

Visit3cotland supports the highast standards of Carporate Govarnance, and has in place Codes of Conduct, bath
for Board Members and stafl. In compliance with tha Ethical Standards in Public Life etc. {Scotland) Act 2000,
VisitScotland's Code of Conduct for Board Membars is published on our corporate wehsita, togsther with the
Registar of Board Members Interest, which containg deteils of company directorships and other significant
intarests held by Board Membars, at the following address:-

http://www.visitscotland.org/about us/our structure/the board.aspx.
Short bivgraphies of the members of the Board can also ba found at this website sddress.
PERFORMAMCE REFORT

In aceordance with section 414 {g} (11) of the Companies Act 2006, VisitScotland has chosen to include sevaral
matters in the Parformance {& Strategy) Report which would otherwizse be included in the Diractors’ Repart.

These matters are:-

» Review of business and perforrmance against key performance indicators
* Future developmants
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a Sustainability and environmental matters
« [nformation about employees and social and community issues

FUNDING

VisitScotland’s primary source of funding is Grant in Aid from the Scottish Government. The initial Grant in Aid
allocation for 2017/18 is £43.23 millicn and together with in year budget revisions and funds generated by
VisitScotland from the use or sale of assets, and other partner contributions are deemed adequate for funding
the arganisation’s operating businass plan for the ensuing year.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

VisitScotland has exposure to liquidity, credit and market risks from its use of financial instruments. The extent
of these risks is set out in Note 22 to the financial statements

RETHREMENT BENEFITS

Details of pension schemes in use by VisitScotland ¢can be found in note 21 to the financial statements. The
Remuneration and Staff Report (pages 37 - 44} contains specific disclosures relating to Directors’ pensiohs.

DATA LOSS

During the financial year there have been no incidents invelving unauthorised exposure or loss of personal data
that have required reporting to the Information Cormmissioner’s Office.

STATEMENT AS TO DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION TO THE AUDITOR

The Executive Senior Management Team who heid office at the date of approval of the annual report and
financial statements confirm that, so far as they are each aware, there is no relevant audit information of which
VisitScotland’s auditors are unaware, and each member of the team has taken all necessary steps that he ought
to have taken to make himself aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that VisitScotland’s
auditors are also aware of that information.

AUDITOR

VisitScotland’s annual report and financial statements are audited by auditors appointed by the Auditor General
for Scotland, in accordance with Section 6{4} of the Development of Tourism Act 1969, The appointed auditor for
the year ended 31 March 2017 was Audit Scotland.

The fees payable for audit services provided by the appointed auditors in the year to 31 March 2017 were £68,370
{2016: £71,000). There were no fees payable to Audit Scotland for non-audit work during the year (2016: £ Nil.).

2.1.2 STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTABLE OFFICER'S RESPONSIBILITIES

Under Sectich 6{1) of the Development of Tourism Act 1969 the Scottish Ministers have directed VisitScotland to
prepare for each financial year a statement of accounts in the form and on the basis set out in the Accounts
Direction, which is reproduced on page 46 of these financial statemeants.

The financial statements are prepared on an accruals basis and must give a true and fair view of the state of
affairs of VisitScotland, and of its net resource outturn, application of resources, changes in taxpayers’ squity
and cash flows for the financial year.

In preparing the financial statements the Accountable Officer is required to comply with the requirements of the
Government Financial Reporting Manual and in particular to:

a) observe the Accounts Direction issued by the Scottish Ministers, including the relevant accounting and
disclosure requirements, and apply suitable accounting policies on a consistent basis;

b} make judgements and estimates on a reasonable basis;

¢} state whether applicable accounting standards as set cut in the Government Financial Reporting Manual
have been followed, and disclose and explain any material departures in the financial statements;

d} prepare the financial statements on a going concern basis.

In accordance with section 15 of the Public Finance and Accountability {Scotland} Act 2000, the Permanent
Secretary, as the Principal Accountable Officer for the Scottish Administration, has designated the Chief
Executive as Accountable Officer of VisitScotland.

The respansibilities of an Accountable Officer, including responsibility for the propriety and regularity of the
public finances far which the Accountable Qfficer is answerable, for keeping proper records and far safeguarding
VisitScotland’s assets, are set out in "Managing Public Money” published by HM Treasury.

As the Accountable Officer, as far as | am aware there is no relevant information of which VisitScotland’s
auditors are unaware, and that | have taken all necessary steps to make myself aware of any relevant audit
informaticn and to establish VisitScotland's auditors are aware of that information.

Furthermore, | can confirm that;

i} the Annual Report and Financial Statements as a whole, are fair, balanced and understandable, and
iy | take personal responsibility for the Annual Report and Financial Statements and the judgements
required for determining that they are fair, balanced and understandabie.
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213 THE GOVERMANCE STATEMENT
GOVERNAMNCE FRAMEWORK
Rasponsiblities

The Board has carporate responsibility for the overall strategy of the organisation within the stratagic and
funding framework set by Scottish Ministars, ensuring that VisitScotland fulfils the aims and objectives as
directed, and in so doing shall demanstrate high standards of corporate governance at all times.

In pursuit of thig the Board, which met a full six times in the yaar, has sstablished two Committees to scrutinisa
certain greas of activity in greater depth and make recommendations 1o the Board, There i= an Audit & Risk
Committee, and a Board Remuyneration Committee, the work of which is considered in the Remuneration and
Staff Repon.

In addition, at operational level, the Health & Safaty Committes, chaired by an Executive Director, exists to
raview tha organisation’s health and safety practices, and compliance with appropriate legislation. The Health &
Safety Committee provides the Audit & Risk Committee with the dedicated Haealth & Safgty Risk Register for
review at each meating, and, as necessary, also reports on matters ta the Board.

Codes of conduct

Vigitaeotland supports the highest standards of corporate governance and has in place Codes of Conduct both
for Board Membars and for Staff, as approved by the Scottish Ministars. VisitScotland campliss with the Code of
Practice put in place by the Commissioner for Ethical Standards in Fublic Life in Scotland as set out in the Public
Appointments and Public Bodies etc, (Scotland} Act 2003, and the Guidance issued by the Commissioner.
Visitseotland's Code of Canduct for BEoard Members is published on our website, together with Board Memhbarg’
Register of Interests.

Board stteandance

The following sate cut the number of meetings the VisitScotand Board and its principal committees held during
201617, and the individual attendance by Board and commitiee membears,

Awdit & Risk Remuneraticn

Boanrd Commitiaa Committes
The Rt. Hon. tha Viscount Thurso 8 (B} = 11
Professar Anna Andersan 5 1G] - 11
Rebegca Brooks 4 (B} . 11(1)
Catherine Craig 4 [} - 1(1)
Gordon Devear 4 [} 5 (6] 1{1)
Stephan Dunlop 6 (8 4 (5 1(1)
Stephen Hagan 5 {6 - 1(1)
Carolyn Jameson 4 (B 3 |6) 1(1)
Calum Ross & {6 1 (1) 1{1)
Carolina Roxburgh 3 {3 313 1(1)

| Meetings artended (Mesiings afigibls ta atend))

The Rt. Hon. the Viscount Thurso attended one Audit & Risk Committae masting, in his capacity a5 a Board
mambar.

The Remuneration Cemmittee was re-constitutad during the year, and now comprises of every member of the
Board. It mests as and when requirad, prior (o the commencement of a formal Board meseting, and its anly
meeting in the year was held on 9 September 2016,

UPERATIONAL MANAGEMENT FRAMEWCRK

The delivery of VisitScotland's aims and objectives is supported by an oparational framawork comprising key
corporate business processes and a wide range of control mechanisms, which ansurg that policies and
stratagias are put in place; values and principlas are mat; high quality asrvices are delivered; laws and
regulaticns are camplied with; processes are in place and complied with; and financiat statements and othar
published information ara aceurate, timely and comply with relevant standards and best practice.

APPROACH TO BEST VALLIE

The Scottish Public Finance Manual describes the duty of Beat Value in Public Services and provides guidanca to
Accountable Officers on what an organisation should be able to demonstrate in fulfilmant of their Bast Value
duty to secura continuous improvement in the perfarmance of the organisation’s functions.

Curing tha year Senior Management and Heads of Department carried oot their fifth self-assesament of
VisitScotland's Best Value status using tha sightesn Audit Scotland guideline Toolkits, which set out an
avaluation framewerk that enahles an organization, in the conteat of its own resources, and scale, to assagss s
performance across a range of ganeric areas and provide an indicative rathar than a conclusive judgament of the
ocrganisation’s eapabilities in its achievement of Best Value.
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Across the eighteen subjects, in considoration of the three elements of achievements of Basic Practico/ Better
Fractice/ Advanced Practice, the results show that progressive improvement over the past 4 years has seen tha
organization move from a8 combined rating of 55% for Batter Practice / Advanced Practice across all areas 1o that
of a rating of 66%.

BUDGETARY COMTROL

Operaling plang and capital budgets are approved on an annual basis as part of the strategic business planning
process. The Executive Senior Management Team recelve manthly reparts on axpenditure against budgel
togathar with an explanation for significant variances and proposed corrective action, and regular reports on
progress against kay performance indicators. All reports are subsegquendly submitted for review 1o the
Visitheolland Board.

RISK MAMNAGEMENT
internal controt framework

The systern of imernal contral is de=igned to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure o achieve
VisitScotland’s policies, aims and objectives. |t can therefore only provide reasanahle and not absclute
assurance of effactivencss. The systemn ia based on an gngoing process designed to identify the principal risks 1o
the achievemnent of YisitScotland's policies, aims and objectives; 1o gvaluata the nature and extent of those rigks
and to manage them efficiently, effactively and aconemically.

The process within VisitScotland aceords with guidance from the Scottish Ministers provided in the Scottish
Public Finance Manual {“SPEM™Y and has been in place for the year ended 31 March 2017, and up to the date of
approval of the annual report and financial statements.

Approach to Risk Management

All badies to which the SPFM is directly applicable must operate a risk management strategy in sccordance with
relevanl guidance issued by the Scottish Minislers, The ganaral principles for a successful risk management
strategy are set out in the SPFM.

Tho Beard has overall responsihility for VisitScotland's risk managemenl Tramework, and as a rasult all corporate
axtarnal and intarnal risks are actively managed, raviewsd and updated, together with the actions to mitigata
them, by the Executive Sanicr Management Team on a quarterly basis, and raportad upon at each Audit & Risk
Committee meeling. In addition, the Board also carry out a ragular review of the Corperatc Risk Register to
ansure the strategic and operational cohesion of risks arising. In so doing the Board, through its aversight and
tha work of the Audit & Risk Cornmities, fulfils ite role of Corporate Risk Governance.

This year there has been o particular emphasis on developing the Board's approach to risk appetite, which was
the fucus of a workshop, facilitated by Internal Audit, Lhe outcome of which sat out the Board's appetite towards
tho level of desired risk-laking in the achievement of our strategic objectives, in the context of managing our
pringipal rigks. Our risk appetite is an expression of the types and amount of risk we are willing to take or accept
to achieve our plan, and, ultimately, by defining our risk appetite, we will be able to better determine our
strategic actions, ss well a5 design mitigating contrals to manage 1o within accaptabla levals hoth tha likelihood
of rizks ocourring and Lheir potantial impact.

VigitScotland has & rizk managemenl palicy setting aut a robust process for identifying and evaluating risks
which it faces im trying to achieve its objectives, Risk managament has becn fully incorporated into the corporats
planning and decision making processes of the organisation. Preparation of annual departrnantal operating plans
includes a review of existing risks and discussion of any potential new risks. Economic and environmental
gcanning are koy components in this process. Thay assist in identifying global factors which may affact the
business and aid planning to mitigate them. Rigks are also identifiad, managed and teported at project level
through project managers.

A Corporate Risk Register is actively in usa and not only identifies all the high level risks which impact on the
wholg arganisation and are likely 10 affect the achisvamant of objectives contained in the annual operating plan,
bul also it contains lowear leval risks which affect specific areas of gparation within VisitScotland., Moreover, there
are individusel sub-Risk Hegistars {linked to the Corporate Risk Register] which cover specific projects le.g.
websita development, Stakeholder Customer Ralationship Management), as reguired, and/or carparate matters
[e.g. Health & Safaty) and Events le.g. Salheim Cup 2018} in greater detail that are ongeing at any point in time.
In this way, risks are dentified and monitored at deparlment level, and, individually, for key projects, and
managed accordingly.

An owner is assigned for esch risk and is rasponzible for monitoring that risk and ensuring that any identified
actions 1o mitigate it are implemenled. Consequantly, VisitScotland has detailed mitigating acticn plans in place
to address all significant risks. As new or changed risks emerge thay ars identified, raviewsd for alignment with
the business planning process, reported to senior management, the Audit & Risk Committea, and reviewed by
tha Board. Each new or changed rigk is added to the Corporate Risk Register togeiher with an agtion plan to
addrass the rish.

A desiarnated risk manager, in tandem with the Audit & Compliancae Manaper, and Corporate Services Director, is
responsible for manitoring, maintaining and updaling the Corparata Risk Ragister, recommending and reporting
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to the Executive Seniocr Management Team, and the Audit & Risk Committee, and promoting risk awareness
across the organisation.

Furthermore, VisitScotland is committed to a process of continuous development and improvement, developing
systems in response to any relevant reviews and developments in best practice in this area. In this respect during
the year we have continued to integrate individual personal work objectives with the underlying Project Initiation
Documents {“PIDs"), which, annually, underpin the Operating Plans. These are linked through to identifiable
Operating Risks/overall Strategic Risks, and respective mitigating actions. This ongoing development adds value
to the Corporate Risk Register methodology by providing even greater assurance in the management of risks,
and, when complete, individual’s performance objectives will be aligned to their risk responsibility in achieving
VisitScotland’s strategic and operational goals,

Key Risks facing the organisation

There are six principal risks currently facing the aorganisation, together with ather uncertainties, which have been
highlighted within the Performance Report {1.12 Principal Risks and Uncertainties), of which the following three
are more prominent:

* A reduced Scottish Government budget allocation will mean that the spend budgets are curtailed,
negatively impacting the returns which VisitScotland could produce for Scotland.

*  The impact of macro-economic factors such as austerity, exchange fluctuations, consumer income, and
spending affecting the visitor economy.

*  VisitScotland’s ability to attract and retain a highly skilled workforce in order to achieve its ambitious
business plans.

Information Risk and Records Management

VisitScotland has in place a range of systems and measures which ensure that information held by the
organisation, and held by third parties on behalf of the organisation, is secure. This process is further enhanced
by the activities of the Data Governance and Security Group which monitors and controls the organisation’s
overall legal and regulatory compliance concerning the release of data from the arganisation. In addition,
VisitScotland has implemented Scottish Government guidance on data security and information risk through the
creation of an information asset register, an information risk register, utilisation of risk assesesments and all
round increased awareness training for staff,

In April 2016 the European Parliament and Council of the European Union approved the General Data Protection
Regulation {“GDPR"}, The GDPR unifies all data protection [aws within the EU under a single law, updating and
modernising the principles enshrined within Directive 95/46/EC. The GDPR will come into force for all member
states on 25 May 2078, and the Information Commissioner's Office (“ICO") has advised that adopting GDPR
requirements will be best practice for all British organisations, post ‘Brexit’. In preparation, VisitScotland’s Data
Governance and Security Group has developed an action plan across the organisation to ensure our compliance
therewith by 25 May 2018, and in accordance with guidance laid down by the ICO.

The successful implementation of our Records Management Plan {“RMP"), which was formally approved by the
Keeper of Records {Scotland) in Jan 2016, thereby fulfilling our obligations under the Public Records {Scotland)
Act 2011, has now moved into phase two, wherein, led by our Data Protection/Records Management Officer, we
are progressing towards the full integration of our information asset register within our new Sharepoint upgrade,
This wil! provide electronic accessibility for identification and updating of information asset records, and by so
doing not only ensure constant monitoring thereof, but also provide flexible reporting controls.

INTERNAL CONTROL
Scope of Responsibility

As Chief Executive and Accountable Officer | have responsibility for maintaining a robust performance
management framework, in accordance with the VisitScotland Management Statement and assaociated Financial
Memorandum, as agreed with the Scottish Government’'s Directorate for Culture, Tourism and Major Events,
which includes a sound system of internal control that supports the achievement of VisitScotland’s policies, aims
and objectives set by the Scottish Ministers, whilst safeguarding the public funds and assets for which | am
persanally responsible, in accordance with the responsibilities assigned to me.,

| am personally answerable to the Scottish Ministers in accordance with section 15 of the Public Finance and
Accountability {Scotland) Act 2000. | am responsible for safeguarding the public funds under my charge, for
ensuring propriety and regularity in the handling of those funds and for the day-to-day aperations and
management of VisitScotland. In addition, | have a duty to ensure that arrangements have been made to secure
best value, which includes the concepts of good carporate governance, performance management and
cantinuous improvement.

The HM Treasury publication “Managing Public Maney”, and the Scottish Public Finance Manual {SPFM) as
issued by the Scottish Ministers, provide guidance to the Scottish Government and other relevant bodies on the
proper handling and reporting of public funds. They set out the relevant statutory, parliamentary and
administrative requirements, emphasise the need for economy, efficiency and effectiveness, and promote good
practice and high standards of propriety.
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Raview of effectiveness of Internal Control
Role of the VisgSoptfand Audit & Fisk Cormmittes

The YisitScotland Board has astablished an Audit & Risk Committes to support them in their rasponsibilities for
issues of rigk, cantrol, governance and associated assurance. The Audit & Risk Committee of the Board normally
meets at least four times a year.

The Audit & Risk Committee comprises Chair and three non-executive Board members. Representatives of the
Scottish Government, extarnal and independent imternal auditors, together with the Director of Corporate
Sarviges, the Head of Finance, and tha Audit & Compliance Managar, and myself, attend these meetings,

The Audit & Risk Committee seeks assurances from a number of sources mainly via managemeant, and review
the audit reports from both internal and external auditers. In addition, they agree the annual intarnal audit plan,
and raview the Corporate Risk Registar reports, as well as carrying out ad-hoc reviews of departmental/project
Risk sub-reqisters that underpin ihe principal Corporate Risk Register. Tha Chair of the Audit & Risk Committes
reports to the Board on audit, risk and contral matters, and in so deing the Audit & Risk Committee adds to the
Board's confidence in the reliability of internal cantrals and risk management processas. 1n addition, the Audit &
Risk Committea prepares an annual report which is considered by tha Board.

Menegernent Assurance Siaterments
As Accountable Officer, | have responsibilily Tor reviswing the effectiveneas of Lhe system of intarnal control.
By raview is informed by

« the executive managers within the organisation who have responsibilty for the developmant and
maintanance of the internal cantrol framework;

a tha wark of the internal auditors, whe submit to VisitScotland's Audit & Risk Committeg regular raparts,
which mglude the Head of Internal Audit's independent and objectiva opinion on the adeguacy and
effectiveness of tha organisation’s systems of internal control iogether with recommendations {or
improvement;

s comments made by the exlernal auditars in their management lattars and other reports.

| have been advizscd on the implications of the result of my review of tha effactiveness of the system of intarnal
control by the Board and the Audit 8 Risk Committas and a plan to address any weaknasaas as they arise, and to
ansura continuous improvernent of the system 5 in place.

As Accountable Officer, | am regquired to provide a Certificate of Assurance to the Scottish Government on an
annual basis. To enable signing of this statement 1 have required assurances an the maintenance and review of
internal control systamns throughout the organisation from relevant Directars for their areas of respensibility and
accountability, To assist with this sign off they will have raviewad their internal control arrangements supported
by the complation of an Internal Control Chacklist,

The annual complotion of the detailed Internal Control Checklist provides tha basis for me, as Accountable
Officer, to sign aff tha necessary Cerlificats of Assurance on the standard of intgrnal control within VisitScotiand,
in accordance with the Scottish Government requiremeants.

In sumrmary, on the basis of the above processes, | confirm that L am fully content with the effectiveness of guch
procedures that enable VisitScotland ta maintain appropriate best practice standards of governance and effective
risk managernant, and my overall review has not highlighted any significant intarnal control weaknesses within
VizitScotland. As & consequence, | have confirmed for 201617 that centrols have been, and ars, working well
within VisitScotland, and that there ara no significant matiers ariging which would require to be raised,

tndependent intarnal Audit

VisitScutland's internal audit functicn operates 1o standards defined in the Governmant internal audit manual,
Latterly, part of this function has been carried out by our cwn internal audit team, which monitored the
visitScotiand iCentre network as to complianee 10 accordance with the iCentre manual of financial and
operatianal rulas, and the other part has bean carrisd out by the contractad sarvices of Independent auditors to
report on the adenuacy and effectivensss of VisitScotland’s systems of intarnal cantrol together with
recommendations far improvament.

Tha adwant of the Electronic Point of Sale {("EPOS*1 across the network of VisitScotland iCentras, now an
established contral mechanism, has furthar improved Head Office monitaring contrels around netwark cash,
stock and management raporting, and this has changed the dynamics of our internal audit appraach across the
network. Following the recant retirement of our gwn intarnal audit team it was decided to taka the appartunily 10
outsource the internal awdit wark on the management angd control of the iCentre Mebwork 1o our intarnal audit
contractor, and az from 1 April 2017, & formal audit programme has bean put in place to accommaodate this
continuing reguiremant.

In general, tha work of the internal auditors is informed by an analysis of tha rizk to which VisitScotland is
exposed. Annual and ¢yclical audit plans are based on this analysis and cover the whals range of activities within
the arganisation, over nol only set periods of time, but also flaxible ad hoc arrangements. The plans include a
ragular review of the risk strategy and risk register(s), and a follow up of audit recommendations for
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improvements, and action points from previcus audits, the implementation of which has been regularly
reviewed by the Audit & Risk Committee during the year.

For 2016/17 the overall conclusion of the independent internal auditor in respect of the areas reviewed, which
were Budgeting and Budgetary Control; Fixed Assets; Corporate Governance; Regulatory Compliance; Solheim
Cup 2019 {Initial set-up report); Records Management; European Regional Development Fund {(“ERDF");
Marketing; \Websita Post-Implementation Review, was as follows:

“In our opinion VisitScotland has a framework of conirols in place that allows substantial assurance 1o be taken
on the effective and efficient achievement of the organisation’s objectives and the management of key risks,
FProper arrangements are in place, in the areas we have reviewed, to promote value for maney, defiver best value
and secure regufarity and propriety in the administration and operation of the organisation.”

External Audit Raview

During the year VisitScotland, once again, took part in Audit Scotland's bi-annual National Fraud Initiative
programme. The matching exercises for 2016/17, embracing payroll and suppliers, have been carried out, and
following review it was concluded that there were no material issues arising, and no evidence of fraud had been
identified from the exercise.

Statutory External Audit

The Auditor General far Scotland is responsible for auditing the VisitScotland financial statements. For a period
of five years commencing with 2016/17, the Auditor General has appointed Audit Scotland [taking over from
Grant Thornton LLP} to undertake the statutory audit of VisitScotland.

Audit Scotland have given unqualified audit opinions on the financial statements for the year ended 31 March
2017 and on the regularity of transactions reflected in the financial staternents. No significant issues have been
identified as part of their audit process.

Ve

Malcol ghead OBE
Chief Executive
YisitGcotland

l"/n? October 2007,
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2.2 THE REMUNERATION AND STAFF REPORT
REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Hitherto, the Remuneration Committee has been a standalone committee, made up of at least two Board
members and the Board Chair. However, during the year it was decided to disband the Committee as originally
constituted, and to reform it as a full meeting of the Board, to be held as and when necessary, prior to the
commencement of a formal Board Meeting., Therefore, during 2016/17 all Board members were - de facto —
members of the Remuneration Committee, and the Committee met once on 9 September 2016.

The purpose of the Committee is to:

* review the annual salary and performance-related bonus proposals of the Chief Executive and Directors,
in accordance with Scottish Government guidelines;

* consider any changes in the terms and conditions of employment of the Chief Executive and Directors;
» submit any proposed changes to the Chief Executive’s salary, and any proposed performance-related
bonus payable to the Scottish Government for approval;

» deal with such other matters as may be referred to it by the Board.

The supporting tables that follow showing Board Members’ and Executive Senior Management Teams’
Remuneration and Pension Information, together with Median Pay Multiples, Employment Statistics, Staff Costs
and Voluntary Severance Costs have been audited by VisitScotland's auditors.

REMUNERATION POLICY

Under the terms of the financiai memorandum with the Scottish Government an annual pay remit for staff,
including Directors, is required to be submitted to the Scottish Government for approval. The pay remit must be
within the terms of the Scottish Government’s public sector pay policy.

The Chief Executive’s performance is appraised by the Chair in consultation with the Beard, in session as the
Board Remuneration Committee {*BRC"). His annual pay award and non-consolidated perfoermance payments of
up to 10% of base salary are considered by the BRC, and approved by the Scottish Government. In accordance
with the Scottish Government's pay policy for senior appointments, the Chief Executive received a pay increase
in 2016-17, but did not receive any bonus award for the year ended 31 March 2017,

Directors’ performance is appraised by the Chief Executive in consultation with the BRC. Their annual pay award,
and non-consolidated performance payments of up to 10% of base salary, are considered by the BRC, and
approved by the Chief Executive. In accordance with the Scottish Government’s pay policy, Directors received a
pay increase in 2016/17, but did not receive any bonus award for the year ended 31 March 2017.

SERVICE CONTRALTS

Appointments of the Chief Executive and Directors are made on merit, and the appointments are on a permanent
basis. Certain members of the British Tourist Boards’ Pension Scheme can choose to retire from age 60.

The notice period is 12 manths for both Directors and the Chief Executive. Early termination, other than for
misconduct, would result in payments under agreed contraciual, or severance arrangements.

BOARD MEMBERS’ REMUNERATION

The Chair and Board Members of VisitScotland are appointed by Scottish Ministers normally for an initial period
of three years, with the aption of re-appointment for a second term. All current members of the Board as at 31
March 2017 are serving their first term of office,

The Chair and Board members are not members of the pension schemes. Their remuneration is set out in the
table below. Remuneration is set by the Scottish Government and is reviewed annually.

2017 2016

Appointment within the ysar £'000 £000

The Rt. Hon. the Lord John Thurso- Chair  Appointed 1 April 2016 30-35 NIL
Professor Anne Anderson 5-10 0-5
Rebecca Brooks 5-10 0-5
Catherine Craig 5-10 0-5
Gordon Dewar 5-10 5-10
Stephen Dunlop 5-10 5-10
Stephen Hagan 5-10 0D-5
Carolyn Jamescn 5-10 0-5
Calum Ross 5-10 5-10
Caroline Roxburgh (a) Appointed 15 November 2016 0D-5 NIL

{a) Caroline Roxburgh receives an annual salary within the banding £5k - £10k.
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Summary of Board Members' ramunaration

2047 2016
£'000 £'000
Chair 34 4
Board members ca g2
Tha nurmbar of Board members [ excluding Chair| halding office during the year was 8 | 2016 13).
Totsl Board Mambars' remunsration 103 a5

Pensions are paid to two previous Chairmen, and a provision has been made for this in these financial statements
{Note 23).

EXECUTIVE SENICR MANAGEMENT TEAM
The following tables provide a breakdown of the executive Directors’ remuneration in 2016-17 and 2015-16.

Remuneration includes gross salary, benefits in kind and any other allowance to the extent that it is subject to
UK Taxation. All executive Directors received a pay award as at 1 August 20186, in accordanca with the Scottish
Government’s public sector pay policy.

Directors' Remuneration iSalary, benefits in kind and pension)
Singla total figure of ramuneration

As at 31 March 2017

Benefits in
Car Kind {to Pension

Executive Diractor Salary allowance nearest£100) hensfits # TOTAL

£'000 £'000 £ E'00D £'000
M Roughead ia} Chief Executive 140 - 145 . E 176 - 14E - 160
K Mellaon Directar of Corporate Sehices 100 - 105 - 2,403 an 135 -140
R Graham Directar of Partnerships 90 - 85 & - 26 120- 125
F Bush Dirgctor of Eventa 95 - 100 -] - 28 130-135
C Smith Director of Markating 120 - 125 a - 34 160 - 165

{a) Asfrom 1 April 2014 M. Roughead no longer eontributes to the BTE Pansion Scharne, and also does not contribote
to any other ¥35 Schome,
Mo performance related benuses were paid to any directors in the yaar,

Ag at 31 March 2M6

Benefitz in
Car Kind { to Pension

Exacutive Director Salary allewance  nearest £100)  bangfits # TaTaL

£'00g £000 £ £'000 £1000
M Roughead {a) Chief Executiva 140 - 145 - 504z . 145 - 150
K Heilson Diractor of Corparete Services 100 - 105 - 2,0MB 33 135- 140
R Grahamn Director of Partnerships a0 - 95 E 38 136- 140
F Bush Diractor of Events o5 - 100 4 - 33 135 - 140
C Smith Dirgctar of Marketing 12(%- 125 B 28 155 - 160

[a] As from 1 April 2014 M.Roughead no longer cantributes to the BTB Pension Schame, and also does not contribute
o any ather W5 Scheme,
Mo performance related bonuses wera paid to any directors in the year.
Mote:
# The value of pension benefits accrued during the year is calculated a8 tha raaf increase it pensions and applying the
HMRC methodology multiplier of 24, less tha contributions made by the indridual.
The resf increase /n pengion axcludes incteases dus to inflation or any increase due to transfer of pension rights.
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Diractors' Pansions
Pensicn banafits are provided through sither of -
il The British Tourist Boards' Pension scherma [BTEPS] providing benefits and life assurance for staff based

on final pensionakle salary. The BTEPS schome is 8 multi-employar defined benclit scheme,

ii} The Local Government Pension Scheme [LGPS) run locally by various Local Authority Councils. The LGRS
iz a final salary defined benefit statutoty scheme |as amended to a varear average basis in 2015-with prior year
protectione in place), administered in eccerdance wilh the Local Government Pansion Scharme [Boeneflis,
Marmborship and Contributions) [Seolland) Reguletions 2008, tha Local Gowvermment Pension Scheme
tAdministration} {Seolland! Requlations 2008, and Lhe Local Government Pansion Schanee (Transitional Provisions]
{Scolland| Requlstions 2008,

The Chief Executiva no lunger contributes to the BTEPS scheme a8 of 1 April 2004 and ha has not subseguently joined
Lhe LGPS scheme. &ll tha other Diroclorg are sll members of The BTEPS scherne,

As at 31 Mareh 2017

Aeal increase in CETV: Increass net of

Accrued annual pansion CETY membearg' contributions
Executive Director pengion st (o node (b) aote fe}&(e)
£'900 £'000 £'000 E'000

M Aoughaad o - 35 1] 1.097 218
Chief Exerutive

K Mallzan 20 - 26 0-25 722 203
Diractor of Curporate Servines

R Greham B0 - BS 0-26 2,083 167
Director of Partnerships

P Bush 30-3b6 0-258 1078 233
Diractor of Evenls

= Smith 0-5 0-256 91 48

Director of Marketing

Ar 8t 31 March 2078

Real incressa in

CETY: Incraasa net of

Accrued annuel pansion Aoic CETY members' contribulion s
Exacutiva Director pEngion -4 noie () ote fuf
£'000 E'O00 £'00d £'000

& Roughaad 30 -35 1] BES 0
Chief Exenutivea

K Mellsan 20 -2 0-25 508 47
Diractor uf Corporate Services

A Graham B0 - 65 b-25 1.872 127
Director of PAMtnerships

P Bush 26 -30 0-25 B33 Ea |
Directer vf Events

= Smith 0-5 0-258 35 16

Dirgctor of WMarketing
Mota:

gl Pansion calculations are based an the pensionable salary at 31 March.

bl Tash Equivalent Transfer Value {CETV) is a lump surn value in today s terme of tha banefits acerued by

a mermnber of the peneion scheme, This sum iz Asaessad by an actuary and is the amount which would be
offered by the scheme to transfar bancfils into anather achema whan the imember leaves. Within BTPS, CETY

is computed by eference to factors agraed by Lhe Trustees of the BTPS.

¢l CETY: Increasa net of members’ contributions, This reflects the increase in CETVY affactively funded

by the employera over the yaar. i lakes aocount of the change in accrued pensian due to sdditienal accrual

and salary arowth, excluding inflation, and uses commen market factors {or the start and end of the peried.

It does nat includs any inEregss in value that arises [fom confribotions paid by the smployes or the value of

any benefite trensferred fom another peneion schame.

d! The real incresse in annual pension excludes eny increase inindlation ar any incresae due a transfar of pansion

rigghils,

gl The assumptions used include future long-term inlerest retes and inflation. Over the year 1o 31 March 2017,

anticipeted lanyg-term interest rates heva fallen significantly and expected infiation has risan slightly, causing e

& substantial incraasa in CETY s over the year. In particular, the fall in interest retes has impectad transfar values
generating an increese betwesn 20% and 25% in tha money required o provide the same pension in the fulure
[as il receives lower expacted raturns), In addition, CETVa also increase duc to additional acemusl and salany

growth depending upon esch mamiper's individual circurnstances.
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MEDIAN PAY MULTIPLES

The highest paid member of the executive senior management team was the Chief Executive. His annualised
salary before Pension benefits was 6.27 times the remuneration of £22,685 median earnings of the organisation’s
worik-force in 2016-17 {2015-16: 6.30 x £22,568).

This year's Median Total Remuneration calculation continues to be impacted by the adoption by VisitScotland of
the living wage recommendations, accordingly.

2016-17 2016-16
Highest-Paid Director's Salary £140k - £145k £140k - £145k
Median Total Remuneration £22,695 £22,568
Ratio 6.27 6.30

OUR PEQPLE
Workforce Planning

VisitScotland has developed a project based approach to workforce planning. This ensures that strategies are
developed, workfarce implicaticns are assessed and appropriate workforce plans put in place to ensure that skill
gaps are highlighted as we deliver our overall corporate strategy. Significant reductions in the workforce have
been successfully achieved using this approach, including the restructuring of the Marketing Dept; downsizing
and re-aligning management posts in the Partnerships directorate, and the closing of the VisitScotland call
cenitre.

For the next 3-5 years VisitScotland has developed a People Strategy 2016-20, which identifies all the key staffing
issues for year one, and in outline for succeeding years. The detailed 2017/18 strategy is now in the process of
delivery.

Employmant Statistics

Full details of the numbers of employees are given below under Staff Costs; other relevant staff information is as
follows:

2016 17 2015 -16
Staff Turnover 13.82% 14.82%
Sickness Absence 1.80% 1.66%
Sickness Absence days/person 4.67 3.73
Male: Female Ratio — Total Waorkforce 33:67 32:68
Male: Female Ratio — Board Members* 50: 50 56 : 44
Male: Female Ratio — Directars 100: 0 100:0
Male: Female Ratio — Heads of Department §3:47 53:47
Staff Salary range {excluding Directors) £16k - £75k £14k - £75k

*The Board for 16/17 onwards is comprised of a 50:60 gender balance, including the Chair.

Staff Costs
Included within gross expenditure

All employees (in¢luding Board members}

2017 2018

£'000 £'000

Salaries 16,705 16,025
Social security costs 1,564 1,177
Woluntary severance 962 554
19,231 17,760

Pension costs - Current service 4,446 4822
Total staff costs 23,677 22,682
Agency fees in respect of temporary staff, includad above 44 50
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Tha average number of full-time equivalent employees during the year was as follows:

2017 2018

Number Mumbar

Executive senior managemant team § 5
Operational and support staff

Heads of departrnant 17 18

Other stall hG2 hBG

Fixed term contraet 20 21

604 610

Temporary staff 1 1

Total averags number of fulltima eouivalsnts 605 611

VYoluntary severance costa

Ongoing business re-organisation during the year has meant that the oppartunity for voluntary departure by
staff, in accordance with VisitScotland's approved valuntary severance schame, was taken up by 31 membara of
staff, at a cost of 562,000, as follows:

27 2016
it Mo of exit packages agreed within fallewing bandings; MHumber Murmber
£0- £20,000 1 12
E20.001 - £40,000 12 L
E40.,001 - 760,000 4 q
£60,001 - £30,001 4 -
£100,001 - £120,000 1
Total number of exit packages ]| 2
27 NG
il Tatal cast of exit packages agreed within gach band; E'00:4 £1o0c
£0- £20,000 135 114
£20,007 - £40,000 260 137
£40,001 - £E0,G00 202 140
£a0,001 - £BG,G00 265
E06, 007 - £126,000 - Nna
Thers were he campulsony redundancies | 2016 Mone
Total cost of exit packages 962 G54

Consultancy Faes

A total amount of £36,809 was expendad in the year on one-off project consultancy costs,
Peuple Strategy

The People Sirategy remains focused on 4 key areas:

Finding and retaining the bost people
Murturing our Talent

Managing Change

Equality of Opportunity

Poorra =

Finding &nd retaining the best pecpla

This has proven to ba anather challenging year in recruiting to certain posts in the organisation where our
current pay lavals are significantly below tha market rale, These poets are mainly in the digital areas, particularhy
Digital Design & Devalopment, IT, Digital Markating and Insight. Unfartunataly, the continging restrigtions
around public sectar pay have made it very difficult to remain competilive in thase markets,

In 20117 following an intansive review of our pay and grading arrangemenls, we intand to introduce a new pay
structura. This will intreduce an incremental progression arrangement which should belp ta push roles which

4
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have slipped behind the public and not-for-profit market rate nearer that median. We will also introduce a market
suppiement for very hard to recruit roles which should make us much more compatitive in those markets.

We introduced a much improved enline recruitment system in 2016, and this has greatly assisted in attracting a
higher number of better quality candidates fer many posts. We have also cantinued to deveiop and improve our
induction offering.

In 2016 we benchmarked our benefits against other similar public sector organisations, and were able to
demonstrate we were highly competitive with these organisation, In 2017 we intend to pilot the issue of Total
Benefits Statements to demonstrate to our staff the value of their total remuneration package.

Nurturing our Talent

In 2017 our key objective s the identification of the potential in our staff and to provide them with development
and career opportunities appropriate to their talents and ambitions. To this end we are implementing a
Performance / Potential grid model through the perfermance year with appropriate training and support far staff.
We will use the output from this to develop individual development plans appropriate to the individual’s matrix
placement and to develop talent pools for succession planning purposes.

We will also implement a new career mapping online systems to allow staff to understand possible future career
opportunities and what is required to get there.

We continue to invest in Graduates and Modern Apprentices. Every year we employ six modern apprentices (all
of whom are guaranteed a further ane year contract at the end of their placement) and six graduates. We also
implement six two-year mentorships on the Career Ready programme {to help prepare young people from
deprived backgrounds for the world of work),

Managing Change

QOver the course of the last year there have been a number of restructures and reductions which have all been
managed within our change management arrangements and with minimumn dislocation to services. A voluntary
severance programme was in operation for 2016/2017, with 31 staff subsequently approved for under this
scheme. This represents an annual payroll saving of £1,003k, with an overall payback period of 10.9 months.

In 2017 we will be establishing the staffing profile and skillsets required as we right-size and re-align in line with
our strategic direction over the next few years and preparing our managers and their staff for these changes.
This will include a significant change to how we provide infarmation to customers, moving to a more digitally
based focus. We are preparing the ground to implement any staffing changes required as a result of this change,

Equality of Cpportunity

In April 2017 we published our Public Sector Equality Duty Mainstreaming Repert, and through our internal
Equality Group we will use the Report action plans to support equality and diversity activity including: awareness
training for employees, reviewing recruitment processes, unconscious bias training, implementing impact
assessments for all policy changes and acting as ambassadors and exemplars of good practice.

We also carried out an equal pay audit which we published on our website. While there were no particularly
difficult issues identified we will keep the results of the audit under review and examine practical ways in which
any potential inequalities can be addressed.

Demonstrating fairness

VisitScotland became an accredited Scottish Living Wage employer in 2016 which means that we will not pay
any member of staff less than the Scattish Living Wage, as advised to us every year by Scottish Government.
Furthermore, arising from the number of Board retirements last year, we were also able to take the oppaortunity
to equalise the Board complement by the appointment of five female Board Members. Hencefarth, the new
VisitScotland Board is now comprised of five male and five female Mambers, including the Chair.

Our approach to Diversity and Equality

Enhancing access to tourism in Scotland, promoting the social and economic benefits of fostering good relations
within the tourism industry and between tourism businesses and visitors, and supporting positive opportunities
far the sectar, are key features of each of our strategies. Equality is therefore an integral driver of our function as
a service provider to both tourism businesses and visitors, and also of our own commiiment as an employer,
and we strive to mainstream the delivery of equality throughout our organisation.

Our dedicated equality outcames outline the focus of our wark towards meeting our duties as a public authority
under the general equality duty of the Equality Act 2010, which are to have due regard, in the exercise of our
functions, to the need to eliminate discrimination, advance equality of opportunity and foster good relations,

VisitScotland maintains an inclusive environment, and is committed to the continued development of diversity
and equal opportunities as represented by its published Mainstreaming Equality Report which can be found on
our corporate website. The new Mainstreaming Equality Report was published April 2017, and includes updates
on all that we have achieved through mainstreaming equality throughout the organisation, and also working in
partnership with industry and the government. There is further work to do in order to meet our duty as regards
Equality Impact Assessments, and planning for that is now being undertaken.

As an organisation, we recognise that successfully meeting our general equality duty is not only about working
towards specific equality outcomes, but about ensuring that the needs of the duty are an integral part of our
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cveryday practice, We consider promoting egquality to be an organisation-wide rasponsibility, and have sought 1o
mainstream equality thraughout our functions, This ¢oming year we are planning to delivar training on diversity
& equality throughout the erganisation, and will be recruiting @ Diversity & Equality Cfficer who will take charge
of this important task.

\fisitScotland recognises the gender imbalance on tho Executive Senisr Management Team and is actively
supporting and developing talent for the {uture across the organisation 1o address the situation. In recognilion of
thig, as from 1 April 2617, we have raconfigured our cperational senior managemenl {garm undar tha banner of
the ‘Leadership Group’. This new group includes the exisling Executive team, together with senior members of
gtaff from across the oprganisation whao have a direct influence on the key challangas and opportunities which
ViaitScotland will face in the futura, and will ensure greater transparency around the links betwsen high level
strategy and activity on the graund.

In addition, we hava sct up a new staff group to monitor and review Equality issues, which is made up from
representatives from across tha organisation, and, meating quarterly the purpose of tha group s to:-

*  Support VisitSeotland in cnsuring that staff pelicies and procedures reflect our grganizational values,
and that the pringiples of aquality, as defined by tha Equality Act 2010, are embedded in our day to day
working practices.

*  Establish and maintain effective communication between diffarant equality groups to provide an active
business fecused inclusive group approach to suppart the mainstreaming of eguality in VisitScotland.

*  Support the Equality Impact Assessment process by reviewing pelicies and procedures 2z requirad,
ensuring that they do not either directly ar indirectly discriminale againgt or disadvantage protectad
Qroups,

*  [Discuss equality mattars in general and whara appropriate make suggestions far active business
imprevamcont across Visitsogtiand.

Accesalble Tourism

Looking externally VisitScotland has a dedicatad programme of activity fecused on Inclusive and Accessible
Tourism. The aim i5 to support tourism businesses and destinations in calering far visitors who have
aceessibility raguircments such as disabled people, bul also those who traditionally would not have been
included in the tarm “accessible tourism’, These would include parents with young children, senior travallars
and pecple with temporary injuries, and their traval companions, $0 that tourism in Scaotland s inclusive and
availabla 1o all.

Our Accessibla Tourism programma covars a range of activity, including both providing support to individual
tourism businesses and coordinaling larger projects. This work aspires to promote eguality by contributing
towards eliminating discrimination for peopla with access reguirements in accassing tourism sérvices in
Scatland, advancing the equality of opportunity for access to tourism, and encouraging dialogue between
vigitors in the Accessible Tourism market and the Scotlish tourism industry, Through our wark in this area, we
also aim to help increase visitor spend on Accessible Tourism in Scotland, and tharefore the contribution of this
market to Scotland’s econgmy.

There are 11.6 million people living in the UK wilh a long-tarm disability, impairment or linass. (Sroree: Office for
Dinahifity fesues (OO0 Disabifity Provalence lssucs Cat 2071/427) and some notable statistics, arising from surveys
carried out for the yvear ended December 2018 (Sresi Britain Teursm Survey (S8T5) 20715 and Groar Britaln Bay Visitor
Lurvey FAGROKET 2015), are as follows:

. Tourism parties, im which at least one memhbar was identified as disabled, centributad approximately
£1.2 billion to Seotand’s sconcmy. This intluded £504 million on domestic owvernight trips and £822
millipn on day visits in Scotland {ovar a fifth of the total expenditura an day visits in Scotland),

- The value of the GB Resident Overnight Accassible Tourism market 10 Scotland has naow grown by 55%
gince 2008, comparad to a 20% increase in the evarall value of all vigits,

. Valume of visits; the Accessible Tourism market represantad 15% of all owvernighl trips, and 158% of all
day visits to Scotland in 2015,

» Value of visite: trips by those in ihe Accessible Tourism market representad 15% of the overall value of
ovarnight trips, and 21% of the overal| value of day visits to Scotland in 2015,

. There has been a 33% increase in volume of visite by those in the Accessible Tourism market to
Scotiand since 2008,

. The average length of domestic overnight stay by those in the accessible market is longer than for 1he
rest af the market {3.7 nights vs. 3.4 nights],

* Only 10% of Accessible Tourism visitors to Scotland in 2015 were wheelchair users — in comparisan,
25%, of all accessible tourism visitors stated being deaf ar having partial haaring loss.

- Dhisabled peopls tand not to travel alone and are often accompanied by carers, family and friends, Chear

60% travel with a partngr, 20% with a child and 21-25% with a companion. This INcreasss cocupancy and
hrimgs in axtra revenue,

The most significant factor is the percentage of the overall accessible axpenditure measured against the tolal,
which was registered az 124 in 2009, and has now riscn to a figure of 15% in the G yaars to 2015, (GETS Survayp)

This vear, with the emphasgis an Inclusive Tourism which ancompasses Accessible Tourism, itis proposed to Lake
on anothcr member of staff to assist in the communications of our new Access Guide web-site and toois that are
availahla on the corporate wah-sita. WWe have developed the new wob-site in partnership with VisitEngland,
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which has underlined the importance of both arganisations neading to wark togather ta enable those with access
reguirements to access holidays and leisure pursuits in the sama way as everyone else. The new Guide plus
uther training tools that we have developed this last yvear are available on; www. visitscotland. org under the
Accessible Tourism link from the home page.

The new site will be part of a plannad communications roll-out across the country with gvents and meetings
being held sspecially looking at areas in tha north and the Highland's and down in the Barders. Follawing the
industry launch of tha new site, the consumer launch will be later in the autumn which will provide a8 ngw
platform for customars with access requirements to fing suitable accessible sccommaodation and attractions
through the seargh facility which is linked to the new Guides. This will drive business to the provider, whilst
praviding good guality information to the ¢onsumer in an accessible farmat.

Last September, VigitScottand hasted a two day European Confarence on Accessibie Tourism raising our profila
acruss Europe, and wa have set new links to wark with partrers in Ireland as & result of this work, as well as
waorking with our colleagues in Wales and Northern Ireland, VisitScotland is part of tha European MNetwark far
Accessible Tourism, and has baan invited to spaak at their annual Conference in Brussels.

We continue to work with charities, 1hird sector and disabled paople’s organisativng through our Accessibla
Tourizm Staering Group and work is continuing bath here in Edinburgh and Glasgow. Glasgow has sat up a new
Task Force following & successful Accessible Tourism Innovation Workshop led by VisitScotland and Scottish
Enterprise, which is warking towards making Glasgow Scotland's most accessible destination for the Europaan
Athletic Champicnships, and the three major lnternational Disability Conferences that are coming to the City in
2018,

This year we have also been looking to further promote Scotland as an LEBT! inclusive destination and currenthy
warking with the Scottish Government Tourism team ta establish the business case for this work. Thiz will form
part of the Inclusiva tourism programme wark.

Our commitment

Theza actions both internal and external ag identified abova, and in VisitScotland’s Mainstreaming Equality
Repart 207, support the key businass objectives contained within tha VigitScatland Corporate Flan 2074 - 2017,
The cantribution of tha acanamiz value confirms that tha Accessible Touristm programime over the last four years
adds real value to the Scottish economy and no longer should it be viewed as an “add on” to tha work that
VisitScotland does, but be accepted as baing mainstreamed into all our work,

An equality stalement is embraced within the main body of the corporate plan, and underlines a commitment to
mainstreaming diversity into the core business of the organisation, and ensures that VisitScotland maets the
highest requiramants of the legialation and also dalivers real, visible, and sustainable change.

/72
Maleclm Aoughead OBE

Chief Executive
YisitGeotland
z,'f October 2017,
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2.3 PARLIAMENTARY ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT REPORT
REGULARITY OF EXFENDITURE

In all material respacts the expenditure and income in tha accompanying financial slatements were incurred or
applied in accordance with any applicahla anactments and guidance issuad by the Bcottish Ministers.

VisitScotland successfully achieved its main financial objective for tha year which is to ensure that the financial
outturn far the year is within the Resource Budgst allocated by Scottish Ministers. Tha Statement of Rescurce
Qutturn can be found on page 22 of these financial stataments.

Losses and special paymenta

Other than Trade debis writen off during tha year, as reported on page E8 of these financial staterneants
VisitScotland ineurred no such designated losses during the financial year 2016-17 [2015-16: None]

During the year YisitScotland made payments with regard to Voluntary Severance packages to 31 mambers of
slaff, as reported on page 41 of these financial staterments, otalling FRE2,000 {2076: £654,000). In respect of thase
pEYMENts the highest amount paid was {68,724, the lowest was £3.956, and the median was £26,263,

VizitScotland has not made any other special paymants during the financial year ended 31 March 2017 {2076

ENilY

Feas and Charges

VizitScotland receives Retall and Commaearcial revenue frem the follewing income streams

Motas 2007 216
£'000 0060
Reteil Szlez
Product Income | 3,079 3,126
Cost of Sales 11.457} {1.477)
Groas Profit 1.622 1,648
GF percentage 52.7% H28%
Businesg Promaotion and Advartising \ncome
Exhibitions and Premational advertising Il 1,033 1,033
Joint Promotional Campaigns 1 1,144 1,169
2,177 2,192
Quality Assurance [V
fovard Scheme Feas W 1,044 1302
Lazz : Direct Coste of Servica 1,236 1,385
MNat Cost of Service Delivery 191] (36]

Motas:

1, The primary purpose of the B9 VizitScotland iCentres situated across Scotland fs to provide information
to visitors, As part of [his service VisitScotland provides information and visitor products, such as maps,
hooks, postcards, stamps, transport tickets, and also showtase local praducts. The Gross Profit
generated is used as 8 contribution towards the cost of operations of the Yisitar Information natwork.

I. Exhibitians / Promolions supported during the year (e.g. IBTM World - London 2016, and the Maatings
Show 2016 = Londan; IMEX Frankfurt 8. America; M % | Forums = London, Scotland in London — Winter
2018: VisitScotland Annual Expo — April 2015, etc, ete. The principal ohjsctive is to use such trade
exhibitions and promaotional advertising 1o promata business linked tourism to Seotland with our
partners. In so doing VisitScotland seeks only to ¢harge our partners for the cost of our sarvices,
expartisa, and support administration an a cost recovery basis.

1. Joint Promotional campaigns with business partners arranged on a 50/%0 cost shara basis.

I, The objective of the Quality Assurance programme is to promote the many accommodation providers

across Scotland by awarding a grading of their respectiva establishments in accordance with appraved
standards as laid down by the Common Standard’s Agreement batwean VisitScotland, other MNatianal
Tourist Boards, and the Automabila Association. VisitScotland charges a fae based upon the size of the
establishment, and the number of ropms therain, The fees are intended 1o offsat the direct cost of
delivery of the service. Accommodatiaon providers are free to participate or not in the Quality Award
programme, and receive a listing on the Y& website, regardless of their participation.
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As reported |ast vear, VisitScotland changed the basis of the QA billing arrangements from seasonal to
calendar year in 2015, which resulted in invoicing to customars haing lower in 2014015, and, as a
consequenca, highar in 201518, Subsequently, the lavel of hilling achieved in 201817 has not reachad
the targst as budgeted of £1.2 million. The reduction arose as a result of a fall in tha number of
accommodation providers signing up far the QA scheme, and elso 8 dagrea of change in the mix
between large and small organisations laking part and their respective contributory payments,

Remote Comtingent liabilities

As reported in the financial statements {page &8}, the impact of tha change in agcounting policy in 2012 with
regard to the treatment of Government grants, ate., was such that the grants will no longer ba hald in reserve
with amgunits being released over tha life of the asset. However, there remains the possibility that, until the
offigial timeline expires in respect of a number of the grants that have hitherte been received thers may be a
requirement to repay 8 proportion of such grants in tha avent that the associated assets were to be sold or the
nature of thair use was to be changed.

Malco

/S

Acughead CBE

Chief Executiva
YisitScotland
I,-Z Qataber 2017,

24 DIRECTION BY THE SCOTTISH MINISTERS

The Scottish Minstars, in pursuance of Section 6{1} of the Davelopment of Tourism Act 1969, as amanded
by the Tourist Baards (Seotland) Act 2006, hereby give the following direction.

il

i

i}

The statement of accounts for the financial year ended 31 March 2008, and subgaguent years,
shall comply with the accounting principles and disclosura raguirements of the edition of the
Government Financial Reparting Manual {FRah] which is in force Tor the year for which tha
statarnent of accounts are prapared.

The accounts shall be prepared s as to give a true and fair vigw of tha ingome and expenditure
and cash flows for the financial year, and of tha state of affairs as at the end of the financial
yEar.

This direction shall be reproduced as an appendix to the =tatemant of accounts. The direction
given on 11 January 2006 is hereby revaked,

N Bor

Signed by the authority of tha Scottish Ministers
Dated 30 July 2008
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INDEPENDENT AUDRITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF VISITSCOTLAND AND THE AUDITOR
GENERAL FOR SCOTLAND AND THE SCOTTISH PARLIAMENT

This report is made solely 1o the parties to wham it is addressed in accotdanca with the Public Finance and
Acgountability [Scotland) Act 2000 and for no other purpese. In accordance with paragraph 120 of the Code of
Audit Practice approved by the Auditor General for Scotland, | do not undertake 1o have rasponsibilities to
members ar officers, in their individual capacitias, or to third parties,

Rapast on the sudit of the fingncisf statements!

Cpinion on financial statements

| have audited the financial statements in the annual repart and accounts of VisitSeatland for the year ended 31
March 2017 under Lhe Deveiopment of Tourism Act 1963, as amended by the Tourist Boards {Scotland) Act 2006,
The financial statements comprisa the Staternent of Com prehensive Net Expenditure, the Statement of Financial
Position, the Cash Flow Staterment, the Statcment of Changas in Taxpayers' Equity and notes 1o the financial
staterments, including a summary of significant accounting pelicies. The financial reporting framework that has
baan applied in their preparation is applicable law and International Financial Reporting Standards {IFRSs] as
adopted by tha Eurcpean Unich, and as interpreted and adapted by the 201677 Government Financial Reporling
Manual ithe 201617 FRaM].

In my opinion the accompanying financial staterments:

. give & true and fair view in accordance with the Development of Tourism Act 1969, as amended by the
Tourist Boards (Scotland) Act 2008, and directions made thersunder by the Scottish Ministers of the state of
the bady's affairs as at 31 March 2017 and of its het expanditure for the year Lhen endead;

. have been proparly prepared in accordance with IFRSs a8 adoptad by the European Union, as interpreted
and adapted by the 201617 FReM; and

. have been preparad in accordance with tha requiremenis of the Devalopment of Tourism Aot 1868, as
amended by the Tourist Boards (Scotland} Act 2008, and directions made thersunder by the Scottish
Ministars,

Basls of opinion

| conducted my audit in accordance with applicable law and International Standards on Auditing in the UK and
Ireland USAs {UK&I. My responsibilities under thoss standards are furlher describad in the Auditor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of lhe Financial Statermenis section of my report. | am independant of the bady in
accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant 10 my audit of the financial statements in the UK
including the Finansial Raporting Council's Ethizal Standards for Auditors, and | have fulfilled my othet athical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. | balieve that the audit evidence | have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my opinien,

Responsiblitles of the Accoumable Officer for the financial stataments

As sxplained more [Wlly in tha Statemnent of the Accountable Officer's Responsibilitias, the Accountalble Officar is
responsible for the preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with tha
financial reporting framework, and for such internal control as the Accountable Officer determinas is necessary
to enable the preparation of finencial statamants that are free from matarial misstatement, whether dua ta fraud
or orror,

Auditor's respansibliities for the audit of the finencial statements

My responsibiiity is to audit and express an opinion on tha financial statements in aceordance with applicable
legal requirerments and |SAs (UKEI) as required by the Code of Audit Practice approved by the Auditar General
for Scotland. Thuse standards require me to comply with the Financial Feporting Council's Ethical Standards for
Auditors. An audit invalves abtaining evidence about the amounts and distlesures in tha financial statements
sufficient to give reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from material misstaterment,
whether caused by fraud or error. This ingludcs an assessment of: whather the aceounting pelicies are
appropriata to the body's cirgumatances and have baen consistently applied and adequately disclosed; the
regsonablaness of significant accounting estimates made by the Accountabla Officer; and the overalt
presentation of the financial statements.

My objectives are to achiove reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whola are fres
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes my
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurangs, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
aceordance with 1SAs (UKED) will always detoct a material misstatameant when it exisis. Misetaternants can arise
from fraud ur errar and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasanably be
expected 1o influence the aconomic decisions of usars takan on the basis of thesa financial statements.

Cther information in the annugl report and financial statements

The Accountable Officer is responsibla far the other infarmation in the annual repart and financial statements.
The other information comprises the informatian other than the financial statements and my suditor's report
thereon. My opinion on the financial staternents docs not cover the other information and | do not exprass any
form of assurance conclusion thereon except on mattars prescribed by the Auditar Ganeral for Scotland to the
axtent axplicitly stated later in this repart.
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In connection with my audit of the financial statements in accordance with (Sas (UK&LD, my raspensibility is to
read all the financial and ron-financial information in the anhual report and accounts to identify material
inconsistencies with the audited financial stataments and to identify any informaticn that is apparently matarially
incorrect based on, or materially incongistent with, the knowledga acquired by me in the course of parforming
the audit. If | become awars of any spparent material misstatements or inconsistancies | congider the
implications for my report.

Report on reguiarity of expenditure and income

Opinign on regulariy

In my apinion in all material rezpects the expenditure and incoma in the financial statements wers incurred or
applied in accordance with any applicable enactmants ang guidance issued by the Scottizh Ministars.
Responslhilities for regularity

The Accountable Officer is responsible for ensuring the regularity of expenditura and income. | am responsibla
for expragsing an opinion on the regularity of expenditure and income in aceordance with the Public Finance and
Agcountability (Scatland) Act 2000,

Aaport on other requiramants
Opiniong on other prescribed mattars
| am raquirad by the Auditar General for Scatland to express an opinion on the following matters.

In my gpinion, the auditable part of the Remuneration and Staff Beport has been properly prepared in
accerdance with the Davelopment of Tourism Act 18968, as amended by the Tourist Boards [Sootland) Act 2006,
and directions mada thereunder by the Scottish Ministers,

In my opinian, baged on the work undartaken in the course of the audit

. tha infarmation given in the Parfarmance Report for tha financial year for which the financial stataments
arg prepared is consistent with the financial statemants and that report has been prepared in accordance
with the Oevelopmant of Tourism Act 1969, as amended by the Tourist Boards {Scotland) Act 2008, and
directions mada thareunder by the Scottish Ministers: and

. the information given in the Governance Staternent for the financial year for which tha financial statements
are prepared is ¢consistent with the financial statements and that report has bean prepared in accordance
with the Development of Tourism Act 18839, as amendad by the Tourist Boards [Scotland) Act 2008, and
dire¢tions made thersunder hy the Scottish Ministars.

Matters on which | am required to rapart by exception

| am required by the Anditor General for Scotland to report to you if, in my opinian:

. adeguata accounling records have not baen kept; or

. the financial staterments and the auditable part of the Remunaration and Staff Report are not in
agresmeant with the sccounting recards; or

. I have nat received all the infarmation and explanations | require for my audit.

| hava nothing to report in respect of these matters.

@@an Sk

Gordon Smail
Aggistant Chrector
Audit Scotland

4th Floar

102 West Fort
Edinburgh EH3 DN

1_3 Octobar 2017
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VISITSCOTLAND
STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE NET EXPENDITURE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017

Notes 207 2016
£'000 £'000
Resource Expenditure
Marketing activities 42,234 47,630
Partnership engagement 4,284 3,801
Support services 6,676 6,363
53,194 57,794
Non - Resource Expenditure
Pension Costs - IAS 19 adjustments 21{f} 3125 3,714
Gross expenditure 56,319 61,508
Incame
Retail and commercial 5 {6,035} {5,939}
Other income 6 {1,835) {4,920}
Net expenditure 48,449 50,649
Finance costs 7 72 77
Finance income 7 -
Net operating expenditure before taxation 43,5621 50,726
Corporation tax 8 -
Net operating expenditure 48,521 50,726
Other Comprehensive Expenditure /{Income)
Net actuarial {surplus)/deficit on valuation of retirement benefit schemes 21(d) {1,106} {9,418)
Transfer fram revaluation reserve on expiry of Finance Leased assets. 409 51
Transfer to general reserve on expiry of Finance Leased assets {409} {51)
{Surplusl/Deficit arising on revaluation of preperty, plant and equipment {29} {83}
Total othar comprehensive expanditure {1,135} {9,495)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE NET EXPENDITURE 47,386 41,227

The notes on pages 53 to 89 form part of these financial statements

49



VisitScotland : Annual Report and Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 March 2017

VISITSCOTLAND
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT 31 MARCH 2017

Notes 2017 2016
£'000 £'000

Assets
Non-Current
Tangible fixed assets 10 4,463 5,888
Intangible assets g 3 344
Investments in subsidiaries 12 - -
Total non current assets 4,466 6,232
Current
Inventories 13 681 658
Trade and other receivables 14 1,428 3,965
Cash and cash equivalents 15 5,371 4,126
Total current assels 7480 £,749
Non-Current assets classified as held for sale 11 433 265
Total Assets 12,379 15,246
Liabilities
Current
Other borrowings 19 (321) {510}
Trade and other payahles 17 {9,711} {10,487)
Total current liabilities {10,032} {10,997}
Net current liabilities {2,119} {1,283)
Other borrowings 18 (843) {1,368)
Provisions 23 (120) {124}
Other payables 17 -
Retirement benefit obligations 21 {36,129) {34,110)
Total non-current liabilities {37,092) [35,602)
Total Liahlltles (47,124} {46,599)
Net Liabilitias {34.74B) {31,353}
Taxpavyers' agquity
General reserve 478 1,471
Pension reserve {36,129) {34,110}
Revaluation reserve 206 1,286
Total Equity {34,745} {31,353}

The notes on pages 53 to 89 form part of these financial statements

The Chief Execu 've&-’t\'&_nuntahle Officer authorised iheze financial statements far issue on % Qctober 2017

Chief Exeutive & Accountable Officor
YWisitSontiend
'j'f? Qectober 2017
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VISITSCOTLAND
CASH FLOW STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017

2017 2016

Notes £'900 £000
Cash flows from operating activities
Net operating expenditure before taxation 48,521 50,726
frems not involving the flow of cash
Depreciation of tangible fixed assets 10 {1,810) {1,556)
Impairment of tangible non-current assets awaiting sale 1" {42)
Impairment of tangible fixed assets 10 {126) {708)
Amortisation of intangible fixed assets 9 {341} {316)
Surplus arising on de-recognition of Finance Lease asset 105
Net pension service costs and return on assets 21{f} {3,125 {3,714}
Miscellaneous 1
Net financing costs 710 (72} {77)
Movements in working capital
Increase /{Decrease} in inventories 13 23 {219}
{Decrease)/Increase in receivables 14 {2,629} 1,945
Decrease/lIncrease} in payables 17 773 {2,024}
Movement in provisions
{Increase) / Decrease in provisions {4 42
Net cash flow from operations 41,374 44,099
Interest paid 7 72 77
Net cash outflow from operating activities 41,448 44,176
Cash flows from investing activities
Payments to acquire tangible fixed assets 10 787 406
Payments to acquire intangible fixed assets 9 . 94
Net cash flows used in investing actlvities 787 500
Cash flows from financing activitias
Grant-in-Aid from Scottish Government {43,994} {44,932}
Repayment of loans 3 2
Early termination/de-recognition of finance lease asset {201)
Decrease in other borrowings- obligations under finance leases 714 509
Nat cash flows from financing activities (43,478) {44,421)
Net (increasae)/ decrsase in cash and cash equivalents {1,245) 255
Cash and cash equivalents as at 1 April 15 4,126 4,381
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 March 15 5,371 4,126

The notes on pages 53 to 89 form part of these financial statements
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VISITSCOTLAND
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN TAXPAYERS' EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017

General Pension Revaluation
Reserve Reserve Reserve Total

£'000 £'000 £000 £'000
Balance at 1 April 2015 3,500 (39,812) 1,254 {35,058}
Net operating expenditure {60,726) {50,726}
Surplusf{deficit) arising on revaluation of property, plant and equipment . 83 83
Transfer balance on revaluation reserve on expiry of Finance Lease 51 {51}
Transfer between reserves 3714 {3,714}
Net actuarial gains/(losses) in retirement benefit schemes 9,416 9,416
Total recognised income and expensa {46,961} 5,702 3z {41,227)
Grant in aid from Scottish Government 44,932 44,932
Balance at 1 April 2016 1.471 {34.110) 1,286 {31,353}
Net operating expenditure {48,521} - {48,621}
Surplus/(deficit) arising on revaluation of property, plant and equipment - 28 29
Transfer balance on revaluation reserve on expiry of Finance Lease 409 - {409}
Transfer between reserves 3,125 {3,125}
Nat actuarial gains/{losses] in retirement benefit schemes 1,106 - 1,106
Total recognised income and expense {44,987} {2,019 {380} {47,386}
Grant in aid from Scottish Government 43,994 43,894
Balance at 31 March 2017 478 {36,129) 906 {34,745)

The notes on pages 53 to 89 form part of these financial statements
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES

A summary of the principal accounting policies of YisitScotland is sot out below:

Basis of praparation

These finangial staterments have been praparad in accordance with the 201617 Govarnment Financial Reporiing
Manual (FReM} izzued by the Scottish Gowvernment. The aceounting palicies contained n the FRebt apply
Internativnal Financial Reporting Standards {IFRS) as adaptad er interpreted for the public sectar context, and
without limiting the informalion given, the financial statements most the retevant disclosure requiremeants, so far
gs those reguirements are appropriate, and in accordence with the Accounts Diraction given by Scottish
Ministers,

wWhere the FReh permits a choice of accounting policy, the accounting policy which is judged to be most
appropriate to tha panicular circumstances of VisitScotland for the purpese of giving a true and fair view has
been selected,

By reason of the fact that all VisitScotland subsidiaries are now non-trading / dormant, ihere is no longer any
purpose to be served by the consolidation of subsidiary accaunts, since their inclusion is not matarial for the
purpose of giving a true and fair view,

The particular policies adopted by VisitSeotland covering thess financial statements for the yaar ended 31 March
2017 are described below, They have been applied consistently in dealing with the items that are cansiderad
ratarial to the financial statements.

Basis of accounting

Undar Section 61y of The Development of Tourism Act 1968, YisitScotland is required to prepare an annual
Staternent of Ascounts in such form, and containing such particulars as Scottish Ministars may from time to tima
direct. & copy of the Accounts Diraction, at present in forge, is sat out on page 48,

Thasze financial staterments arg presanted in £ sterling, which is the organisation’s functional currency. Al
amounts have been rounded 10 the nearest thousand, unless otherwisa indicated.

(Gaing concern

The tertns of the management statement Detwecn the Scottish Ministers and VisitScotland reqguire that
VisitScotland shall conduct its affairs so a3 to remain solvent within the total resources made available to it by
funding bodies. These financial statamants have been prepared on this basis. VisitScotland has net iabilities as
al the date of the statement of financial position of £34.78 million (2016 £31.38 million net liabilities), arising from
its obligations in respact of the inclusion of retireament benefit obligalions falling due in future years, in
accordance with the accounting treatment required by 1AS 18 "Employee Benefits’,

To tha mxtant that they are not to be met from YisitScotland's othar sources of income, these liabilites may only
be met by future granis or Grant-in-Aid from the Secottish Gavernmaent. This is because, under the normal
conventions applying ta the parliamentary control ovar income and expenditure, such grants may not be issued
in advance of need,

Grant in Aid for 2017-18, 1aking into account the esmuunts reguired to meet the VisitScotland’s liabilities falling
dus in that year, has already been included in the Scottish Gowvernment's estimates for that yesr, which have
been approved by the Scottish Parliamert, There is no reason to believe that the Scottish Government's future
sponsorship and future parliamontary approval will not be forthcoming, Accordingly, it has bsen considered
appropriate to adopt a gaing concarn basis for the preparation of thess financial siatements. Details of
VisilSoatland s liquidity position is given in Nota 22,

Accounting convention

Thege financial statements have been preparad under the historical cost convention modified to account for the
revaluation of proparty, plant and eguipment, intangibles, inventories, and assets classified as held for sale.

MNon-Consalidation

In accordance wilh saction 405 of Companies Act 2006, and with the egresment of the Scottish Government,
VizitScotland no longer prepares consolidated financial statemants embracing its subsidiary ¢ompanias since all
ara now in a dormant state, and their inclusion is no longer material to show a true and fair view,

I addition, VisitScotland does not have any Equity accounted investees - associates and jointly controlled
entities,

Funding

Much of tha expenditure incurred by VisitScotland is met from funds advanced by the Scottish Government
within an approved allocation of Grami-in-Aid {*G1A"), Cash drewn down to fund axpenditure within this
approved allocation is creditad to the genaral fund,



VisitScotland : Annual Report and Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 March 2017

Income

Income is received from a variety of retail and commercial operations, revenue grants, business partner
contributions and other sources, and is recognised in the peried in which it is receivable. Income from the sale of
products, goods and services is recegnised in the period in which ownership transfers or the service is provided
1o the extent that the income has become receivable. Grants and contributions are recognised in the period to
which they relate.

Where applicable, income is shown exclusive of Value Added Tax (VAT).
Government grants

Where assets are financed by government grant or donation, the funding element is recognised as income and
taken through the statement of comprehensive net expenditure. Deferral of this income will only occur when a
condition has been imposed by the funder to the extent that it must be a requirement that the future economic
benefits embodied in the grant/donaticn are consumed as specified by the grantor/donor or must be returned to
them.

Grants-in-Aid received from the Government, whether for revenue or capital purposes, are treated as
contributions from controlling parties giving rise to a financial interest in the residual interest of the reporting
entity, and are credited to general reserves, and not to income or deferred income.

Expenditure
i} Marketing activities

Marketing activities incorporate all expenditure, direct and indirect, associated with the marketing, selling,
suppert, and deliverance of the principal function of VisitScotland, i.e. the development of tourism in Scotland.

The expenditure is recorded in the period in which the goods are received, or the services are carried out, and
includes costs associated with United Kingdom and international marketing, digital & media communications,
grant payments made towards domestic and international event tourism, visitar information network services
and infrastructure support, tourist publications, web-based outlet facilities, salaries, and miscellansous selling
and support costs.

iy Partnership engagement

Partnership engagement includes all expenditure relating to the involvement with commerce, industry and local
government in the development of partnership arrangements to promote tourism in Scotland, together with all
expenditure associated with the provisien of direct support in the maintenance, and monitoring, of quality
standards within the network of providers of tourist accommaodation and facilities across Scotland.

The expenditure is recorded in the period in which the goaods are received, or the services carried out, and also
includes salary related costs associated with business development managers and quality assurance assessors,
together with all related ancillary costs.

ili} Support services

Support services include the remaining administrative costs of running the arganisation, which embraces central
procurement, human resources, facilities, and finance, and includes related salaries, general administrative
expenses and other miscellaneous costs.

Where applicable, all categories of expenditure are shown exclusive of Value Added Tax (VAT).
Grants paid

Grants awarded to third parties are accounted for on an accruals basis, subject to the grantee meeting specific
terms and conditions attached to each grant.

Invantories

Inventories of saleable publications, retail and promotional items are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Costs incurred in producing free issue brochures, and obtaining promotional items for which no
selling price is charged, are written off to the statement of comprehensive net expenditure in the year of
purchase.

Foreign exchange

Assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies have been translated into Sterling equivalent values at
the spot rate of exchange ruling at the date of the statement of financial position. All transactions in foreign
currencies are translated into the sterling equivalent at the spot rate ruling at the date of the transaction. Any
exchange rate fluctuations are taken to the statement of comprehensive net expenditure.
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Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an acquisition over VisitScotland’s interest in the net fair value of
their identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities at the date of acquisition, and is carried at cost less
accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill on acquisitions of joint ventures and associates is included in the
carrying amount of the investment.

On the partial or complete disposai of an operation, the goodwill attributable to that operation is included in the
determination of the gain or loss on disposal.

A review of the impairment of goodwill is carried out annually by directars, and any impairment charged to the
statement of comprehensive net expenditure.

Intangible assets

In accordance with IFRS 3 an intangible asset acquired in a business combination is deemed to have a cost to
VisitScotland of its fair value at the acquisition date. The fair value of the intangible asset reflects market
expectations about the probability that the future economic benefits embodied in the asset will flow to the
organisation. Intangible assets, arising upon acquisition, are recognised separately from goodwill.

Under IAS 328 “Intangible Assets”, after initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at their re-vaiued
amounts, being their fair value at the date of the revaluation, less any subsequent accumulated amortisaticn, and
any subsequent accumulated impairment losses, untess there is no active market far those assets, in which case
the assets are carried at the lower of depreciated replacement cost and value in use for cash generating assets,
and depreciated replacement cost for non-generating assets.

Other intangible assets are stated at fair value determined at the date of acquisition of the related underlying
business, or at cost if they are separately acquired or represent internally developed software, less accumulated
amartisation and impairment losses.

Direct costs related to the develapment of software for internal use are capitalised only if the costs can be
measured reliably, technologically feasibility has been established, future economic benefits are probable and
VisitScotland intends to use the software. All other costs, including all overhead, general and administrative and
training costs, are expensed as incurred.

Amortisation is computed, and charged to the statement of comprehensive net expenditure, using the straight-
line method based on the estimated useful lives, which are as follows:

Information technalogy 3-4 years
Software licenses 3 - 4 years
Web site development 4 -10 years

Scftware licenses are capitalised when they are capable of being used in VisitScotiand activities for more than
one year, can be valued, and have a cost of at least £2,000.

The useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the date of each statement of financial position.

An impairment review of other intangible assets is carried cut annually by directers, and any impairment
charged to the statement of comprehensive net expenditure.

Impairment

The carrying value of VisitScotland’s assets, except deferred tax assets, is reviewed at the date of each statement
of financial position to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If such an indication exists, the
asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. The recoverable amount of an asset is the higher of fair value less costs
to sell and value in use.

Gooawilf

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to each of the cash generating units that is
expected to benefit from the synergies of a business comhbination. Each unit, to which the goodwill is allocated,
represents the lowest level within VisitScotland at which goodwill is monitored for internal management
purposes.

Cash-generating units to which goodwill has been allocated are tested for impairment annually, or more
frequently when there is an indication that the cash-generating unit may be impaired.

Goodwill on acquisitions of equity accounted investees is assessed for impairment as part of the investment
whenever there is an indication that the investment may be impaired.

An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the cash-generating unit's carrying amount exceeds
its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of a cash-generating unit’s fair value less cost to
sell and its value in use, An impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of the goodwill and
then to the other asset of the cash generating unit pro-rata on the basis of the carrying amount of each asset in
the cash-generating unit.

Any impairment loss recognised for goadwill is not reversed in subseguent periods.
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MNon-current assets other than goodwilf

Non-current assets are assessed at fair value. An impairment loss is recognised in the statement of
comprehensive net expenditure for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable
amount.

In subsequent years, impairment losses recognised in respect of non-current assets other than goodwill may be
reversed, and recognised immediately in the statement of comprehensive net expenditure. The carrying amount
is increased to the revised estimate of the recoverable amount, so that the increased carrying amount does not
exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised in prior
years,

Property, plant and equipment
Froperty - Land and Buildings
Land and buildings are carried at fair value.

The fair value of all land and buildings is assessed by performing a full valuation at least every five vears, and an
interim valuation in year three. Interim valuations are carried out in years one, twoe and four where it is deemed
likely that there has been a material change in value. The valuations are carried out by professionally Cualified
Valuers, in accordance with the Rayal Institution of Chartered Surveyors Appraisal and Valuations Standards,
insofar as these Standards are consistent with the agreed requirements of the FReM.

Land is regarded as having unlimited useful life and therefore is not depreciated,
Buildings are depreciated cn straight line basis over their expected useful lives between 30-50 years.

Buildings under the course of canstruction are valued at current cost (determined by the application af an
appropriate index to the incurred cost) during the construction phase as an asset under construction. At first
valuation after being brought into use, any write down of the cost is treated as impairment, and charged to the
statement of comprehensive net expenditure.

After initial valuation, upen subsequent revaluation gains are credited to the statement of comprehensive net
expenditure to the extent that they reverse previous impairment an that asset, All other gains are credited to the
revaluation reserve,

Losses on revaluation are first charged against the surplus previously credited to reserve for that property, to the
extent of that surplus, with the balance of any loss being charged to the statement of comprehensive net
expenditure.

An annual review takes place to consider |osses in value (impairment) due to a change in the consumnption of
economic benefits, with such losses being charged to the statement of comprehensive net expenditure.

Leasehold Property - designated as Finance L easss
Leasehold land is accounted for as an operating lease.

In respect of leasehald buildings, the subject of a finance lease, they are recognised at their fair value, or if lower,
at the present value of the minimum fease payments, each determined at the inception of the lease.

At first valuation after being brought inte use, any write down of the cost is treated as impairment and charged
to the statement of comprehensive net expenditure,

Subsequent valuations are undertaken on the basis of the fair value of VisitScotland's remaining heritable
interest in the leased building, at least every five years, with an interim valuation being carried out in year three.
Interim valuaticns are carried out in years ong, twe and four, where it is deemed likely that there has been a
material change in value.

The valuations are carried out by professionally Qualified Valuers, in accordance with the Roval Institution of
Chartered Surveyors Appraisal and Valuations Standards, insofar as these Standards are consistent with the
agreed requirements of the FReM.

Gains arising on revaluation are credited to the revaluation reserve, and losses on revaluation are first charged
against the surplus remaining, previcusly credited to the reserve, for that property, to the extent of that surplus,
with the balance of any loss being charged to the statement of comprehensive net expenditura,

Upan early termination of a lease any surplus remaining in the revaluation reserve in respect of a leasehold
building is transferred to the statement of comprehensive net expenditure in the year of termination.

An annual review takes place to consider any losses in value {impairment) due to a change in the consumption of
economic benefits, with such losses being charged to the statement of comprehensive net expenditure.

Non-Property
Leasehold building improvements

Refurbishments are carrisd at fair value using appropriate indices, and depreciated straight line over the
expected life of the building, or the term of the relevant lease, when shorter.
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Flant, Equipment, Fixtures and Fittings

Itemns of plant, equipment, fixtures and fittings are stated at cost, or valuation, less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses.

Cast includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition or construction of an asset, and includes
borrowing costs incurred during construction.

Depreciatian is computed, and charged to the statement of comprehensive net expenditure, using the straight-
line methad based upon the estimated useful lives of the items of plant, equipment, fixtures and fittings, taking
into account the estimated residual value, together with any provision for permanent diminution in value.

All other subseguent expenditure represents repairs and maintenance, and is expensed as incurred.

The estimated useful lives of plant, equipment, fixtures and fittings are:

Vintage railway carriage 25 years
Fixtures and fittings & -10 years
Plant & equipment 4 -6 years
IT hardware equipment 4 years
Maotor vehicles 4 years

Only plant and equipment and computer hardware costing in excess of £2,000 are capitalised.

The assets’ useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each balance sheet date.

Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets are reviewed regularly to ensure that they continue to contribute positively to policy and
business objectives. Assets that no longer provide the required level of contribution are considered for dispasal
by senior management.

Non-current assets are classified as assets held for sale when their carrying amounit is to be recovered principally
through a sale transaction, the asset is being actively marketed for sale, and a sale within a period of 12 months
is considered highly probable.

Non-current assets held for sale are stated at the lower of carrying amount and fair value less costs of dispasal.

Non-current assets held for sale are not depreciated, however, any impairment is charged to the statement of
comprehensive net expenditure.

Leases

VraiiSrotland a5 8 lassag

Praperty, plant and equipment acquired through finance lease arrangements or long-term rental arrangements
that transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership are capitalised.

They are recognised at their fair value at the inception of the lease, or if lower, at the present value of the
minimum lease payments. The corresponding liability to the lessor is included in the statement of financial
position as a financing obligation. Lease payments are apportioned between finance charges and repayment of
the finance lease obligation so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability.
Finance charges are charged directly to the statement of comprehensive net expenditure,

Contingent rentals are charged to the statement of comprehensive net expenditure in the period in which they
are incurred.

Assets held under finance ieases are depreciated over their expected useful lives, on the same basis as owned
assets, or the term of the relevant lease, whichever is shorter.

Leasehold Property - Land and Buildings - in use on a peppercorn rent are deemed ‘owned’ by VisitScotland, and
recorded at fair value in the statement of financial position, and depreciated over their useful lives or the term of
the relevant lease, whichever is shorter.

Leases that do not transfer substantially al! risks and rewards incidental to ownership are classified as operating
leases. Rentals payable are charged 1o the statement of comprehensive net expenditure on a straight-line basis
over the term of the relevant lease.

Benefits received and receivable as an incentive to enter into an operating lease are recegnised as a reduction of
rental expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

VisitScotiand as a lessor

Assets leased out under operating leases are included within their respective asset designation, and depreciated
over their useful lives. Rental income, including the effect of lease incentives, is recognised on a straight line
basis over the lease term.
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In the event that lease incentives ara paid 1o lessees to enter into operating leasas, such ingentives are mitially
recorded as an asset and racognised as a reduction of rental ravanue in tha statement of comprehensive net
expenditura an a straight-line basis over the term.

Whers Visitioatland transfers substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership of the assat, the arrangement
it classified as a finance leasa and & receivable is recognised for tha initial diregt costs of the izase and the
present value of the minimum lease payments.

As payments fall due, finance income ia recognisad in tha statement of camprehensive net expenditure so as W
achigve a constant rate of return on tha remaining net inveatment in the lease.

Taxation

The tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the statement of
cemprehensive net expenditure axcept to the exlent thet it relates to items recognisad directly in reserves. In this
case, the tax iz alzo recognised in reserves.

The currant corporation tax charge is caleulatad on the Basis of 1he tax laws enacted, or substantivaly enacted, at
the balance sheet date, and adjustments for current taxes peayable {receivable] for prior yaars.

¥isitScotland iz liable to corporation tax only on bank intarest raceived at the rate under current legislation,
enacted,. or substantively enacted at the date of the statement of finangial pasiticn,

Defarrad tax

In agcordance wilh 1AS 12 “Income Taxas', full provision is made for tax assets and liabilitias, arising from timing
differerces between recognition of gains and losses in the financial stataments and their recognition in the tax
com putation,

Deferred tax is recognisad, using the liability methed, on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of
assets and liakilities and their carrying amounts in the fingancial statements.,

Defarred tax is measured at the avarage tax rates that are expectad to apply in the perigds i which timing
differences are expected to reversse, based on tax rates and laws that have besn enacted, or substantially
enacted, at the date of the statement of financial position. Deferrad tax is measurad on a nen-discounted basis,

Defarrad tax assets, including deferred tax assats for tax loss carry forward positions, and tax cradit carry
forward posgitions, are recognised only to the extenl that it is probable that future taxahle ingcome will be
available against which tamporary differences, unused tax losses or unused tax credits can be utilised.

Finencial instruments
Fingneial fiabilities
Borrowings

VisitScotland borrowings are derlved principally from cantral Governmenl bodies, Local Authorities and axtarnal
third parties. The harrowings are either at a fixad, or a variable rate of interest, depending upon the nature of the
loan agreement, until the repayment data.

The loans are recognised initially at fair value {plusinet of transactian costel, and suksaquantly al amortised cost
wnder the effective interast rate method.

The effactive intarest rate is the rate which exactly discounts estimated future cash flows through tha axpectad
life of the horrpwings, or where appropriate, 3 shorter period, 10 the net carrying amount of tha borrowings.

Trade and other payables

Trade and cther payables are initially recognised at fair value, which rapresant the invoiced amounts, less
adjustment for estimated revenue deductions and subsaquantly measured at amortised cost.

Financial assote
Caszh and cash equivalents

Cach and cash equivalents comprise cash in hand and demand depasits, tagether with other short-term, highly
liquid investments that are readily eonvertible into known amgunts of cash, and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value. Cash and cazh equivalgnts with regard to GIA and all expenditure ara hald
within the Government Banking Service {“GBS™) nominated accounts, and miscellaneous racaivables within
other commercial bank balances.

At initial recognition, VisitScotland classifies all other financial assats as sither {i} at fair value through the
statement of comprehensive net expenditure {ii) loans and receivables or (i} available for sale, depending on tha
purpose for whigh the financial assets wara agquired, Financial assets are initially recognised at fair value
tplusingt of transaction costa).

Oiher financial assets

i Al fair value through the statgment of comprefiensive net expanditura
0]
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Financial assets in this categary arc either held for trading or designated at fair vahae through tha statement of
comprehansive net expenditure, and are stated at fair valua, with any resultant gain or loss recognised it the
statement of comprehensive nel expenditure.

fFi) { oans and receivables

This category comprises trade receivables, loans, and other receivables that have fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active market.

Trade receivables are initially recognised at fair value that represent the invoiced amounts, less adjustments for
estimated revenue deductions such as rebates and cash discounts.

Loans and other receivables are carried at amortised cost (plus/net transaction costs} using the effective interest
method, less any impairment losses. They are included in current assets, except for loans and receivables with
maturities greater than 12 months after the date of the statement of financial position.

{iif) Available for sale

Available for sale financial assets are those non-derivative financial assets that are either designated in this
gategory or not classified in any of the other categories.

They are measured at fair value based on quoted market prices. Gains and losses arising from changes in fair
value are recognised in the statement of comprehensive net expenditure.

Impairment of financial assets

If there is any subsequent indication that those assets may be impaired, they are reviewed for impairment, Any
difference between the carrying value and the impaired vaiue (net realisable value) is recorded in the statement
of comprehensive net expenditure.

The impairment loss can be reversed if the value is recovered in the future. In which case, the reversal of the
impairment loss is reported within the statement of comprehensive net expenditure.

Critical accounting estimates and judgements

The preparation of the financial statemants in confarmity with IFRS requires the Board and Accountable Officer
to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the
reported amount of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors,
inciuding expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

Information about critical judgements in applying accounting pelicies that have the most significant effects on
the amounts recognised in the financial statements is as follows:

(i} Retirement benefit obligations

The present value of retirement bensfit obligations depends upan a number of factors that are determined on an
actuarial basis using a number of assumptions.

The assumptions used in determining the net cost or income for pensions include discount rate, salary growth,
inflation rate, ete. Any changes in these assumptions will impact the carrying amount of retirement benefit
calculations.

VisitScotland determines the appropriate discount rate at the end of each year. This is the interest rate that
should be used to determine the present value of estimated future cash outflows expected to be required to
settle the retirement benefit obligations.

In determining the appropriate discount rate, the VisitScotland considers the interest rates of hig h-quality
corporate bonds that are denominated in the currency in which the benefits will be paid, and that have terms to
maturity approximating the terms of the related retirement benefit obligations.

VisitScotland determines the appropriate rate for salary inflation based on consideration of inflation and long
term assumptions in respect of salary increases.

Other key assumpticns for retirement benefit obligations are based, in part, on current market conditions.
Additional information is disclosed in Note 21,
(it} Valuation of assets

The discounted cash flow model used to assess the impairment of intangible and tangible assets includes a
number of assumptions, including estimates of future cash flows, discount rate, and other variables.

VisitScotland determines the appropriate discount rate at the end of each year that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money, and the risks specific to the asset.
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Comparative amounts

Comparative amounts are provided in accordance with 1AS 1 ‘Presentation of Financial Statements’, excapt
where a Standard or Interpretation permits otherwise and includes narrative and descriptive information when
this is relevant to the understanding of the financial statements.

if it is necessary to re-classify comparative amounts, but deemed impractical so to do, in accordance with 1AS 1
re-classification is not adopted, and a note shown in the financial statements to that effect.

Changes in accounting policy, accounting estimates and mis-statements

Changes in accounting policy, accounting estimates and mis-statements, are recognised in accordance with the
requirements of IAS 8 ‘Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors’.

Provisions
Provisions are recognised when;

i) VisitScotland has a present (legal or constructive} obligation as a result of past events;
i) it is more likely than not that an outflow of rescurces will be required to settle the obligation, and
iii} the amount can be reliably estimated.

The amount recognised is the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the obligation. Provisions are
discounted (at a rate prescribed by HM Treasury) whenever the effect of the time value of money is significant.

Related party transactions

Related party transactions are identified, considered and disclosed in line with the requirements of !1AS 24
‘Related Party Disclosures’ {Note 28).

Employee benefits
{a) Retirement benefits

VisitScotland employees are members of either Scottish Local Government Pension Schemes {"LGPS") or the
British Tourist Boards’ Pension Scheme {“BTBPS”). All existing and new members of staff have the option of
joining either the Lothian local government pension scheme or the BTBPS.

Local Governmaent Pension Schemes, and the British Tourist Boards’ Pension Scheme (“the Schemes “)

The Schemes are defined benefit pension schemes providing benefits based on final pensionable pay, which are
contracted out of the State Earnings-Related Pension Fund, Assets and liabilities of the Schemes are held
saparately from those of VisitScotland,

Defined benefit obligations are actuarially calculated at least annually at the date of the statement of financial
position using the projected unit credit method. The present value of the defined benefit obligations is
determined by discounting the estimated future cash outflows using interest rates of high-quality corporate
bonds in the currency in which the benefits will be paid, and that have an average duration similar to the
expected duration of the related pension liabilities.

Contributions to the Schemes are calculated so as to spread the cost of pensions over employees’ working lives
with VisitScotland. The contributions are determined by independent actuaries on the basis of triennial
valuations using the Age Attained Method. The actuaries also review the progress of the Schemes in each of the
intervening years. Variations from regular cost are spread over the expected average remaining working lifetime
of members of the Schemes after making allowances for future withdrawals.

The expected cost of providing staff pensians to employees contributing to the Schemes is recognised in the
statement of comprehensive net expenditure on a systematic basis over the expected average remaining lives of
members of the funds in accordance with 1AS 19 ‘Employee Benefits’ and recognises retirement benefits as the
benefits are earned and not when they are due to be paid.

All actuarial gains and losses so determined are recegnised through the statement of comprehensive net
expenditure,

{b) Short-term employee benefits

A liability and an expense is recognised for holiday days, holiday pay, bonuses and other short-term benefits
when the employees render service that increases their entitlement to these benefits. As a result an accrual has
been made for helidays earned, but not taken. Accruals are recognised for material amounts in respect of holiday
days, holiday pay, bonuses and other short-term benefits earned but not taken or paid at the date of the
statement of financial position.

(c} Revised accounting standard — 1AS 19 (Employee Benefits)

Revisions to IAS 19 (Employee benefits) came into effect from 1 January 2013 for accounting periods starting
after that date, and subsequent amendments as adopted thereafter. The revised standard provides for increased
disclosure analysis of pension assets in use, and restricts the estimated rate of return to be earned on pension
assets to a level equivalent to the discount rate used in assessing future pension liabilities.
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Losses and special payments

Met operating cost includes certain |osses which would hava besn made good through insuranca cover had
VigitScotland not been bearing its known risks. Losses and special payments are disclosed in Note 24 1o the
financial statemants.

Accounting standards Issued but not yet adopted

&l International Financial Reporting Standards, Interpretations and Amandments to published standards,
effective at 31 March 2017, have been adopted, where applicable to VisitScotland,

Tharg are a2 number of new aecounting standards which have bean issued, but have not yet besn applied by
VisitSeotland in these financial statements. The standards that are considered relevant to VisitScetland and the
anticipated impact on the financial statemants ara as follows:

IFRS 4 - Financial instruments (2014}

This standard is mandatory for accounting periods commeancing on or after 1 January 2018. Thae standerd
replaces 1AS 38 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement. The adoption of [FRS 8 could thange the
classification and measureament of financial assats. The impect on the financial statements has nol been
detarmined,

IFRS 15 = Revenue from coniracts with customers

This standard is mandatery for eccounting periods commencing on or after 1 January 2018. This standard
cstahlizshes a comprehensgive framework for delermining whather, how much and when ravenue is recognised by
dapicting the transfer of pramised goods or services 1o customars in an amount that refleets consideration to
which the entity expects to be entitled in axchange for thuse goods and servicas. The new revenue slandard will
supersede all currant ravenue recognition requiremants under IFAS. The impact on the financial statements has
not been determined,

IFRS 16 - Leases {2015)

This standard is mandatary for accounting periods cormmencing on ar aftar 1 January 2018, The adoptian of this
standard will affect VisitScotland, as a lessee of property, vehicles and equipmant. The new standard provides a
singla lessee accounting meodal, eliminating the distinction batween operating and finange laasas, requiring
lgssaes to recognise assets and liahilities for all leases unless the lease term is 12 months or less or the
underlying assat has a low value,

The impact on the financial statements has not bean determined.

2. SEGMEMNTAL REPURTING

As of 1 April 2015 VisitScotland underwant a strategic restructure of its Diractorate operations 1o provide
enhanced support and commitment in furtherange of its objectives, and as a conseguence, with the merging af
operational & management reporting requirements thare is no longer considered the nead for segmental
reparting that distinguished betwean VisitScotland and its special evant outlet - EventScotland,
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3 STAFF COSTS
included within gross expenditure
2017 2016
Numbar Number
Salaries, Social Security & Voluntary Severance 19,231 17,760
Pensicn Costs - Current service 4 446 4,922
Total staff costs 23,877 22,682
Further details on Total Staff Costs can be found within the Remuneration & Staff report {see 2.2 - pages 40 & 41}
4 ADMINISTRATION QVERHEADS
included within gross expenditure
2017 2016
£'000 £000
Travel and hospitality 1,067 1,181
Property, information technology, and office expenses 3.827 4,687
Operating lease rentals:
Property 1,277 1,342
Vehicles and equipment 101 152
Depreciation of tangible fixed assats 1,810 1,656
Amortisation of intangible assets kY 318
Impairment of tangible fixed assets 126 708
Impairment of tangible non-current assets awaiting sale 42
Surplus arising on de-recognition of Finance Lease asset {105)
Net interest cost and return on pension assets 1,276 1,312
Trade bad debts
Written off 25 25
Increase f{decrease] in provision 8 {38)
{Decreasel increase in past pension provision i4) (4}
Total administration overheads 9,781 11,237
Administration overheads also includes: 2017 2016
£'000 £'000
Fees payable for the audit of these financial statements 66 N
Total audit fees Fil
TOTAL STAFF COSTS & ADMINISTRATION OVERHEADS 33,468 33919
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§ RETAIL AND COMMERCIAL INCOME

2017 2016
£'000 £'000
Retail
Froducts income 3,079 3,126
Cost of sales {1,457 {1.477}
Gross surplus 1,622 1,648
Other consumer income 118 166
I 1,738! 1,815
Commercial
Business promotion and advertising 2,177 2,192
Quality assurance 1,044 1,309
Miscellaneous income 1,076 623
4,297 4,124
Tatal retail and commercial insome 6,036 5,938
6 OTHER INCOME
2017 2016
£'000 £'000
Other Government Departmental funding - 2,715
Local authority income 1,116 1,517
European regional development fund income - 265
Enterprise agency contributions a4 110
Sundry income 625 313
Total other incorne 1,835 4,920
7 FINANCING COSTS
2017 2018
£'000 £000
Finance costs
Interest payable on loans { The amount paid was under £125} .
tnterest charge - finance lease obligations 72 77
Total financa cost 72 77
Finance income
Bank interest receivable {The amount received was under £250} -
Total finance income - -
7(i} NET FINANCING COSTS 72 77
8 TAXATION
2017 2018
£'000 £000
Corporation Tax
Current tax { The amount payable is under £50 } -
Total tax charge - -
Current tax

Corporation tax is calculated at 19% { 2016:20%) based on bank interest received during the year.
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9 INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Devalopment Acquired Softwara
Costs Taghnology Licenzes Tatal

£000 £'000 £00d £000
At April 2015 2,248 1,16 JEd 4178
Re-allocation 51 12) (48]
Additions o4 - - 94
At 31 March 2016 2,393 1.148 il 4,272
AL T April 2016 2,232 1,743 731 4,272
Addditions - 5 z =
At 31 March 2017 2393 1,148 731 4,272
Amortigation
At 1 April 2015 1.E00 1,081 FES| 34612
Re-allocation 1 - (1} -
Charge faor the year 279 16 1 315
At 31 March 201E 2080 1,11% 731 3,928
At April 2016 2,080 1,117 741 3828
Re-allocation - - -
Charge for the yoar MG 31 - 341
At 21 March 2017 2,380 1.148 N 4,268
Net book value
At 31 March 2017 | - = 3
At 21 March 2016 313 21 . 244
At 27 March 2015 448 5z] 48 GEEG
Aszet Financing
Cwned S beneficially ownad 3 = . 3
Finance Leasze -
Mat book valus 3 i . 3

At 31 March 2017

10 TANGIBLE AXED ASSETS
Freehold Fropert)
All Freehold Land & Buildings, and those held under baneficial ownership, were valucd at 31 March 2017 by
Graham & Sibbald - Chartered Surveyors, oh a lair value bagis 85 defined in the Yaluation Slandards
Standards 2014 [Red Book] issued by The Royal Ingtitution of Chartered Survayors.

Laasphaid Finance Lesse Properl)y
All Finange Leasehold propatlies were valued at 31 Mareh 2017 by Graham & Sibhald - Chartered Surveyors
on & fair value bazis wilh regard to the remaining heritabla intarest of VisitSeotland,

Aff Praportios

Far this yuar [Yaar 1inthe valuation cycla ) the values of the respective propertias hava been assassed on a desk-
tope basis, and have only been adjusted whare there has heen a material change therein, and for thers was desmed
a naed to inzpect the property 1o re-assass it value, and amend, aoeordingly.
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10 TANGIELE FIXED ASSETS |continued)

Fixtures, ¥intaga
Leazehold Fitings&  Computer Wlotar Railway
Land Buildings  Improvermnants Equipment  Eguipment  Vehiclas Carviaps Tokl

£'000 £'000 £000 £'o00 £400 gl £10 £'000
At cant or valuation
At Agnt 2018 445 4,540 f,103 740 106 43 Lty 1 506
Additions - a3 N 163 : . 404
Imrpairmet - I [32B| . . . - T
Aovaluaton 1 g b - - - . x|
Trangfer an revaluatior - 11,566 - : . - : " BRI
Ae-al-ocaton T )
Transfer - pweiting Sale IGE 1194) : % ¥ ? . 1266|
Ak 11 March 2095 367 2402 5,948 7,750 2,259 LE] 447 18,875
At Bpril 2016 JBT 2802 b.a9E 1,780 213 &3 497 10,876
Anditions - 20 266 2 45 - - 187
I pairment - 126l . - - . - 125!
Revaluation - i - - - . - 2
Dispozals : 05| ; 1238) - . . AL}
Trangfer - awaiti1g 3ale . 12100 - : - . - 12100
At 31 March 2017 B 2,550 B, 264 B804 2,787 Lx] 497 15,372
Cepresiation
A1 April 2 - 1033 4,212 b T A 43 144 “ 3,58
Charge for the year - 233 A0 170 21 - L 1,508
Tranzfer a1 revaluatian : [1.388 . - - . * [~ BGEI
At 31 March 2016 - - 4817 1,165 1,803 43 160 13, 0EE
At 1 Aprl $C16 - - 4817 1165 1,303 43 160 13,968
Charge for tre year - 435 559 43 252 - 20 1810
Cn Jispoeals . : : [339) 2 : . 85
At 31 March 2017 - 435 5,378 6,710 2,168 X 180 14,808
hek book value
At 31 March 2017 35 211E et 194 L) = 1? 4,483
At 31 March 2016 387 2502 1,161 (vl 4Bk : Kk 5,444
At 31 March 2015 A4 155 1,892 T4 bz . aEr TR
Asaet Financing
Covned ¢ benefically ownad 7 457 A28 1% a62 ' nr 5.5
Finarne Lease = 1.1 = g ¢ : - 1,118
A W 215 3 194 62 .

At 81 March 2017

i)
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11 NON-CURRENT ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE

2017 2016
£'000 £'000
Frashold property

At 1st Aprii 265
Assets transferred in year 210 265
475 268

Impairment 42
At 31 March 433 265

Land and buildings which are demonstrably available for sale on the open market, and for which a sale might be expacted to
be compieted within the ensuing year, are classified within current assets, and are valued at market value less sale costs.

12 INVESTMENT
Investment in subsidiaries
The totaf cost of the shareholdings held in the subsidiaries as at 31 March 2017 is £100 { 2016 : £100 )

Subsidiary companies

VisitScotland's six subsidiary companies, all of which are wholly owned, are classifisd as nen-trading and dormant,
namely:

- Scottish Tourist Board Limited

- Etourism Limited

- TourCo Limitsd

- Tourist Board Training Limited - Limited by quarantes

- VisitScotland Limited

- VisitShetland Limited
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13 INVENTORIES

2017 2016

£'000 £'000
Retail stock 681 658
At 31 March 681 658

14 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

2017 2016

£'000 £'000
Current
Trade receivables 1177 2,180
less: Provision for impairment (114) {106)
Trade receivables - net 1,063 2,084
Prepayments 303 166
Agcrued income 50 1,700
Other receivables 12 15
At 31 March 1,428 3,965
Trade and other receivables reported above include:
Receivables - Public sector balances

07 2016

£'000 £'000
Current
Local Authorities 101 237
QOther Central Government bogies 134 2,124
At 31 March 235 2,361

15 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

2017 2016

£'000 £'000
Balance at 1 April 4,126 4,381
Net change in cash and cash equivalent balances 1,245 {255)
At 31 March 5,371 4,126
The balances at 31 March were held at:
Commercial banks and cash in hand 2,162 3,222
Government Banking Service 3,209 304
At 31 March 5471 4,128

Outwith monies held within the Government banking framework, cash at bank earns interest at fioating rates
based on daily bank deposit rates
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16 RECEIVABLES - FROVISION FOR IMPAIRMENT

Impairment provisions are used to record impairment losses unlass YisitSeetland is satisfied that no recovary
of tha amount ¢wing is possible; at that point the amount is considered irracovarabla and written off directly
against tha finaneclal asset,

Impalrmént provisians are as follows:

Trada Other
racalvables receivables Tatal

£19000 £'000 £000
At 1 April 2015 144 144
Lltilizsed during year I=Fa] 167}
Mrrverment in Provigion 29 z9
At 31 March 2016 106 108
At April 2018 106 106
Utiliead during year {5} 184
Movement in Pravision 102 102
At 31 March 2017 114 5 114
Tha following represents VisitScotland receivahles far which full provision has baan made at 31 March 2017
and the ageing of thess receivebies was as follows:

27 2018
£'000 7000

Undler 80 days "
Impairmant -
Cver 80 days 114 106
Impairment 1144 (165
Impsired recalvables at 31 March 114 116

Other Lhan amounts due from subsidiary undertakings, receivablas assessad as individually impaired were mainly as

a result of various bed and breakfast, and hotsl estahlishments, which went into adminigttation, liquidation, ete,
Receivables which ara less than three months past their due rate are net considered to be impaired.

At31 March 2017 recefvables with & carrying valug of FNIL | 2015; EMIL ) ware past thair due date, but not considered

to be impaired.

At 31 March
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17 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
a) Current
2017 2016
£'000 E'000
Trade payables 520 1317
Social security and other taxes n 34
Amounts owed to subsidiary undertakings 47 47
Accruals 7,944 8037
Deferred income 583 72
Loans - 3
Other payables 274 18
8mMm 10,487
Corporation tax
At 31 March 8711 10,487
Trade and other payables reported above include:
b) Public sector balances
2017 2016
£'000 £'000
Current
Local Authorities - 20
Other Central Government bodies 532 344
At 31 March 532 363
18 LOANS
Current Mon - current
Within  Between After Total
1year 1-5years Gyears 31 March
£'000 £'000 £'000 £000
Aberdeen Council Loans Fund - Unsecured 3 . . 3
At 31 March 2016 3 - - 3
Aberdeen Council Loans Fund - Unsecured - - ™ -
At 31 March 2017 - - -

The Aberdeen Council Loans Fund loan was repaid during the year. The loan was subject to a variable rate of interest during the
year of 4.07% pa.
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19 OTHER BCRROWINGS
Flnanee lease pbligations are payabla a8 follows:

Minimum Future Present value of
|ease fingnoe |eaze

pPaymeEnts charges obligations
£'000 £'000 £'000
Yithin one year 52 {75} 510
Between ane and five years 1,358 1568) 1,262
After five years 106 13} 106
&t 31 March 2016 2082 {174} 1,878
Within ona year 367 [46) 221
Batwagn one and five years £39 (47 781
Atter five years 52 - 2y
At 31 March 2017 1,257 (93) 1,164

Finance tease abligatione are principally for buildings. Terms range from 20 to 25 vears and include renawsl
options if it is reasonakly cerain, at the inception of the laase, that they will be exercised,

At the time of entaring into finanee lease agreements, the commitrnents are recorded at amounts squal 1o
the fair value of tha leaged property or, if lowsr, the present value of valug of the minimum lease payments,
using the intarast rate implicit in the lease, ifthis is practicable to determine; if not, the Scottish Govamment
advized intarest rata for [ohg-term borrowings is usadd.

As at 31 March 2017, the finance iease cbligations ara recorded at their present valua at an avarage interest
rate of 8.0% [ 2016 : 6.0%),

i
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70 OPERATING LEASES

a} Dparating |eaze agreements whera YisitScotland is the lesses
VizitSeotland has antared into commercial leases on certain praperties, motor vahitlas, and tems of

affice Equipment . The l¢ases have a8 duration of kefwaen 1 and 15 years,

Futura minimum rentals pavable under non-canceflable operating leases are gs follows:

7 2015
£'000 £0300
Leazehold propertiss
Mot later than one year 1,027 1,181
After eng year but not more than five yegars M4 X102
Aftar five years 29 hG5
At 31 March 3,770 4818
017 26
£'00d £ 000
Leasahoid plant & equipment
Mot |ater than ona year x| 23
Aftar one year but not mora than five years 45 20
After five yaary - C
At 31 March 112 173

b} Operating leasa agrasments where VisitScotland is the lessor

YigitSeodland undertakes sub-lets of varipus premises to third parties ¢p @ relling annual renewal besis, prior 16

arranging formal non-cancellable leases of bebwasn 1 and 10 years.

Future minimum rantals raceivable under noncanceifable aperating leeses are ag foffows:

ia) ) ZNG
£'0ad 000
Mot latar than cne year 261 26
After one year but not more than five years 504 EBT
Aftar five wearz B
At 31 March T&5 963

Eal
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21 POST - RETIREMENT BENEFITS
a} BRITISH TOURIST BOARD’S PENSION SCHEME (BTBPS)

VisitScotland is a participant in the British Tourist Boards’ Pension Scheme (“BTBPS") providing benefits and
life assurance for staff based upon final pensionable salary. The scheme is a multi-employer defined benefit
scheme, contracted out of the State Second Pension Scheme, with the principal Employer {also a
participating Employer) being VisitBritain together with the other participating Employers, namely
VisitScotland, and the Welsh Assembly Government (accrual ceased with effect from 1 February 2009)
(VisitLondon ceased 1o be a participating employer in 2011/12).

A full actuarial valuation was carried out using membership data as at 31 March 2015, by Xafinity Consulting
Limited, qualified independent actuaries, and the liabilities for these accounting disclosures have been
caleulated by rolling forward the valuation liabilities from that valuation date to the measurement date {31
March 2017). The roll forward methodology utilises the payroli and benefit information supplied and the
resulting liabilities have then been adjusted to reflect the different assumptions used. The 31 March 2015
valuation has not yet been finalised.

During the year ended 31 March 2017, a total contribution of 23.5% (2016:23.2%) of pensionable salaries was
paid by VisitScotland. This included employees’ contributions of 5%, and employer's contributions of 18.5%.
Employer contributions paid by VisitScotland for the year to 31 March 2017 amounted to £1,533,000 (2016:
£1,438,000). The rate to be paid during the year to 31 March 2018 by VisitScotland is a campaosite rate of
18.5%, plus the deficit contributions due in accordance with the recovery plan.

The current service cost of £3,365,000 (2016:£3,724,000) represents VisitScotland's cost of additicnal benefits
earned by active members during the vyear, and includes administration expenses of £144,000
{2016:£173,000), which, set against the employer contributions paid, reflects a deficit in the year of £1,832,000
{2016:£2,286,000)

The Trustees of the Scheme are currently undertaking a review of the level of employers’ contributions
necessary to meet the ongoing Scheme deficit, in conjunction with assessing the strength of the respective
employers’ guarantees and/or covenants in support thersof.

Each employer’s share of the scheme’s assets has been identified by considering the cashflows relating to
each employer and adjusting the proportion of total assets held, accordingly. The following table illustrates
VisitScotland’s share of respective liabilities:-

31 March 2017 31 March 2018
Share of total past service liabilities - 28.4% 27.5%
Share of benefit cutgo - 19.0% 21.2%
Share of future service cost - 51.0% 50.8%

The net interest expense of £969,000 is a charge to the statement of comprehensive net expenditure and
reflects the addition of interest to the beginning of the vear funded status (surplus or deficit) at the discount
rate adoptad at the start of the year.

Although the expected return on assets was £2,207,000 over the period, the actual investment return {net of
the Scheme’s investment expenses) was £14,944,000. As a consequence, there was an asset gain over the
period of £12,737,000.

However, owing to changes in financial market conditions {falling bond vields, etc.) over the year, and the
resultant changes in assumptions used to value the liabilities and for experience arising, the resulting overall
actuarial loss produced was £13,474,000.

The Scheme’s assets are held in funds managed by Newton, Legal & General, M&G, Fidelity, Baillie Gifford,
Black Rock and Threadneedle. At the measurement date the fair value of investments with these companies
was £292.35 million. In addition, the Scheme also holds a series of annuity policies purchased in the Trustees’
name to meet benefits due to pensioners, The value of the assets in respect of these policies is equal to the
value of the liability that they cover, which at the measurement date was £16.51 million. Details of
VisitScotland's share of the fair value of the assets and liabilities held are shown on page 76.

VisitScaotland's share of the Scheme assets, as disclosed at fair value, amounts to £75,397,000 (2016:
£60,462,000), as cempared to its share of Scheme liabilities of £103,422,000 (2016: £86,126,000} results in the
funded status of VisitScotland’s share of the Scheme reflecting a liability of £28.03 million as at 31 March
2017 (2016: £25.66 million).

Early retirement and enhanced pension liabilities are accounted for under International Accounting Standard
37 'Pravisions, Cantingent liabilities and Contingent assets’ {IAS 37), and are disclosed in Note 23.
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21 POST - RETIREMENT PENSION BENEFITS { continued}
a) BRITISH TOURIST BOARD'S PENSION SCHEME (continued)
ASSUMPTIONS
After consuhtation with actuarial advisors the Directors advise that the principal actuarial assumptions usaed

are as follows:

Financial :
As at 31 March 2017 2016

% p.a. % p.a.
Inflation assumption 2.40 CPL 2.45 CFI
Principal rate of increase in pensionakle salaries 3.40 * 4,35 **

¥1.00% until 37 March 2020, then 2.40% until 31 March 2025, thersafter 3.40%

*#(2015: 3.35% untif 37 March 2018: 4.35% theraafter)

Rate of increase for pensions in payment 2.40 CPI 2.45 CPI
The CFi assumption for 2017 has been calculated as RFI (3.40%) less 1.0% p.a.( 2016: AP} (3.35%) less 0.8% p.a.)

Liability discount rate 2.70 3.65
Expected return on employer Assets 2.70 3.65
Mortality:

Pre and post retirement assumptions are based con the following criteria:

Male life expectancy is derived from §7% of SAPS STNMA table with 2014 CM! projections, based upon year of
birth, trending to 1.25% per annum.

Female life expectancy is derived from 90% of SAPS $1NFA tablewith 2014 CMI projections based on year of
birth, trending to 1.25% per annum.

Expacied age at death of current pensioner at age 65

Male aged 65 at year end 88.6 years 89.5 years
Female aged 65 at year end 91.5 years 91.4 years
Expeacted age at death of future pensioner at age 65

Male aged 45 at year end 91.3 years 81.2 years
Female aged 45 at year end 93.3 years 93.2 years

Life expectancy on 31 March 2074 mortality assumptions

Commutation:

it is assumed that 100% of active and deferred members will commute 10% cof their pensions for a cash sum.
Sensitivity Analysis:

The degree of sensitivity to each of the actuarial assumptions is linked to the maturity profile of the liabilities,
and the duration of VisitScotland's liabilitias within the Scheme as at 31 March 2017 amounts to approximately
22.0 years. { 2016 : 23.4 years). Under IAS 19 because the liabilities are discounted by reference to bond yieids,
whereas the Scheme invests a significant proportion of its assets in equities and other return seeking assets,
scheme valuations, as reguired, are likely to remain volatile in future years.

The approximate impact of a 0.5% change in the respective RP| inflation and discount rate assumptions on the
Scheme liabilities is as follows:

i} RPf inflation

These calculations take into account an appropriate variance in the assumptions for the increases to pensions
in payment, for the revaluation of deferred pensions before retirement and for salary growth to ensure

consistancy with the revised RPl inflation assumption.

Central
-0.50% assumption 0.50%
2.90% 3.40% 3.90%
Liabilities £82.2m £103.4m £116.4m
i) Discount rate
Central
-0.50% Assumption 0.50%
2.20% 2.70% 3.20%
Liabilities £117.1m £103.4m £81.9m

/i) Life expectancy
The calculation sets out the effects if life expectancies increase or reduce by one year.

Central
- 1 Year assumption + 7 year
Liabilities £9%.5m £103.4m £107.3m

These figures are provided for illustration only; they are not intended to be regarded as a
recommendation for this or far future accounting disciosures.
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21 POST - RETIREMENT PENSION BEMNEFITS { continued)
a) BRITISH TOURIST BOARD'S PEMSION SCHEME (continuad)
MOVEMENT IN FAIR YALUE OF PLAN ASSET, DEFINED BENEAT OBLIGATION, AND NET LIABILITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017

Aszets  Obligations Net (liability)fasset

£'000 £'004 £'000
Feir value of employer aszots G462 - G462
Progant vakue of funded liabilities - BE,126 186,126)
Presert velue of unfunded liabilities
Opening position as at 1 April 2018 610,462 85,124 125, E64)
Service cast
- Current service cost** 144 1271 13,385

- Paest aervice cost {including curtailments)

- Effert of settlerents

Tatal sarvice cost {1464} 3,221 {3,285}
Mat intergst

- Intereat income on plan assets 2207 - 2.207
- Imterest costan defined Benefit okligation - 3178 12,176
- Impact of assat ceiling en net interest - - -
Totat net Inteceat 2,207 3,176 [988)
Total deflhed benefit cost reacogniged in statsment of comprehensive net
axpanditurs .03 £,397 {4_334)
Cashflgws
- Plan participantz centributions 354 ik
Ernployer contributions 1,533 - 1,533
Transfars in 23 28
- Banefits pad (1,721 (1.781) -
Expected closing position 62,660 91,125 (28,465)

Remeasurernents of net defined bermefit obligations

Changa in damographic essumptions . 2

- Change in financial assumptions - 13,474 (13,474}
- Otherexperience - 11,177 1177
- Return on assets excluding amounts included in net interest 12,737 - 12,737
- Changes in asset cailing & 2

Tatal remsasurements recognised in othar comprehanslve incoms 12737 122097 440
Fair value of employer agsets 75,397 - 75,347
Fresent value of funded liabilitias . 103,422 103,422
Presant value of unfunded liabilities # z -
Cleeing pogltlon as at 31 March 2017 75,397 108,422 (28.026)

¥* The curment service cost includes administration expenses of £744,000.
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21 POST - RETIREMENT PENSION BENEFITS { continued)
a) BRITISH TOURIST BOARD'S PENSION SCHEME {continued)
MOVEMENT IN FAIR VALUE OF PLAN ASSET, DEFINED BENEFIT CBLIGATION, AND NET LIABILITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2016

Assets  Obligations Net {liability)/asset

£'000 £'000 £'000
Fair value of employer assets 58,834 - 58,834
Present value of funded liabilities - 86,208 {85,208}
Present value of unfunded liabilities
Opening position as at 1 April 2015 58,834 85,208 (26,374}
Service cost
- Current service cost¥* {173} 3,651 {3,724}

Past service cost {including curtatiments) - -
- Effect of settlements
Total service cost {173) 3,551 {3,724)
Net interest

- Interest income on plan assets 1,878 - 1,878
- Interest cost on defined benefit obligation . 2,758 {2,758}
- Impact of asset ceiling on net interest - -

Total net interest 1,878 2,758 {880)
Total defined benefit cost recognised in statement of comprshensive net

axpenditure 1,706 6,308 {4,604}
Cashflows

- Plan participants' contributions 330 330

- Employer contributions 1,438 - 1,438
- Tranpsfersin 29 29

- Benefits paid {1,393} {1,893} -
Expected closing position 60,443 89,983 {29,540}
Remeasuremants of net defined benefit obligations

- Change in demographic assumptions - 2,040 {2,040}
- Change in financial assumptions E (8,396) 8,396
- Dther experience - 2,459 (2,499}
- Return on assets excluding amounts included in net interest 18 - 19

Changes in asset ceiling

Total remeasurements recognised in ather comprehensive income 18 {3,857} 3.876
Fair value of employer assets 680,462 - 60,462
Fresent valug of funded liabilities - 86,126 {86,126}
Fresent value of unfunded liabilities - -

Closing position as at 31 March 2016 80,462 86,126 (25,664)

#* The current service cost includes administration expenses of £173,000.
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21 POET - RETIREMENT PENSION BENEFITS { continued)
&) BRITISH TOURIST BOARD'S PENSION SCHEME {oontined)
FAIR YALUE OF EMPLOYER ASSETS
The Fund's asseta are 4t b'd values as required urder 142 15

31 March 2017 [ | 31 March 2016

Quated Pricas A ces nat
inAclws  quoted in Active
Agoat Catagory Maricts markels

Quoted Friges  Pric2s not
in Active quirted in
Tatel % Marksts Lotive markars  Tatal

£'000: 2000 F'000s £'000s £ 4 £ 300e

E

Evuity Securitles;

Conaumar
Wanulacluring

Enargy & Utilities

F mancial lmsliduticns
Heulth & Cara
|nfurmation achnology
Clher

Dhabil gLl ritl e

Corporata Bang

i TR graca) ¥ o = & = = -
[imece:renr grada)

Corporate Bands {non-nwestrient

gradel . - s = . - o

UK Gowemmen: . - . .
ther . -

Private Equity:

All . -

feal Eqtete:

LIK Froperty Bl -
Cvarsaas Property . -

472 BTH £,307 - £.307

104%

Investment funds and unit Fuste:

Equitira 28833 - 28831 EE2% 22 - 22,708
Corparate Bonds . = = - 5
Hadye Funda 12874 - 12878 17.1% 12,293 . 12,283

Commadities - * & = &

Infrastraczura 1 3y & - . :
Cthee - LOI repo 24,870 - 2481 2 (T2 - 17,226
Oihar - I sutance Annzites 1,917 = 1,817 2.5% 1878 - 1,976

ER

20.3%

3%
23%

Dharbyat|ves:

Infla on - . -

Itorest rals -
Forzign cxchanga -
ther -

Cash and cach squivalers;

All 428

479 0.8% 161 - 15

0.0%

Totals 76257

6387 100.0% 462 - 60,362

100.0%

The Echeme hae e invastmans in the Employver, or in preperly occupied by the Erployer)s)

HISTORY OF EXPERIENCE GAINS AND LOSEES
Az 6t 31 March

Fair valug of employer aseots
Frazant valua of defined benafit obligation

207 2015
£'000 £'000

75,397 BD,a62
11034221 156.126]

2ms
£ oo

5d.B34
48, 2B

Net pension (liability)

{28,026)  {26,864)

(26,374)

Expetienos: |Loagsaligaing an assets
Expetienos: [Loassaligaing an liabilitias

12,787 19
2,267 5,857

A0
114,787}

440 1,876

19,576,

Experience: Cumulative actuarial ({losses)/gains recognised

{16,645)  (16,085)

(19,861
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21 POST- RETIREMENT BENEFITS (continued)
b) LOCAL GOVERNMENT PENSION SCHEMES (LGPS)

VigitScottand participates in a number of Local Government Pension Scheme ["LGPS”), which are defined
benefil statutory schamaes, sdministered in accordance with the Local Government Pension Schema
{Benefits, Membership and Contributions] (Scotland) Regulalions 2008, the Local Gowvarnment Penasion
Scheme {Administrationt {Scetland) Regulations 2008, and also the Lecal Governmant Pansion Scheme
{Transitional Provisions) Regulations 2008,

All the LGPS hava hitherto been contracled out of tha State Second Pension Scheme (now ceased), and tha
consolidated figures from each individual scheme are detailed in the tables below. Tha {atest triennial
farmal valuations of LGPS Fund, in which YisitScotland participates, were carried out as at 21 March 2014
by Hymans Robartsan, qualified independant actuaries. For this year's valuation the actuary has projacted
forward the results of the valuations as determined at 31 March 2014 to the measuramant date (31 March
2017} using consistent methods of approximation. The next farmal valuation is dua 1o e carried out as at
31 March 2017,

The wvaricus LGPS Schameas in which VisitSeotland participatas, together with the employers’ contributian
rates for the yvear, are as follows:

Contribution Rate

e o

2017 2016
Aberdeen City Council Pension Fund 20.8 208
Tayside Superannuation Scheme 17.0 17.0
Falkirk Council Pansion Scheme 24.7 24.7
Cumfries and Galloway Council Pension Fund 18.5 19.5
Lothian Pension Fund 16.2 152
Strathclyde Pansion Scheme 21.3 21.2
Highland Gouncil Pensicn Fund 221 221
Highland Council Pension Fund [Western Isles) 21.3 213
Fife Council Superannuation Fund 25.8 288
Qrknay |slands Council Pension Fund 18.8 21.4
Scottish Borders Council Pansion Fund 180 18.0
Shetland Islands Council Pansion Fund 27.6 27.6

Ermployee contributions are applied in tiers ranging from 5.5% to 12%, depending upon the employes's
persignabla pay on 31 March. Employer's principal contributions paid by VisitSeotland for the year to 31
March 2017 amountad to £1,064,000 (2016 £1,082,000). The amount of employer contributions expected to
be paid during the year to 31 March 2018 by VisitScotland is C1 million.

The Trustacs of the Schemes are currantly undertaking & review of the level of employers” contributions
neceszary to meet the ongoing Scheme deficits, in conjunction with assessing the sirength of the raspective
employers guarantaes and/or covenants in support tharagf.

The current servige cost of £1,081,000 {20168:£1,165,000), represents VisitScodand's cost of additional
baneafits carned by active members during the year, and includes an edministration allewancs of 0.3% of
payroll {2016 0.3%).

The Tullowing table illustrates YisitScotland’s memhbership spraad in relation ta their respective share of tha
Scheme's defined banefit abligation:-

21 March 217 31 March 2016
Agtive mambers - 5% 31.5%
Deferred mambars - 307% 35.5%
Pensioner mambears = in payment 29.4% 33.0%

The actuary has reported that whilst the interest on assets was £1.862,000 over the period, the actual
invastrmant raturn (net of the Scheme’s investrmant expenses] was £11,089,000. As a result thera was an
azzet gain over the period of £8,227,000. However, changes in financial market conditions, and the resulting
changes in assumplions usad to value the lisbilities, and for experience arising, leads to an actuarial loss of

£9,255400.

VigitScotland's share of the LGPS Scherme agsats, as disclosed at fair value, as at 31 March 2017, amounts to
£62,033,000 (2016 £51,005,000), which when compared to its shara of Scheme Liabilities of £70,137.000
{2078; £59,451,008) razults in the funded status of VisitSeotland's shara of tha Schama, as at 31 March 2017,
standing &t a reduced liability of £8.10 million (2018; £8.45 milliont,

The asset split at the accounting date, as shown on page 81, is based onihe split of sach Fund’s asset as at
the most recant date this information was available, and, particularly, the division between those assets with
prices guoted in activa markets and those where prices are not quoted in active markets is an estimate based
on the allocation as provided |ast year,
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21 POST - RETIREMENT PENSION BENEFTS { continued)
b) LOCAL GOVERNMENT PENSION SCHEMES (LGPS) (continued)
ASSUMPTIONS

After consultation with actuarial adviscrs the Directors advise that the principal actuarial assumptions used are

as follows:
Financial :
As at 31 March 2017 2016

% p.a. % p.a.
(nflation assumption ﬁ 2.40 CPI 2.45 CPI
Principal rate of increase in pensionable salaries 3.40 * 4.35 **
*1.00% until 37 March 2020, then 2.40% untif 31 March 2025, thereafter 3.40%
*¥(2018: 3.35% until 31 March 2015: 4.35% thereafter)
Rate of increase for pensions in payment 2.40 CPI 2.45 CPI
The CPI assumption for 2017 has been calculated as AP! (3.40%) less 1.0% p.a.{ 2016: RPI (3.35%) less 0.8% p.a.)
Liability discount rate 2.70 3.65
Expectad return on employer Assets 2,70 3.65

Mortality:

Life expectancy is based on the Vitacurves as appliad to the Lothian Pension Fund at the 2014 valuation with
improvements in line with the core parameters of the CMI2012 model and a long term rate of improvement of
1.26%.

Based on these assumptions, the average future life expectancies at age 65 are summarised below:

Expected age at death of current pensioner at age 65

Male aged 65 at year end I 87.2 yaars 87.1 years
Female aged 65 at year end §8.8 yoars 88.7 years
Expected age at death of future pensioner at age 65

Male aged 45 at year end - B9.3 yeare 89.2 years
Female aged 45 at year and 91.4 yoars 91.3 years

Mortality assumptions have not been changed since the previous accounting period.

Commutation:

The allowance for commutation is consistent with the assumpticns used at the formal valuations carried out
as at 31 March 2014, adjusted to allow for any known experience.

Major categories of plan assets as a parcentage of total plan assets.

The actuaries have been supplied with a split of each Fund's assets at the most recent date this information was
available. These dates range from 31 December 2016 te 31 March 2017. The asset split for VisitScotland has been
assumed to ke in the same proportion to each Fund's asset allocation, as advised, as as shown on page 81.
Sensitivity Analysis

The degree of sensitivity to each of the actuarial assumptions is linked to the maturity profile of the liabilities, and
the duration of VisitSeotland's liabilities within the Scheme amounts to approximatsly an average of 19.7 years.
{ 2016:19.7 years )

The approximate impact of a 0.5% change in the respective RFl inflation and discount rate assumptions on the
Scheme liabilities, if all other assumptions remain unchanged is as follows:

% Increase Approximate
in Liabilities amount
0.5% decrease in Real Discount Rate 10.5% £7.4m
0.5% increase in the Salary Increase Rate 1.3% £0.9m
0.5% increase in the CPl inflation Rate 8.1% £5.7m
1 year increase in member Iife expectancy 3.0% £2.1m

These figures are previded for illustration only; they are not intended to be regarded as a recommendation
for this or for future accounting disclosures.
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21 POST - RETIREMENT PENSION BENEFITS { continued)
b} LOCAL GOVERNMENT PENSION SCHEMES (LGPS){continued}
MOVEMENT IN FAIR VALUE OF PLAN ASSET, DEFINED BENEFIT OBLIGATION, AND NET LIABILITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017

Agsets  Obligations Net {liability)/asset

£'000 £'000 £'000
Fair value of employer assets 51,005 - 51,005
Present valug of funded liabilities - 58,297 {58,287)
Present value of unfunded liabilities - 1,154 {1,154}
Opening position as at 1 April 2016 51,005 59,451 {9,446)
Service cost
- Current service cost* . 1,081 {1,081}
- Past service cost (including curtailments) . E
- Effect of seftlements x
Total service cost - 1,081 {1,081}
Net interest
- Interest income on plan assets 1,862 . 1,862
- Interest cost on definad benefit obligation - 2,168 {2,169)
- Impact of asset ceiling on net interest - - -
Total net interest 1,862 2,169 (307)
Total defined benefit cost recognised in statament of comprehsnsive net
expenditure 1,862 3,250 i1,388)
Cashflows
- Plan participants' contributions 266 266
- Employer contributions 1,004 - 1,004
- Contributions in respect of unfunded banefits 80 . 60
- Benefits paid {1,331} {1,331}
- Unfunded benefits paid {60} {60} -
Expected ¢losing position 52,806 61,576 {B.770}
Remeasurements of net defined benefit obligations
- Change in demographic assumptions
- Change in financial assumptions - 8,255 {9,255)
- Other experience {694} 694
- Return on assets excluding amounts included in net interest 9,227 - 9,227
- Changes in asset ceiling
Total remeasuraments racognised in other comprehensive income 9227 8,561 666
Fair value of employer assets 62,033 - 62,033
Prasent valug of funded liabilities - 68,937 {68,937
Present value of unfunded liabilities - 1,200 {1,200)
Closing position as at 31 March 2017 62,033 70,137 (B,104)

#  The current service cost incfudes an allowance for administration expenses of 0.3% of payroll.{ Approximating to £14,000

together with any other costs arising).
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21 POST - RETIREMENT PENSION BENEFITS { continued)
b) LOCAL GOVERNMENT PENSION SCHEMES (LGPS) (continued)
MOVEMENT IN FAIR VALUE OF PLAN ASSET, DEFINED BENEFIT OBLIGATION, AND NET LIABILITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2016

Assets  Obligations Net {liability}asset

£'000 £'000 E'000

Fair value of employer assets 49,727 - 49,727
Present value of funded liabilities - 61,809 {61,898}
Present value of unfunded liabilities - 1,266 {1,266)
Opening position as at 1 April 2015 49,727 63,165 {13.438)
Service cost
- Current service cost* - 1,165 {1,165)
- Past service cost {including curtailments} - 33 {33}
- Effect of settlements - -
Total service cost - 1,198 (1,198}
Net interest
- Interest income on plan assets 1,583 - 1,683
- Interest cost on defined benefit obligation . 2,026 {2,025}
- Impact of asset ceiling on net interest - -
Total net interest 1,593 2,028 {432)
Total definad benefit cost recognised in statement of comprehensive net
axpenditura 1,593 3,223 {1,630)
Cashflows

Plan participants' contributions 265 255
- Employer confributions 1,022 - 1,022
- Contributions in respect of unfunded benefits 60 - 60
- Benefits paid {1,218} {1,218)

Unfunded benefits paid {60 {60)
Expected closing position 51,379 65,365 (13,986}
Remeasurements of net defined benefit obligations
- Change in demographic assumptions - - .
- Change in financial assumptions - {4,834} 4,834
- Other experience - {1,080} 1,080
- Return on assets excluding amounts included in net interest {374) - {374}
- Changes in asset ceiling ; . .
Total remeasuremants recognised in other comprehensive income {374) {5,914} 5,540
Fair value of employer assets 61,005 - 51,005
Present value of funded liabilities - 58,297 {58,297)
Present value of unfunded liabilities B 1,154 {1,164
Closing position as at 31 March 2016 51,005 58,451 {8,448)

*  The current service cost includes an allowance for administration expenses of 0.3% of payroll.{ Approximating to £14,000

tagether with any other costs arising].
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21 POST - RETIREMENT PENSION BENEFITS { continued}
b} LOCAL GOVERNMENT PENSION SCHEMES {LGPS}(continued)
FAIR VALUE OF EMPLOYER ASSETS

The Fund's assets are at bid values as required under iAS 13

31 March 2017 \ 31 March 2016 ]
Quoted Prices Prices not
Quoted Prices in  Prices not quoted inActive  quoted in Active
Asset Category Active Markets  in Active markets  Total % Markets markets Total %
£'000s £'000s £'000s £'000s £'000s £'000s
Equity Saecurities:
Cansumer 5,648 . 5,648 9.10% 4,670 - 4,670 9.2%
Manufacturing 4,870 27 4,697 157% 3,521 20 3,541 5.3%
Energy & UHtilities 2,063 - 2,063 3.33% 2,023 - 2,023 4.0%
Financial Institutions 3,968 - 3,969 6.40% 3,295 . 3.2% 5.4%
Health & Care 2,462 . 2,482 3.97% 1,567 - 1,567 3.9%
Information technology 4,104 3 4,107 6.62% 2927 2 2,929 5.7%
Cther 1,838 72 2,010 3.24% 3,565 132 3,697 7.2%
Dabt securities:
Corporate Bonds
{investment grade) 729 17 906 1.46% 357 &7 444 0.9%
Corporate Bonds {non-
investment grade) 2 - 2 0.00%
UK Government 2,058 283 2,341 377% 1,045 144 1,189 2.3%
Cther 213 2 275 0.44% 405 3 408 0.8%
Private Equity:
All 266 4,597 4,863 7.84% 197 3402 3,588 71%
Real Estate:
UK Property 932 2,952 3,884 6.26% 988 3132 4120 8.1%
Overseas Property 19 1,716 1,735 2.80% 1 101 102 0.2%
Investment funds and unit trusts:
Equities 5,961 8,244 14,205 22.50% 4971 6,874 11,845  23.2%
Bonds 863 4,129 4,992 8.06% 146 570 4316 8.5%
Hedge Funds 10 10 0.02% - - - -
Commedities 35 35 0.06% 42 - 42 0.1%
Infrastructure 15 B9 14 0.12% 50 194 244 0.5%
Other §95 361 1,056 1.70% 620 322 942 1.8%
Derivatives:
Inflation - - - - . - -
Interest rate . . . . - - -
Foreign exchange - . . - 14 . 14 0.0%
Other 1 - 1 0.00% 7 - 7 0.0%
Cash and cash equivalents:
All 1,725 973 2,698 4.35% 1,030 581 1,611 3.2%
Totals 38,430 23,595 62,033  100.0% 32,441 18,564 51,005 100.0%
HISTORY OF EXPERIENCE GAINS AND LOSSES
As at 31 March 2017 2016 2015
£'000 £000 £'000
Fair value of employer assets §2,033 51005 48727
Present value of defined benefit obligation {70,137) {99,451} {63,165}
Net pension (liability) {8,104} (8,448} (13,438}
Experience: {Losses)/gains on assets 9,227 {374} 3,965
Experience: {Losses)gains on liabilities {8,561 5914  (5,548)
568 5540 {1,584}
Exparience; Cumulative actuarial {lossesl{gains racognised (5,724} {6,380) (11,930
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21 POST - RETIREMENT PENSION BENEFITS { continued)

¢} TOTAL PENSION SCHEME EMPLOYER'S CONTRIBUTIONS REFLECTED IN THE STATEMENT OF
COMPREHENSIVE NET EXPENDITURE

2017 2016

£'000 £'000
British Tourist Boards' Pension Scheme 1,533 1,438
Local Government Pension Schemes 1,084 1,082
Other Pension Schemes 8 8
At 31 March 2,605 2528
d) TOTAL PENSION SCHEME ACTUARIAL LOSSES / (GAINS) RECOGNISED IN

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

2017 2016

£'000 £'000
British Tourist Boards' Pension Scheme {440) {3,878)
Local Government Pension Schemes {666) {b,540)
At 31 March {1,106) {9,416)
e] TOTAL DEFICIT ON RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS

2017 2016

£'000 £'000
British Tourist Boards' Pension Scheme {28,025} {265,664}
Local Government Pension Schemas {8,104} {8,448)
At 31 March {36,129) {34,110)
fi  1A5 19 ADJUSTMENT AS DISCLOSED IN THE PERFORMANCE REFORT

BTBPS LGPS

£'000 £'000
Charges recognised in the statement of comprehensive net income 4,334 1,388
Employer's contributions {1,933) {1,004)
Contributions in respect of unfunded benefits - {60)

2,801 324
Annually Managed Expenditure {AME) 3,125
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22 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
WistScotland has exposure to the lollewing risks from the use of financial instruments;
Liquidity risk; Cradit rigk; Market rigk; Currency risk.
This nole presents information about YisitScotland's exposure to each of the above risks, Fudher guantative
digclosures are included throughout these financial statements.
The Board has overall reponsihility for the establishiment and stewardship of the rfisk management framework,
The Audit & Risk Committes oversees how Management menitors compliance with VisitSeotland's rigk
managemeant policies and procedures, and reviews the adeqguacy of the risk management Framewark in
relation to the risks faced by VisitScotland.
VisitScotland has no derivalive financial assets or liabilities.
i} Liquidity risk
Ligquidity risk is the risk that Visitscotland wifl nol be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due.
The organisation's approach to managing liquidity is to ensura that it will have sufficient liquid funds to
mieet its liabilities as they Tall due, Visitseotland's prirmnary soaree of funds is the Grant-in-&id provision from
the 3cottish Govemmant. Tha lean, which hitharto hae been highlighted in Note 18, reprasentad the
remaining borrowing facility with an esternel patty, and was repaid during the year. Other borrowings are
represantative of the Finance Leasa obligations with regard to Leasahold properties rapored in accordance
with |45 17, and highlighted in Mate 19,
VisitScotland manages its liquidity by the menthly drawdewn of Grant-in-Aid, and the daily management of cash
reagurces, Regular monitoring of actual performance against budgets and lorecasts takes place to ensure
alignmant with tha annual oparating plan.
The follgwing 1ables summarise the maturity profile of YisitScotland's financial liabilities as at 31 March,
hagsed on contractual undiscounted payments.

Contractual cash flows

Financial liabilitios Hmli*lne; Within 1 Batwasn |

amount year and B years After 5 yaars Total

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 E'000

Az at 31 March 2016
Loans a ) . - )
Other bourrowings 1,873 BEE 1,358 109 2,052
Trads and other pavablas 10,484 10,484 . - 10,484
Total financial liabilities 12,365 11,072 1,358 109 12,639
As at 31 March 2017
Loans
Other borrowing s 1,164 367 838 B2 1,257
Trade and other payables 8,711 8,711 - - 8.7
Total financial liabilities 190,675 10,078 8314 52 10,968
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22 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS {(continued)

ity Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial joss to VisitScotland if a customer, or counter party, fails to meet its contractual

obligations, and arises from the trade receivables.

VisitScotland carries out appropriate credit checks on potential customers before significant sales transactions
are entered into in order to mitigate the credit risk that VisitScotland are exposed to from any single counterparty.
The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by the carrying value of each financial asset as stated in the

statement of financial position.

Credit risk arising from VisitScotland's notmal operations is controlled from within the management frarnework

of the Corporate Services directorate, in accordance with the policies and procedures laid down.

VisitScotland operates a debt management process including monitoring, escalation procedures and recourse
to court action, if necessary, to recover monies outstanding. Provision is made for doubtful receivables upon the
age of the debt and experience of collecting overdue debts. The movement in the impairment provision in respect

of financial assets is set out in Note 16 above.

VisitScotland operates within the Government Banking framework, and Banks associated therewith, and any

remaining cash and cash equivalents are held with AAA rated banks, which are not expected to fail.

VisitScotland's exposure to credit risk is likely to have increased in the current aconomic climate, but
management does hot consider this to have had a significant impact as the risk is spread across a large

number of receivables.

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date was:
217 2016
£'000 £'000
Current receivables
Trade and other receivables 1,428 3,965
Cash and cash equivalents

Government Banking Service 3,209 904
Commercial banks 2,162 3,222
At 31 March 6,799 8,091
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22 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

iii) Market risk
Market risk is the risk that market prices such as interest rates, foreign exchange rates and equity prices will affect
the statement of comprehensive net expenditure, or the value of holdings in financial instruments.

Within 1 Between 1 After 5

year and 5 years years Total

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Fixed interest rate
At 31 March 2016
Financial liabilities
Other borrowings (510) {1,262) (106) {1,878)
Total (510) (1,262) (106) (1,878)
At 31 March 2017
Financial liabilities
Other borrowings (321) (791) (52) (1,164)
Total (321) (791) (52) {1,164)
Variable interest rate
At 31 March 2016
Financial assets
Trade and other receivables 3,965 3,965
Cash and cash equivalents 4,126 - - 4,126
Financial liabilities
Loans {3) - - (3)
Trade and other payables {10,484) - - (10,484)
Total {2,396) - - (2,396)
At 31 March 2017
Financial assets
Trade and other receivables 1,428 * - 1,428
Cash and cash equivalents 537 - 5,371
Financial liabilities
Loans
Trade and other payables (9,711} (9,711)
Total {2,912) - - {2,912)
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22 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
iiiy Market risk {continuad)
Fair values of financial instruments

The following tables present the fair values of financial instruments compared to the carrying amounts for which

these instruments are included in the statement of financial position.

2017 2016
Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
amount value amount value
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Financial assets
Trade and other receivables 1.428 1,428 3,965 3,965
Cash and cash equivalents 5,31 5371 4,126 4,126
Financial liabilities
Loans - Variable interest rate - - {3) {3}
Other borrowings {1,164 {1,164 {1,878) {1,878
Trade and other payables {8,711} {8,711) 110,454} {10,484}
At 31 Merch (4,076) {4,076} (4,274) {4,274}

Fair value hierarchy

VisitScotland's financial assets and liabilities that are valued at fair values are defined as follows:

Level 1. quoted prices {(unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2. inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability

{i.e. as prices) or indirectly {i.e. derived from prices}.

Level 3. inputs for the asset ar liability that are not based on observable market data {i.e. unobservable market inputs).

All materiza| VisitScotland financial assets and liabilities are defined as level 3 instruments.

Estimation of fair values

The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate fair values:-

Trade and other receivables: The fair value is deemed to be the same as the carrying value, less any provision for

impairment.

Cash and cash equivalents :  The fair value is deemed to be the same as the carrying value.

Trade and cther payables: The fair value is deemed to be the same as the carrying value.
Loans - Variakle interest : The fair value is deemed 1o be the same as the carrying value.
Cther borrowings : The fair value is deemed to be equal to the net present value of future lease payments.
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22 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS continued
ity Market rigk {continuad)
Intarest rate sensitivity analyaes
Laans
During the year VisitScotland was a party to one contractual loan which was variable as to intarest rate rigk,

however, this loan was subsequently sattled prigr (o tha year and.

Cash and cash equivalents

YisitScotland operates within the Government Banking frameawark and by g0 doing does not engaga in
depositing monies gutwith the framewark, AE 8 consacuence thera is minimal intargst racaivable

on ils daily bankings, and thargfore tha sansitivy analysis previously applied to monies held on deposit,

and shown far Mlustrative purposes only, is no longer considered to be necessary.

] Curreney rigk

YizsitScotland iz exposed to currency risk on transactions and balances that are denominated in eurrencias
other than sterling. Where practical, VigitSeotland enters into agraemants in it functional currancy in

order o minimise currency risks.
VisitScotland is exposed 1o currancy risk from its activities conducted ovarseas, but does not enter into

any hedga arrangamants, and does not consider such eurrency risk to be material,
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23 PROVISIONS
Pension
provision
£'000
At 1 April 2015 128
Utilised {19
Charged 15
At 31 March 2016 124
At 1 April 2016 124
Utilised (19)
Charged 15
At 31 March 2017 120
VisitScotland is liable for the pension and early departure costs associated with past chairmen, and the provision is adjusted,
as necessary, to account for the timing of payments, and the resultant annually discounted liability.
24 LOSSES AND SPECIAL PAYMENTS
2017 2016
£'000 £'000
Total losses for the year were:
Trade bad debts written off 25 25
At 31 March 25 25

25 CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

There were no capital commitments as at 31 March 2017 { 2016; None ).

26 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
The impact of the change in accounting policy in 2012 with regard to the treatment of Government grants, etc., was such that
the grants will no longer be held in reserve with amounts being released over the life of an asset, However, there remains the
possibility that, until the official timeline expires in respect of a number of the grants that have hitherto been received, there
may be a requirernent to repay a proportion of such grants in the event that the associated assets were to be sold or the nature
of their use was to be changed.

27 EVENTS AFTER THE STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION DATE
Post reporting period - Non-Adjusting Event
On October 12, VisitScotland formally announced the next phase of its information strategy. This represents further development
of a key element of VisitScotland's business and will deliver more information to more people through mere channels, using a
combination of fewer traditional visitor centres, more face to face engagement, increased outreach activty, a greater number of
partnerships, and increased on-line provison. The costs associated with this strategy are estimated to be around £500k, for which
the pay-back period will be approximately two years depending upen the phasing of the programme.

&g



YisitSentland : Annual Raport and Financial Statements for the Year Endad 31 March 2017

28 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

VisitScotaas is a M- Jepertmertal Publiz 3ody (NDPB) sponsatad by the Seotish Gove e, whichir tumn, is regurdes 55 a -ala‘ed party.

During treyear VisitSeeland has had various mate-al wamsactions, o udieg Grartin-4id, with Lhe Seott sh Sovamrzat, end with othe- ertiias

“arwhich the Scottish Govenrient 5 -2qarded as the parent booy.

In complianca withthe FIa and ‘A5 24 "Related Party Disclosares' recyirements, d2teils of matara transactions with cthar Government bodies

and gompanies, sl of whics have arser ir the normal course of bus noss condurted by VisitSeazland, where Board merbers, Directors ard

san or staf®, have an interest, 3+ discloged, as fallows:

Representative

Anng Andarson

Rehecca Brooks

Cattry Craip

Gordon Dewar

Stephen Dunlop

Stephan Hagan

Calum Hoss

Cargling Recdburgh

Malcolm Roughssd
Faul Busgh

Coumpany name

Lnivarsizy of Glasgow

Seatish Tourism Alfiance
Abbey Seoiland

Abglie Scatrail

Argyll B The I2es Touriam
De-nperatiive Ltd

Edinburgh Aimport Ltd
Scottish Tourism Alliance

Seottish Canals

Grkney lalands Cowncil

Argyll & The Isles Terism
Co-operative Ltd

Loch Walfart Hotel

Srmttish Tourizm Aliance

Edinburgh Intermatianal Featival

Lniversity of Strathclhyde
Edinburg h Military Tatton

frale

Ylee Principel

Non-Exegutiva
Eiregtor
blanaging
Diregtor
Commercial
Ciregtor

Diractor

Chief Exzcutive
Jfficer
Nor-Exarutive
Diractar

Chigf Exaciive
Officer

Mambar
Ve Cheirmar

Partner

NoreExacutive
Diractor
Baard Directas!
Truztae

Lay Hember
Arnhagsadar

Wature of supply

Promoticns | marketing
prcijects

Sponaorship ! Wk
Sponsarship ! kg

Hire of Train-Barders
Ra:lway

Sprnzorship

Retil cormmizsion!
Senviges

Sponsarship’ Mktg

Lrametiond | Rent

Rent  marketing
promations ! Rotes

Sponsnghip

Juality hssurance Fae
Spansarship ¢ Mktg
Evarit spensnrehip grank

Raarm hire

Spanzarship

0

Diebter
Salesto  balance

£oH

Purchases

fram
£1900

2 B &8 4| =]

=

]

Craditar
balange

E'0d

it the excaption of th transactions desctised akeve, none of the other Board Mambers, key managem et sta¥, or other -slated parties, hag

undertaken any matara trangs stions with VisitSeotland during the yoar.

The nature of VisitSeat ard's opergicrs, and the composition cf its 3nard make itvery Likely that ransacticrs will take placa with sompanics o

other ¢ roanisatiars in which 4 member may havg an interest. All transastions involving som pgnies, or arganisations in which a member may

havk a7 interest, ara conducted &t am's lengts i1 t0g romal course of bus nuss, and -0 accardance vi'th VisitSeatland srozuremenit guicelines

and axpendiura apc-oval limits,
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